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Financial Highlights
MR E

Results of operations K& %4

RMB'000 A R ¥ F 7t 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
—E-NF ZZT-NF ZT=TF —T—-— =
Revenue B 4,799,807 4,612,105 5,315,685 6,359,786 7,151,039
Profit before tax 6 By A1 765,207 1,315,280 1,327,836 222,264 829,851
Profit attributable to owners FEARARNAHEBA
of the Company for the year JE {5 % F) 640,194 1,059,700 1,024,210 240,788 727,077
Basic earnings per share BREREF 0.51 0.85 0.76 0.16 0.50

Asset information EEMRNR

RMB'000 A R ¥ F 7T 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
ZENF ZENF —E-_FTF —FT_—F ===
Total assets BEEAR 13,844,278 15,351,947 19,025,895 19,108,177 20,814,204
Total liabilities BEBE 7,567,945 7,880,073 7,336,905 7,584,862 8,406,565
Equity attributable to shareholders $FBRA AN A A R
of the Company 6,099,612 7,348,360 11,569,392 11,411,354 12,310,915
Share capital N 1,247,202 1,247,202 1,467,296 1,467,296 1,467,296
Revenue & ¥% Gross profit X/
RMB’000,000 AR#HETT RMB’000,000 AR BHET
8,000 2,500
7,151 2,290
7,000 2,017
6,360 o000 Lo7a 1,994
6,000 REG 1,672
5,000 e 4,612 1,500
4,000
5,000 1,000
2,000
500
1,000
0 0
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
The Group's financial statements for years 2016 and before were prepared in TE-REERAMNEEVERERIEZREF

accordance with the PRC GAAP and were not prepared in accordance with the B ARG EARE  RIZB(EHBRY B RS
IFRS. If the investor needs the relevant information, please visit the website at BANVRR - EREEZTEZHBAEE 5
http://www.cninfo.com.cn #uh ¢ http://www.cninfo.com.cn
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Chairman’s Statement
=FRUE

Li Li Chairman

FEEEFER

Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of directors (the “Board”) of Shenzhen Hepalink
Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd. (the “Company”, or “Hepalink”), | am pleased to
announce the audited annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“"Group”, “we”, "our” or "us”) for the year ended December 31, 2022 (the
“"Reporting Period”). Throughout the year, the Group fully implemented its
development strategy to overcome the adverse effects of the recurrence of the
COVID-19 pandemic and global economic volatility, with particular emphasis on
adhering to the principle of upgrading the principal businesses and the layout of
the supply chain, resulting in the improvement of various operating indicators and
increase in both operating revenue and net profit.

For the year ended December 31, 2022 (the “Year"), the Group achieved operating
revenue of RMB7,151.0 million, representing an increase of 12.4% as compared
with the year ended December 31, 2021 (the “Previous Year”). The gross profit
margin for the Year was 32.0%, representing an increase of 0.7 percentage points
as compared with the Previous Year. Profit attributable to owners of the Company
amounted to RMB727.1 million, representing a year-on-year growth of 202.0%.
The board of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company proposed to declare a
final dividend of RMBO.1 per share for the Year.

HEHRHWKRR :

RAABRRRITEEREXEBRMHAR
RA(TRLF] - [RAIHBERDEES
(TESBE ) MASTHARRAREFAR ([HE
B[ &MDEBEE T _—_F+=_A=+—
BLEFE(HRER]) 2REXE2EFEE —F
BoAEBEE2EZRERRBE mRATERE
RER2HEERSEROTNZE  LET
ERFTEEBRRIANBEEGRN T - &
FREEREHNE  LERT ZERAME
FHEOREET

HE-_Z-—F+-_A=+—RHLEFE(XE
El) AEEEREEWNAARYKT7,151.08
Bl BEBEE-_T-—F+-A=1+—ALLF
FELE—8EDERI24% AFEENERE
32.0% B E—FEERO7EE D - ANAA
BAEANEIEERABARE7271VEETT » FLLE
£202.0% - AARES([EB)) e@FT K
REERAKREEFRAREITT -
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In 2022, the domestic and international socio-economic environment was complex
and volatile. Faced with various variables in the domestic and international
economic and market environment, Hepalink continued to drive the digitalization
and matrix operation transformation of its global businesses with enhancement in
business insight and data support, and timely and flexibly adjusted its business and
operational strategies in response to market dynamics, fully leveraging its internal
coordination effects. With the support of its global supply chain and management
advantages to ensure stable product supply and meet customer needs, Hepalink
has been able to overcome different challenges in the business environment
through various initiatives, enabling Hepalink to maintain steady growth in a rapidly
changing market environment and continue to achieve positive profit growth
during the Year. For the Reporting Period under review, the Group's overall revenue
was RMB7,151 million, representing a year-on-year growth of 12.4%. Our Finished
Dose Pharmaceutical Business continued to gain momentum, with year-on-year
sales volume in key regional markets such as Europe, the United States and China
achieving a certain degree of breakthrough. Global sales volume in 2022 exceeded
227 million units, up 22.3% year-on-year, while sales revenue increased 12.4% as
compared to the same period of last year. Earnings attributable to equity holders of
the parent amounted to approximately RMB727.1 million, representing an increase
of approximately 202.0% as compared to the same period of last year. Basic
earnings per share for 2022 were approximately RMBO.50.

During the Reporting Period, despite facing challenges due to market conditions,
Hepalink maintained its roots and achieved many accomplishments in various
business areas in 2022 by relying on our long-term operational experience and solid
business strategies. In terms of finished doses, we continue to maintain a leading
position in the listed European markets, with a certain advantage in market share
throughout Europe. In the United States, during the Year, we successfully launched
our proprietary standard finished dose heparin sodium pharmaceutical products
and we signed a supply contract with FMC, the largest hemodialysis center in the
United States. Meanwhile, with the unremitting efforts of our partners in the
United States, our finished dose enoxaparin sodium pharmaceutical products have
achieved a leading market share in the local market. In China market, we have
achieved sales expansion in more than 30 provinces and cities nationwide and
entered into the drug procurement catalogs of various provinces and cities. Our
Prolongin® (& )&&¥) enoxaparin sodium injection has become the first brand to
reach online cooperation with multiple major internet platforms. In the
international non-European and American markets, Hepalink has continuously
achieved breakthroughs and further increased its overall market share in the local
market. In terms of CDMO business, Cytovance, as the main carrier of the business,
continued to achieve steady revenue growth with the support of the Group, and
the number of orders maintained an upward trend. During the Reporting Period,
Cytovance entered into a cooperation agreement with Avantor to provide plasmid
production services meeting the cGMP standard of the U.S. and GMP-grade plasmid
products for target customers to effectively support the rapid development in the
field of cell and gene therapy. In terms of innovative drugs, we continued to
maintain a stable development strategy. During the Reporting Period, the Group
and its subsidiaries continued to make steady progress in the research and
development and clinical trials of our self-developed projects.
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Chairman’s Statement
=FRUE

Looking back to the year 2022, the Group has always adhered to its strategic
direction for sustainable and effective development, consolidating its strengths and
promoting the orderly development of its various businesses, making every effort to
meet the expanding market demand. Faced with the uncertainty of the
international financial environment, we further drove the transformation of our
global matrix operations and digitalization projects to help improve the quality and
efficiency of our business, promoted the coordinated operation of various local and
overseas departments, and reduced the negative impact of exchange rate volatility
on financial data, thereby laying a solid foundation for business rollouts in 2023.
Despite the domestic and international impact of the COVID-19 variants, Hepalink
has united to work together to tide over the difficult period in a relatively smooth
manner through centralized management, ensuring the orderly implementation of
the Group's domestic business.

For a long time, Hepalink has been committed to its corporate mission of protecting
health through the discovery, development, and delivery of high-quality, safe, and
effective medicines and services for global patients. The Group will continue to
enhance its business development capabilities, seize industry opportunities, conduct
in-depth resource exploration and industry research, striving to achieve
breakthroughs in business development. We will also enhance our digitalization
capabilities, and build an integrated production and sales model to improve
operational efficiency and reduce costs. We will enhance our supply chain
management capabilities to establish a large-scale supply chain strategic system for
effective control of procurement costs and profit margin improvement. We will also
improve our organizational management capabilities to optimize talent introduction
and training mechanisms, as a result, to provide support for scale expansion. We
will continue to prioritize rapid growth while enhancing our risk management
capabilities. By making the effort to strengthen our core competencies, we strive to
become a leading innovative multinational pharmaceutical company globally.

We would like to express our sincere gratitude to our shareholders, partners and
customers for their support and the hard work and dedication of all our staff for
the results and development of the Group.

Li Li
Chairman
March 29, 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OVERVIEW

Hepalink is a global pharmaceutical company with business spanning the
manufacture and sales of pharmaceutical products, development of Contract
Development and Manufacturing Organization ("CDMO") services and innovative
drugs. Our sales of pharmaceutical products consist of (i) finished dose
pharmaceutical products, which mainly include enoxaparin sodium injection; (ii)
active pharmaceutical ingredient (“API") products, including heparin sodium API
and enoxaparin sodium API; and (iii) other products, mainly including pancreatin
APIl. We operate a CDMO business providing research and development (“R&D"),
manufacturing, quality management and program management services, through
our wholly-owned subsidiaries Cytovance Biologics, Inc. (“Cytovance”), which
specializes in the development and manufacture of recombinant pharmaceutical
products and critical non-viral vectors and intermediates for gene therapy, and SPL
Acquisition Corp. (“SPL"), which provides services in the development and
manufacture of naturally derived pharmaceutical products. The Group has obtained
exclusive development and commercial interest in Greater China for certain clinical
stage innovative drug candidates which are being developed for the treatment of
diseases with an immune system. We are also developing a self-discovered
proprietary drug candidate currently at preclinical stage.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
B IR E S A B oy AT

INDUSTRY REVIEW

Faced with the global economic restructuring and the recurrence of the pandemic,
we have experienced a challenging year in 2022. During the year, the substantial
geopolitical conflict between Russia and Ukraine continued, which had a material
impact on the global supply chain, threatening the food supply, the energy supply,
and the circulation of goods. As a result, the cost of production, logistics and trade
rose, leading to global imported inflation, which soared to the highest level in
decades. Among them, the CPI in the United States (U.S.) has been above 8% for
several months, and even reached double digits in the Eurozone and the United
Kingdom, with the CPIl in some emerging economies has also remained high. In
response to the threat of inflation, the major Western central banks have
successively started the process of raising interest rates: the Federal Reserve raised
interest rates six times in a row during the year, the European Central Bank and the
Bank of England have raised interest rates three and seven times respectively; South
Korea, Canada, Australia and other emerging economies have also followed suit,
maintaining a frequent and drastic interest rate hikes to resist pressures from
inflation, capital outflows and exchange rate depreciation. However, the tightening
effect of monetary policy adjustment is in effective as inflation remains high on the
whole. At the same time, global competitive interest rate hikes have exacerbated
the volatility of currency exchange rates in certain regions, and the market has
become more concerned about the global economic slowdown. According to the
estimates of the Organization for Economic Cooperation and Development, the
world economy grow by only 3.1% in 2022, down significantly from 5.9% in the
previous year. The year 2022 was a watershed for the COVID-19 pandemic and an
important turning point towards the end of the pandemic. Countries have also
accelerated the implementation of mandatory vaccination orders. While relieving
the threat to the medical system and society caused by the pandemic, they have
also rationally and effectively adjusted their policies and relaxed strict anti-epidemic
restrictions, so that social life and economic activities can return to normal in an
orderly manner.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Although it was particularly complicated and volatile for the Group’s business
environment during 2022 due to the geopolitical conflict, sluggish macro-economy
and the spread of the pandemic, we maintained our strategic focus and made good
progress in achieving our strategic objectives. Over the past year, Hepalink has
strictly implemented the scheduled plans to proactively improve its financial
performance and profitability as well as the intrinsic value of the enterprise, and
successfully completed the annual plans and targets. The Group has actively
enhanced its strategic thinking and decision-making capacity and strengthened the
applications of strategic, forward-looking and systematic thinking in the Group'’s
operations through investigation and research. Strengthening strategic guidance
and adhering to the problem orientation, we realized the need to recognize the
challenges in both the industry and the market, and utilize our own advantages to
identify and capture the opportunities in a timely manner. Remodeling processes,
enhancing mechanisms and innovating systems with digital thinking, we established
a data-driven business management model, focusing on value enhancement and
pursuing high-quality development.

In 2022, Hepalink drove further the implementation of the Group’s supply chain
strategy. We assess the situation with an efficient response and have a real-time
and accurate understanding of the supply chain dynamics. Based on the analysis of
inventory and business data, we have a comprehensive knowledge of warehouse
management, transportation flow, supply collaboration and resource allocation,
achieving synergies between upstream and downstream businesses to quickly
respond to sales and customer demand. During the year under review, we actively
upgraded our supply chain management system and built a more resilient global
supply chain to cope with volatility in operating conditions and the risks of
logistics. Through the design and precise implementation of the supply chain
strategy, we were able to ensure the supply of raw materials and a smooth
production process, thus promoting the cost-effectiveness of the Group’s business.
We also took the initiative to set up information channels in the value chain,
improve the transparency of supply and demand information, and obtain
information about changes in demand and production and supply restrictions.
Timely and transparent market information enables us to accurately and promptly
adjust production plans to changes in the environment, and reduce the potential
risk of supply-demand mismatch and exaggerating the short-term volatility caused
by information asymmetry. The key objectives of the Group’s supply chain strategy
are globalization, business flexibility and cost competitiveness. Hepalink will
continue to drive further the development of supply chain coordination,
standardization, digitization and globalization, and will focus on developing its
strategic supply chain system with the connection of production, supply and sales
and effective integration of domestic and foreign trade, to support high-quality
business development, and to provide a solid foundation and strong support for
the development of dual-circulation mutual promotion domestically and
internationally.
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In conclusion, the Group has shown a favorable development trend in operational B AEER T _iﬁ: mEWE - HE
efficiency, sales scale, cost control and global supply chain management in 2022. R AR R A Bk EEZEKE
Firstly, double-digit growth was recorded in both revenue and earnings; Secondly, HEERRITFNBERERREY - Ef’ﬁ A R B
the market share and sales scale of each segment continued to increase; Thirdly, BEREMEER £ Rh‘&iﬁam DR AR B
gross profit margin improved as compared with the corresponding period of last iﬁ%fﬁﬁﬁ iﬁiiﬂ CEFEREF RS
year; Fourthly, the global supply chain management has been effectively improved FERME B ifT Fgﬁiﬁﬁﬁxﬁmﬂ
to better support the operational needs of Hepalink. FHMNEREEmRNERRE -

In 2022, profit attributable to equity holders of the Company increased by 202.0% RIBEZZF ARAERFAEAERML &R

to RMB727.1 million. The basic earnings per share for 2022 was RMB0.50 as EIN202.0%EARKET271BEE L Z T2

compared to RMBO.16 for 2021. FHEREXRRBNABARKEST  H=F
Z—FARARK0.16TT °

BUSINESS REVIEW ¥ OB

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded a revenue of approximately AEERRTEHANEBRALN ARET,151.0
RMB7,151.0 million, representing an increase of approximately 12.4% as compared BEL R-ZE ffii-‘ﬁmu 4% o 7N EH
with 2021. During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded a profit attributable to RBEHRNBEEERAFAEE ZEBEEFNL

equity holders of the parent of approximately RMB727.1 million (2021: RARBIZINVBEEBELT(ZZEZ—F:HAR
approximately RMB240.8 million), representing a year-on-year increase of 202.0%. #240.8EHT) * ALLIEHN202.0% °

During the Reporting Period, operating income for each business segment is as WMEHAN  BEBOBERWABRAT -

follows:
For the year ended December 31,
BE+t-_A=1+—HLEE
2022 2021
Operating Operating Year-on-year
income income increase/
—E=-= T —F decrease
WA EEIRA @] bE 38 R
RMB’000 RMB'000 (%)
Business Segment EX 3k ARBT T ARETTT (%)
Sales of products $HE = m 6,012,848 5,504,926 9.2%
Finished dose pharmaceutical products a2 27| 3,210,465 2,638,151 21.7%
API API 2,673,754 2,721,733 (1.8)%
Others® HAbm 128,629 145,042 (11.3)%
CDMO service CDMOMR T 1,084,066 813,104 33.3%
Others®? H @ 54,125 41,756 29.6%
Total &5t 7,151,039 6,359,786 12.4%
Notes: At
(1) Other products mainly include pancreatin API. (1) EMERTEEBRIBAP -
(2) Other business mainly includes manufacture and marketing services, processing services, (2) HEM¥EKSTERRLEENSRSE  MIRS
technical support services and other services. BT 2 B AR S R H A RIS 55 -
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The Group mainly operates four main business focus, including (i) the Finished Dose
Pharmaceutical Business; (i) the API business; (iii) CDMO business; and (iv) the
innovative drugs.

FINISHED DOSE PHARMACEUTICAL BUSINESS

During the Reporting Period, the finished dose pharmaceutical products business of
the Group continued to maintain a rapid growth trend with sales revenue increased
by 21.7% or approximately RMB572.3 million to approximately RMB3,210.5 million
as compared with the same period of last year, accounting for 44.9% of the
Group's total revenue, and the gross profit margin was 35.3%.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s finished dose enoxaparin sodium
pharmaceutical products achieved excellent performance, and its sales scale
continued to grow globally, with year-on-year sales breakthroughs in major
regional markets such as Europe, the U.S. and China. The total annual global sales
volume exceeding 227 million for the first time, up 22.3% year-on-year, with
growth recorded in the above markets.

Europe remains the major market for the Group’s finished dose pharmaceutical
products business. During the Reporting Period, higher inflation, interest rate hikes
and weaker exchange rates in the European market had a detrimental effect on our
business environment, however, the Group’s sales in Europe continued to grow
with sales of over 160 million units for the year. Based on the sales volume in 2022,
our enoxaparin finished dose pharmaceutical products ranked in second place in
the European market, with both sales volume and market share reaching a new
peak. During the Reporting Period, Hepalink actively seized the opportunity of the
increase in both price and volume in European markets to achieved both sales
volume and price growth of enoxaparin finished dose pharmaceutical products on
the one hand, and actively reduce the impact of exchange rate fluctuations on the
other. Our products have achieved brand influence, competitive advantages and a
leading market position for the self-operated business in five major countries. At
the same time, we strengthened the sales tracking of hospital channels, strictly
managed the supply of products, and made better planning for bidding and sales
strategies of various regions through data analysis, ensuring proper effort for sales
and supply. In addition, we continued to enhance the synergy of drugstore sales,
further increasing the spillover effect of hospital networks with a boost on the sales
scale of retail channels, thereby improving profitability. Finally, the Group scaled up
the efforts of expansion in European countries and successfully expanded the sales
in markets such as France and Switzerland during the Reporting Period, further
consolidating its market position in Europe. In November 2022, the Group also
actively participated in European marketing exhibitions and conferences to make
greater efforts in the existing customer base and attract new customers.
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Sales in the U.S. market continue to advance in line with strategic objectives and
achieve targeted growth. During the Reporting Period, the Group continued to
collaborate with its strategic partners in the U.S., and the sales volume of finished
dose enoxaparin sodium pharmaceutical product maintained steady growth, and
have been rapidly gaining recognition in the U.S. market in the past two years,
where it has become a market leader. During the Reporting Period, the Group’s
sales office in the U.S. started operation. Through the efforts of our professional
marketing team, our proprietary standard finished dose heparin sodium
pharmaceutical products was successfully launched and recorded sales. Meanwhile,
with a marketing network covering 50 states in the United States, the Group
currently has contracts with the three largest distributors in the United States as
well as contracts with the largest Group Purchasing Organizations and dialysis
centers in the United States. In March 2023, Shenzhen Techdow Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen Techdow"), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, has
been notified that, the U.S. Food and Drug Administration (“FDA") had approved
the abbreviated new drug application (“ANDA") for its enoxaparin sodium
injection. The ANDA approval indicated that Hepalink’s enoxaparin sodium finished
doses can be sold in the United States market by its own sales team, which will
further increase the market share of the Grpup’s enoxaparin sodium finished doses
in the United States through the coverage of its own sales network and pipeline.

Sales in the China market showed strong resilience. Faced with the changing
pandemic prevention measures, the overall sales volume still exceeded 13 million
units, representing an increase of more than 50%. During the Reporting Period, the
Group achieved sales expansion in more than 30 provinces and cities nationwide,
and successfully entered into the drug procurement catalogs of various provinces
and cities. Simultaneously, with the brand reputation and excellent quality
domestically and abroad, Hepalink’s Prolongin (&/%&%) has also become the first
enoxaparin sodium injection brand to reach online sales cooperation with multiple
internet platforms, starting a new chapter of enoxaparin sodium injection in digital
online medicine in China. Furthermore, during the Reporting Period, the Group
held several medical conferences and participated in more than 400 academic
conferences and other various academic activities to promote academic exchanges
and continuously contributed to popular science education in the field of low
molecular weight heparin in China.
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International non-European and American markets achieved stable performance.
During the Reporting Period, the international non-European and American markets
were in a phase of de-stocking and the medical system was gradually returning to
normal. The demand for finished dose enoxaparin sodium pharmaceutical product
was relatively stable compared to the peak of the pandemic. The Group’s sales level
in the international non-European and American markets was similar to that of the
corresponding period of last year. In 2022, we steadily pushed forward the strategic
measures for the international non-European and American markets with a
long-term plan. During the Reporting Period, the Group eagerly sought to increase
its market share in the existing market, among which the sales volume in Malaysia,
Brazil and Saudi Arabia increased significantly, while we also vigorously promoted
the international drug registration application and increased the number of
countries in which the products were sold. The Group continued to explore the
sales channels, closely kept track of the bidding process, sought cooperation from
local sales partners, and coordinated and supplemented the whole channel
operation through multiple channels to promote the steady development of the
sales operation.

During the Reporting Period, based on the fast-growing business demand and
future development planning, the construction project of the production line of the
finished dose pharmaceutical products at the Hepalink park, Pingshan District was
officially commenced. The first phase of the project has a targeted production
capacity of 360 million units/year, with delivery expected to be completed in 2024
and commercial batch production to be achieved in 2025. We believe that the
Group's finished dose pharmaceutical products business will receive more solid and
strong support with the completion of the new production line.

About finished dose enoxaparin sodium pharmaceutical product: Finished dose
enoxaparin sodium pharmaceutical product is one type of low molecular weight
heparin (“LMWH") finished doses, which is widely used in clinical practice. Its main
indications include prophylaxis of venous thromboembolic disease (prophylaxis of
venous thrombosis), especially thrombosis related to orthopedics or general surgery;
treatment of developed deep vein embolism with or without pulmonary embolism;
used in hemodialysis and extracorporeal circulation to prevent thrombosis, etc..
Finished dose enoxaparin sodium pharmaceutical product of the Group is the first
generic drug in the European Union and was approved by the European Medicines
Agency (the "EMA") through the Centralized Procedure (CP) in 2016. According to
the Clinical Guidelines issued by the World Health Organization and the National
Institute for Health and Care Excellence of the United Kingdom, LMWH can also be

used to prevent complications caused by COVID-19.
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APl BUSINESS

During the Reporting Period, faced with the complicated external environment, the
Group overcame the impact of the pandemic and solidified its business foundation.
The Group's heparin APl business has made steady progress, with sales revenue of
approximately RMB2,673.8 million (the same period of last year: RMB2,721.7
million), accounting for 37.4% of the Group's total revenue. During the Reporting
Period, the gross profit level of the Group’s API business significantly improved,
with its gross profit margin increased by 1.1 percentage points to 27.7% (the same
period of last year: 26.6%).

After decades of development, the API industry has entered a mature stage focused
on quality improvement. Major enterprises in the industry emphasized on
continuous quality and efficiency improvement in aspects such as supply chain
optimization and digital drive to gain an advantage in market share. During the
Reporting Period, the Group accelerated the pace of global supply chain strategic
planning, striving to achieve the strategic objective of optimizing the production
operation management of relevant industrial chains. With promising results, the
Group has successfully improved the overall cost of the supply chain, implemented
a data-driven plan as well as considerably promoted cost reduction and efficiency
improvement at the production end. Leveraging on its advantages such as rich
technological experience, leading market share and strict quality assurance
mechanism, Hepalink has established the Group’s dominant position in the global
APl industry. During the Reporting Period, we implemented our business strategy to
fulfill our domestic and oversea sales orders, and fully supported and satisfied our
customers’ needs in cooperation with our domestic and foreign production bases,
resulting in a remarkable increase in the revenue of heparin APIs. In addition, the
Group has made key breakthroughs in major emerging markets such as India,
Russia and Turkey, further expanding our global sales coverage and maintaining the
Group's leading position in the global heparin market. In respect of the enoxaparin
API business, during the Reporting Period, due to the increase in exchange rate
uncertainty in certain regions, significant additional costs were passed on to local
customers, resulting in the postponement of some orders and the impact on the
sales of enoxaparin APl of the Group during the year. However, at the same time,
we also increased our marketing efforts to successfully reach long-term cooperation
agreements with several large and medium-sized customers, and obtained new
approvals in a number of major markets, laying a solid foundation for future
business growth.

About heparin APIs: Heparin is a type of anticoagulant drug with various functions
such as anticoagulation and antithrombosis. The heparin industry consists of the
initial upstream procurement of porcine small intestines, the upstream extraction of
crude heparin, the midstream manufacture of heparin APIs and the downstream
manufacture and supply of enoxaparin finished dose. Heparin Sodium API is mainly
used for the manufacture of standard heparin finished doses and LMWH APIs,
which in turn are used for the manufacture of LMWH finished doses. The Group
has two major manufacture bases for Heparin Sodium APl in China and the United
States. Apart from being partly supplied to Shenzhen Techdow Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, the Heparin Sodium APIs are mainly
sold to overseas customers, including a number of world renowned multinational
pharmaceutical enterprises.
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CDMO BUSINESS

During the Reporting Period, sales amount of CDMO business was approximately
RMB1,084.1 million (the same period of last year: RMB813.1 million). Revenue
improved significantly, with gross margin up 6.5 percentage points to 38.5%.

During the Reporting Period, Cytovance, which is part of the CDMO business of the
Group, implemented various operating standards with high requirements, standards
and quality in order to continuously improve its sales management and project
management capabilities, thereby creating value for customers with different and
diversified needs, and providing efficient and high-quality R&D and production
services. During the Reporting Period, Cytovance has become part of the Group’s
value chain, with revenue continuing the growth trend and a significant increase in
profit, in which the service revenue maintained double-digit growth and its gross
profit margin also recorded 40% or above. During the Reporting Period, the Group
optimized its business mix, enhanced its production efficiency for strategic resource
integration, and strengthened the overall operating structure of the Group and the
R&D capacity of CDMO, which provided a strong impetus for future development.
Meanwhile, SPL performed better than expected. On the one hand, it overcame the
adverse impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the CDMO business and soon
restored its operation and project management capabilities; On the other hand, it
fully satisfied the customers’ demand, and the sales revenue increased significantly
as compared with the corresponding period of last year. During the Reporting
Period, Cytovance cooperated with Avantor, a world-renowned supplier of life
sciences, advanced biotechnology and applied materials. The parties will jointly
provide plasmid production services meeting the cGMP standard of the U.S. and
GMP-grade plasmid products for biomedical customers to support the rapid
development in the field of cell and gene therapy, thereby enhancing Cytovance’s
global recognition, its technological barriers and brand advantages.
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INNOVATIVE DRUGS
AR-301 (Salvecin)

AR-301 is a fully human monoclonal IgG1 antibody (mAb) that specifically targets
S. aureus alpha-toxin. It is being developed by our shareholding subsidiary Aridis
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (a company listed on the NASDAQ, stock code: ARDS). It is
currently in a global Phase Ill clinical trial as an adjunctive therapy to standard of
care antibiotics in patients diagnosed with ventilator associated pneumonia (VAP)
caused by S. aureus. Results of a Phase I/ll clinical trial completed in the United
States in the earlier stage have shown that patients treated with AR-301 in
combination demonstrated less time spent under mechanical ventilation and higher
rates of S. aureus eradication as compared to those treated with antibiotics alone.
AR-301 was granted Fast Track Designation by the FDA and Orphan Drug
Designation by the EMA. During the Reporting Period, 174 subjects were enrolled
in the Global Phase Ill Study of Tosatoxumab (AR-301) in Combination with
Antibiotics (SOC) for the Treatment of Staphylococcus aureus Ventilator-associated
Pneumonia (VAP), and the number of cases of mITT (modified intention to treat,
mITT) was 120. At the same time, the analysis of clinical data shows that
Tosatoxumab has obvious benefits in patients over 65 years old with
ventilator-associated pneumonia, and also provides benefit results in the
comparison of therapeutic effects on patients with Methicillin-resistant
Staphylococcus aureus (MRSA). At present, Aridis Pharmaceuticals, Inc. plans to
discuss with FDA and EMA to promote the follow-up of key clinical studies among
relevant patients.

Oregovomab

Oregovomab, a murine monoclonal antibody, is an anti-CA125 immunotherapy
drug candidate being developed by our shareholding subsidiary OncoQuest Inc. It
has completed a Phase Il clinical trial as a standard treatment combined with
chemotherapy in patients with advanced primary ovarian cancer. The results of the
Phase Il clinical trial have shown the safety and efficacy of Oregovomab in such
combined standard treatment regime for advanced primary ovarian cancer patients
were in line with efficacy expectations. The Phase Il clinical results have shown a
significant prolongation of median progression-free survival (PFS) of 41.8 months in
such combined standard treatment regime, compared with 12.2 months in
chemotherapy-only regime with an HR of 0.46 (95% Cl: 0.28, 0.77). It also showed
a significant improvement in overall survival (OS) with an HR of 0.35 (95% Cl: 0.16,
0.76). Oregovomab has obtained Orphan Drug Designation from the FDA and the
EMA.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group's Oregovomab Phase Ill clinical trial completed the first patient dosing in
the U.S. in 2020. The global critical trial is expected to recruit 602 subjects from more
than 190 clinical centers in 17 countries. As at the date of the announcement, the
Oregovomab Phase Il clinical trial included 534 subjects globally and 21 subjects
from Taiwan.

RVX-208 (Apabetalone)

RVX-208 is a selective inhibitor of bromodomain and BET proteins with selectivity for
the second bromodomain. It is the first small molecule drugs being developed by the
shareholding subsidiary Resverlogix Corp. (a public company listed on the Toronto
Stock Exchange, stock code: RVX). RVX-208 has completed phase IlI clinical trial
(BETonMACE) in combination with standard of care to reduce major adverse
cardiovascular events among high-risk cardiovascular disease patients with type I
diabetes mellitus, recent acute coronary syndrome, and low levels of high-density
lipoprotein (HDL). RVX-208 was granted Breakthrough Therapy Designation by the
FDA in February 2020 and the clinical plan for pivotal phase Ill was approved by the
FDA in June 2020. Apabetalone, the first drug in its class to receive FDA
Breakthrough Therapy approval for a major cardiovascular indication, will further
advance its drug development program, including the planned clinical trials, and the
implementation of an accelerated development strategy. Currently, Hepalink is
actively pursuing the follow-up development plan for this drug candidate.

H1710

H1710 is a potent acetyl heparinase inhibitor self-developed by the Group. It has
an appropriate chain length to bind to the two independent heparin binding
domains (HBD) of heparanase, and its unique flexible chain and structure enable
penetration into the heparanase catalytic bag and prevent its degradation. H1710
reduces the accessibility of the heparanase catalytic bag and its ability to degrade
the natural matrix acetyl heparan sulfate (HS) in this manner. The drug candidate is
currently in the preclinical stage with non-clinical pharmacodynamic studies
demonstrating significant tumor suppression in multiple tumor models compared to
standard therapies. We are preparing for the IND filing of H1710 in China and the
United States. During the Reporting Period, H1710 has completed the production
of APIs and finished doses, has been conducting the stability study of APIs and
finished doses, completed the non-clinical toxicology study and pharmacokinetic
study, and basically completed the pre-clinical development related work.
Discussion with the FDA for Pre-IND is planned in the near future. The critical
technology R&D project of the self-developed innovative drug H1710 intended for
the treatment of pancreatic cancer has been approved by the Science, Technology
and Innovation Commission of Shenzhen.
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OUTLOOK

In 2023, the global macro-economic environment will remain challenging. The
economic cycles in Europe, the U.S. and China will be notably different. China’s
economic rebound will be in sharp contrast to those in Europe and the U.S. facing
risks of recession. The worst bout of inflation in four decades has led to a decline
of per capita disposable income in Europe and the U.S.. The global economy has
entered a low growth stage as the tightening of monetary policies imposed by the
government has also tightened the liquidity of overseas markets. Concurrently, with
a prudent and stable approach in relaxing anti-epidemic measures, there is a high
possibility of introducing a stable growth policy. China’s economy is expected to
stabilize and rebound in 2023, and the macroeconomic will be improving.

Throughout the past year, thanks to the engagement of the Group, the
globalization of the supply chain of Hepalink has achieved initial results and
contributed to the improvement of operational efficiency and the establishment of
global business. Facing the future, Hepalink will further allocate global resource in
a targeted manner to give better play to its own advantages in the global supply
chain, thereby strengthening its supply chain management capability, business
flexibility and resilience for the global optimization of the value chain from end to
end. For a long time, the Group has been committed to driving the deep
integration of digitalization with industrial chains and supply chains and has
profoundly realized the vital role digitalization plays in resisting risks and enhancing
resilience in production and operation. We will continue to upgrade our data
analysis and digital management systems, and by creating a new distribution
platform, we will transform the conclusions obtained through data analysis into
practical strategic initiatives, and formulate action plans to support production and
manufacturing, operation management, sales services and market development.
With the digitalization of all elements of the Group’s global industrial chain and
supply chain, we will have to keep up with market changes, even gain insight into
changes before the market finds out. We will also make pre-judgement based on
trends to fully tap market potential, lay out sales strategies and seize market
opportunities. In addition, Hepalink will continue to actively optimize the
production allocation, improve production efficiency, and formulate periodic review
to evaluate the operating position horizontally and vertically, so as to improve the
safety and quality systems of the Group and realize further cost reduction and
efficiency improvement.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

In the finished dose pharmaceutical products business, the Group will strive to
secure national growth and market leadership. In the China market, the launch of
the 8th centralized drug procurement is of great significance for Hepalink to the
building of brand awareness and the sales of the finished dose pharmaceutical
products. Hepalink will expand the Group’s market share in China through the
centralized procurement platform and accelerate regional sales growth. We will
further promote the development of the finished dose pharmaceutical products
market in China, which will become a new growth driver for the Group.
International development is an important strategy that we have always adhered
to. Through international sales presence and the continuous improvement of the
overseas competitiveness and brand influence of Hepalink, the Group’s
international strategy and exploration are proven to be effective. Looking at the
European and American markets, the interest rate hike process in various
economies in the past year has affected the interest expenses of enterprises and
increased the operating costs. However, with the relatively stable production and
operation conditions of the Group at present, as well as the favorable factors and
cost advantages brought by the global layout and supply chain network, there is
still more room for sales expansion in the European market. In the U.S. market, the
Group will continue to cooperate with strategic partners to lead the steady
development of its finished dose pharmaceutical products business and consolidate
its market position. Furthermore, we will strengthen the operation of our own
team, adjust our sales management approaches, and actively establish sales
channels to realize orderly growth of our business. In other overseas markets,
Hepalink will speed up market access and registration with proactive market
exploration. Simultaneously, we will increase the sales volume in the existing
overseas markets as well as the existing markets, refine our business and expand
the scale of the existing markets.

In respect of API business, the Group will pay attention to the optimization and
better resource allocation, fully utilize to the Group’s comprehensive advantages in
product, marketing, production and operation management, and consolidate the
Group's leading position in the API industry. We will leverage the decisive role of
the market in resource allocation, and develop our business in a targeted manner
to maintain stable business growth by focusing on regional economies and the
differentiated characteristics of our target customers. At the same time, the Group
will continue to extend down the value chain to support the development of the
downstream core business, and maintain strategic support. In addition, the Group
will increase its efforts on market expansion efforts and focus on promoting the
sales of high-tech, high-quality and high-value-added enoxaparin API products to
achieve orderly business development and steady revenue growth.
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In terms of the CDMO business, through years of efforts, Hepalink has
fundamentally established a service system for R&D and production of mammalian
cell culture and microbial fermentation throughout the whole pre-clinical and
clinical development process. Based on the existing CDMO layout, the Group will
optimize the resource allocation to improve the production capacity and integrate
the cell culture platform. On the one hand, the Group will realize more production
capacity release to meet future business needs, and on the other hand, the Group
will be able to meet the needs of small-scale, pilot-scale and commercial projects of
customers more flexibly and cover customers’ needs more comprehensively.
Moreover, the Group has initiated cooperation projects with strategic partners to
implement various tasks with high requirements, standards and quality work
specifications, so as to form an embedded cooperation relationship on the premise
of meeting the two key indicators: on-time rate and realization rate, and provide
project reserve for continuous orders.

With regard to innovative drugs, the Group will continue to adhere to the principles
of rational investment, effective allocation, forward-looking planning and
sophisticated management of innovative drug R&D resources allocation, and
promote the clinical development process of innovative drugs for substantive
progress, consequently ensuring mutual benefit and win-win results for all parties.

Looking forward to 2023, Hepalink will continue to implement and drive its own
strategic layout, the expansion and diversified integration of the Group’s global
supply chain network as well as maintain steady business development to
continuously improve operational efficiency and financial indicators. In the
foreseeable and constantly changing operating environment, we will uphold our
industry chain advantages to ensure the inventory and accessibility of the Group’s
business development resources with the enhancement of the value of each
business segment. While consolidating its existing foundation, the Group actively
explored suitable opportunities to achieve a new breakthrough in the Group’s
business and demonstrate to the market the business expertise, strategic vision,
and development potential of Hepalink as an industry leader. In this new year,
despite the changing and complex market conditions, the Group is optimistic about
the future prospects and opportunities, it will continue to unswervingly implement
the existing strategy, review the situation and observe the market trend, proactively
integrate the Group's resources and business, and steadily move towards its
strategic goal of becoming a world-leading innovative multinational pharmaceutical
enterprise.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW B % B B8
Revenue /PN

For the year ended December 31,

BE+-HA=+t—HLFE

2022 2022 2021 2021
Sales % of Sales % of Year-on-year
amount Revenue amount Revenue increase/
=2—_- —2== —EZ-—F —T-—F decrease (%)
HERE e HER =g d [ bt 38 Ak

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥®T (%) AR®FT (%) (%)
sale of goods HEES 6,012,848 84.1% 5,504,926 86.6% 9.2%
Finished dose pharmaceutical products %) &1 3,210,465 44.9% 2,638,151 41.5% 21.7%
API API 2,673,754 37.4% 2,721,733 42.8% (1.8%)
Others™ H Ao 128,629 1.8% 145,042 2.3% (11.3%)
CDMO services CDMOBR 7 1,084,066 15.2% 813,104 12.8% 33.3%
Others®@ Hip@ 54,125 0.7% 41,756 0.6% 29.6%
Total ait 7,151,039 100% 6,359,786 100% 12.4%

Revenue from manufacturing and sales of goods increased by RMB508.0 million to HEEMEE REENRALINARES08.0
RMB6,012.9 million, accounting for 84.1% of the total revenue during the BETEARKE6012988 T HHRMEHR
Reporting Period, as compared with RMB5,504.9 million or 86.6% of the Group's MR A841%  HEE T —FRBMAIBAR
revenue in the corresponding period in 2021. The increase in revenue from #5,504.98 & JT 315 A & B K A86.6% © $H
manufacturing and sales of goods was mainly due to the year-on-year increase in EEMEEREENWASGIEN 2/
sales revenue of finished dose pharmaceutical products during the year. The NEREYEBAOHERARLLIERAHR -
finished dose pharmaceutical products business benefited from the rapid growth of BIMERIHZN T - _FREBREM
the Group’s sales in Europe, the United States and China markets in 2022, with a ZEFFETESNHEHEERRNER  HE
year-on-year increase in average sales price and a year-on-year increase of 21.7% HERLLEA S B HEE RARKLE
in sales revenue of the finished dose pharmaceutical products business. K21.7% °
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Cost of sales

For the Reporting Period, cost of sales increased by RMB494.7 million to
RMB4,860.9 million, as compared with RMB4,366.2 million for the corresponding
period in 2021. The increase in cost of sales was mainly due to the increase in cost
of sales of finished dose pharmaceutical products and CDMO during the Reporting
Period.

Gross Profit

HER AR

MEBRA  HERAEMARELI47TH5E T
EARMB486095E L HEL=-F Z—F[
BRI A ARKAL366.28 8T ° #E BKANIE N
WEZRAL|EHRNEY KB RCDMOK)
HERA LT -

EZR

For the year ended December 31,

BE+-A=+-HLEE

2022 2021

2022 Gross profit 2021 Gross profit

Gross profit margin Gross profit margin

—E-= —E_— T —F ZE-—F

EF EES E A ER=x

RMB’000 (%) RMB'000 (%)

ARBT T (%) AR®BTT (%)

Sale of goods HEE S 1,821,343 30.3% 1,691,939 30.7%

Finished dose pharmaceutical products %4 %17 1,132,402 35.3% 973,785 36.9%

API API 741,900 27.7% 724,234 26.6%

Others™ E M (52,959) (41.2%) (6,080) (4.2%)

CDMO services CDMOPRR % 417,334 38.5% 259,803 32.0%

Others®? H @ 51,512 95.2% 41,840 100.2%

Total &% 2,290,189 32.0% 1,993,582 31.3%
Notes: B 5E

(1) Other products mainly include Pancreatin API.

(2) Other business mainly includes manufacture and marketing services, processing services,
technical support services and other services.

For the Reporting Period, gross profit increased by RMB296.6 million to
RMB2,290.2 million, as compared with RMB1,993.6 million in the corresponding
period in 2021. For the Reporting Period, gross profit margin increased by 0.7
percentage points to 32.0%, as compared with 31.3% for the corresponding
period in 2021. The increase in gross profit margin was mainly due to the increase
in cost of sales as a result of higher sales volume of finished dose pharmaceutical
products.

(1) HthEREZBIERBAP -

(2) HMEBIBREEEHSRY - MIRS
B HRBE -

MEHA - EFEIMARE20668BE8TEA
R#2,29028&8 T k=T =—F R A
BARE1,993.6A 8L HEMAN TR =
M —Z = —FFBA /31.3% - L3R0.71E
BAHE32.0%  EFEHEREFEZRANE
BIfHE EFA SRS KA INATE -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FINANCE COSTS

The Group's finance costs mainly consist of interest on bank borrowings and
corporate bonds and other finance costs. For the Reporting Period, finance costs
increased by RMB35.5 million to RMB245.6 million, as compared with RMB210.1
million for the corresponding period in 2021, representing an increase of 16.9%.
The increase in finance costs was mainly due to an increase in interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings as compared with the corresponding period in 2021.

TAXATION

For the Reporting Period, income tax expense was RMB115.2 million, as compared
with an income tax credit of RMB11.1 million for the corresponding period in 2021,
representing an increase of approximately 1,137.8%.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE COMPANY

For the Reporting Period, profit attributable to equity holders of the Company was
RMB727.1 million, as compared with RMB240.8 million for the corresponding
period in 2021, representing an increase of approximately 202.0%.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to
equity holders of the Company, by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
of the Company in issue for the Reporting Period. The diluted earnings per share is
calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company, by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares of the Company in issue for the
Reporting Period (with adjustments made for all potential dilution effect of the
ordinary shares).

For the Reporting Period, both basic earnings per share and diluted earnings per
share were RMBO0.50, as compared with RMBO0.16 for the corresponding period in
2021, representing an increase of approximately 212.5%.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES
Treasury Policies

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to maintain its ability
to continue as a going concern so that the Group can constantly provide returns
for shareholders of the Company and benefits for other stakeholders by
implementing proper product pricing and securing access to financing at reasonable
costs. The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital structure
and makes adjustments by taking into consideration the changes in economic
conditions, its future capital requirements, prevailing and expected profitability and
operating cash flows, expected capital expenditures and expected strategic
investment opportunities. The Group closely monitors its debt-to-asset ratio, which
is defined as total borrowings divided by total assets.
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Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk arises from sales or purchases by operating units in currencies
other than the units’ functional currencies. The Group has transactional currency
exposures and currency exposures from our interest-bearing bank borrowings. The
Group has a foreign currency hedging policy to mitigate our foreign currency risk
and monitor foreign exchange exposure from time to time to adjust our hedging
measures.

For the Reporting Period, the Group recorded a net foreign exchange gain of
RMB186.3 million, and recorded a net foreign exchange loss of RMB205.0 million
for the same period in 2021. Currently, the Group does not employ any financial
instruments to hedge against foreign currency risk.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group's liquidity remains strong. During the Reporting Period, the Group’s
funds were primary from its ordinary business. As at December 31, 2022, the
Group's cash and bank balances were approximately RMB1,319.7 million
(December 31, 2021: approximately RMB1,479.6 million).

Capital Structure

As at December 31, 2022, the Group recorded short-term loans of approximately
RMB4,020.8 million (December 31, 2021: approximately RMB3,268.2 million) and
long-term loans of approximately RMB2,296.7 million (December 31, 2021:
approximately RMB2,250.3 million).

Pledge of Assets

As at December 31, 2022, the Group's assets of approximately RMB3,182.0 million
were pledged to banks and other financial institutions to secure the credit facilities
granted to the Group (December 31, 2021: approximately RMB2,491.7 million).

Contingent Liabilities

As at December 31, 2022, neither the Group nor the Company had material
contingent liabilities (December 31, 2021: nil).

Asset-liability Ratio

As at December 31, 2022, the Group's total assets amounted to approximately
RMB20,814.2 million, (December 31, 2021: approximately RMB19,108.2 million),
whereas the total liabilities amounted to approximately RMB8,406.6 million
(December 31, 2021: approximately RMB7,584.9 million). The asset-liability ratio
(i.e., total liabilities divided by total assets) was approximately 40.4% (December
31, 2021: approximately 39.7%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Interest Rate Risk

The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates to the
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings with floating interest rates. The
Group's policy is to manage our interest cost using a mix of fixed and variable rate
debts. As at December 31, 2022, the Group had approximately 92.7%
interest-bearing borrowings bearing interest at fixed rates (December 31, 2021:
approximately 93.7%).

Significant Investment Held

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not hold any significant Investment.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries,
Associates and Joint Ventures

During the Reporting Period, the Group did not have any material acquisitions and
disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures.

Future Plan For Material Investments or Capital Assets

As of December 31, 2022, save for the “Use of Proceeds”, the Group did not have

any existing plan for acquiring other material investments or capital assets.
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Indebtedness B

As at As at

December 31, December 31,

2022 2021

R=-Z=-Z RZTZ—F

+=—A=+—8H +=A=+—8H

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR% T ARETF T

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings /28R 1T & H b & 3% 6,317,464 5,518,436
Lease liabilities HEBE 146,439 135,755
Total financial indebtedness S RMETS B 6,463,903 5,654,191
Pledged bank deposits BIKFRITFER (69,388) (11,581)
Net financial indebtedness S RUETS FE 6,394,515 5,642,610
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I\/Ianagement Discussion and Analysis

EEEN WD

The maturity profile of the Group's interest-bearing bank and other borrowings is REBEGERITREAMER 2 BERBWT
set out as follows:

As at As at
December 31, December 31,
2022 2021
REZBZZF MZEZ—4
+=HA=+-—H +=—A=+—8
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARBFT

Repayable: ARTIIHREEER
Within one year or on demand —FRRIEEK 4,020,784 3,268,166
After one year but within two years —FRERMFNA 1,404,818 1,604,635
After two years but within five years MEZRBRAEFEA 435,195 143,412
After five years RAF#% 456,667 502,223
Total &3t 6,317,464 5,518,436

The Group's bank lending as at December 31, 2022 was approximately RMB4,311.0 AEEBRTEER-_ZE=-_=F+=-A=+—

million (December 31, 2021: RMB3,840.0 million). As at December 31, 2022, the HHOABARKIIN BB L(ZE_—F+=
Group's corporate bond was approximately RMB1,403.0 million (December 31, A=+—H: AR¥3,840088 ) -RZF
2021: RMB1,610.7 million). As at December 31, 2022, the Group's total amount of —ZF+ZRA=Z+—H AEEZRAFEESH
other lending was RMB603.4 million (December 31, 2021: RMB67.7 million). HARARE1,403.08 BT (ZE=_—F+=A4

Z=+—8: ARE16107EET) R _F
T+ A=+—RB AEEZEMES
BEAAREE034EE L (T —F+=
A=+—8: AR¥K67.7688 ) °
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Li (Z%%), aged 59, spouse of Ms. Li Tan and brother-in-law of Mr. Shan Yu,
is the chairman of the Board, an executive Director and the founder of our
Company. Mr. Li has over 28 years of experience in the pharmaceutical industry. He
is primarily responsible for the major decision-making and strategic planning of our
Group and oversees the financial and external affairs of our Group. As the chairman
of our Strategy Development Committee, Mr. Li spearheads our Group’s business
strategies. Mr. Li led the innovative drugs sector since 2012. Mr. Li approved our
strategies in the CDMO sector and has participated in the management of the
CDMO business since our acquisition of Cytovance in 2015.

Mr. Li founded the Company and was appointed as the chairman of the Board in
April 1998. Mr. Li has also been serving as a director of Topknow since May 2000;
a director of Feilaishi since June 2008; a director of Leren Technology since August
2007; a director of Hepalink Europe AB since February 2010; a director of Shenzhen
Techdow since November 2010; a director of Hepalink (Hong Kong) since June
2014; a director of Techdow Pharmaceutical (Hong Kong) Co., Ltd. since May 2013;
a director of Hepalink USA since April 2014; a director of Shenzhen Dekang
Investment Development Co., Ltd. since March 2015; a director of Shenzhen Fanpu
Biotechnology Co., Ltd. since April 2015; a director of Cytovance since October
2015; a director of OncoVent since July 2016; a director of Shenzhen Arimab
Biomedical Co., Ltd. since July 2018; and a director of HighTide since October
2018; a director of Shenzhen Hightide Biopharmaceutical Co., Ltd. from November
2011 to October 2020; a director of Shanghai Hightide Biopharmaceutical Co., Ltd.
from March 2014 to October 2020; and a director of Shenzhen Junshengkang
Biotechnology Co., Ltd. from July 2015 to September 2020.

Mr. Li graduated from Chengdu University of Science and Technology (which later
became Sichuan University) in China with a bachelor of science degree in chemistry
in July 1987 and obtained the qualification of senior manager from the Vocational
Skills Identification Center in February 2005.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

E5 EBEEMAEAEEE

Ms. Li Tan (ZF1H), aged 58, spouse of Mr. Li Li and sister of Mr. Shan Yu, is our
executive Director, co-founder and deputy general manager. Ms. Li has over 28
years of experience in the pharmaceutical industry. She is primarily responsible for
the major decision-making of our Group and oversees the business development
activities and management of human resources of our Group. As a member of our
Strategy Development Committee, Ms. Li also actively participates in the
formulation and implementation of our Group's business strategies, including our
strategies in the innovative drugs and the CDMO sectors.

Ms. Li co-founded the Company and was appointed as our Director and deputy
general manager in April 1998. Ms. Li has also been serving as a director of
Topknow since August 2007; the managing partner of Jintiantu since August 2007;
a director of Hepalink (Hong Kong) since June 2014; a director of Shenzhen
Techdow since November 2010; a director of Hepalink USA, since October 2013; a
director of SPL since August 2015 and a director of Kymab Group Limited from
November 2016 to January 2021.

Ms. Li graduated from Chengdu University of Science and Technology (which later
became Sichuan University) in China with a bachelor of science degree in chemistry
in July 1987 and obtained the qualification of senior manager from the Vocational
Skills Identification Center in February 2005.

Mr. Shan Yu (85), aged 62, brother of Ms. Li Tan and brother-in-law of Mr. Li Li,
is our executive Director, co-founder and general manager. Mr. Shan has over 28
years of experience in the pharmaceutical industry. He is primarily responsible for
the major decision-making of our Group and oversees the production capacity,
security, logistics and external affairs of our Group. Mr. Shan also actively
participates in the implementation of our Group’s business strategies, including our
strategies in the innovative drugs and CDMO sectors.

Mr. Shan co-founded the Company and was appointed as our Director and general
manager in April 1998. Mr. Shan has also been serving as a director of Shenzhen
Topknow Industrial Development Co., Ltd. since October 2000; a managing partner
of Shuidi Shichuan since August 2007; a director of Chengdu Sunrace Co., Ltd.
since November 2009; a director of Shenzhen Beidi Aoke Technology Development
Co., Ltd. since December 2009; a director of Shandong Ruisheng since July 2010; a
director of Shenzhen Pingshan New District Hepalink Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. since
July 2013; and a director of Hepalink USA since April 2014.

Mr. Shan graduated from Peking University in China with a bachelor of science
degree in applied physics in July 1982 and obtained the qualification of senior
manager from the Vocational Skills Identification Center in February 2005.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

Independent non-executive Directors

Dr. Lu Chuan (&=)l]), aged 53, is our independent non-executive Director. Dr. Lu
joined the Company and was appointed as an independent Director in December
2019. Dr. Lu has been serving as a vice president of Xingye Alloy Material Group
Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code:
505) since October 2019.

Dr. Lu served as an assistant engineer of Nanjing Jinling Shipyard Company Limited
from August 1991 to August 1994. From July 1997 to August 2005, Dr. Lu worked
at Shenzhen Nonferrous Metals Finance Co., Ltd. as a research fellow of the
investment bank department. From August 2005 to November 2018, Dr. Lu worked
as a managing director assistant and deputy general manager of Yinjian
International Industrial Co., Ltd. Dr. Lu served as a director of Shenzhen
Zhonggingbao Interactive Network Co., Ltd. (A share stock code on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange: 300052) from April 2008 to April 2012, a non-executive director
of China Geothermal Industry Development Group Limited (a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 8128) from September 2008 to
March 2009, a non-executive director of E-Commodities Holdings Limited (a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1733) from
June 2010 to July 2016, and director of Ningxia West King Liquor Co., Ltd. from
October 2011 to February 2014.

Dr. Lu graduated from Wuhan University of Technology in China with a bachelor’s
degree in naval mechanical engineering in July 1991, graduated from Huazhong
University of Science and Technology in China with a master’s degree in business
management in May 1997 and a doctorate in management in December 2006.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
55 ESEkaREERE

Mr. Chen Junfa (FR{£%%), aged 58, is our independent non-executive Director.
Mr. Chen joined the Company and was appointed as an independent Director in
May 2017. Mr. Chen has also been serving as an independent non-executive
director and an audit committee member of Lomon Billions Group Co., Ltd. (A
share stock code on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange: 002601) from April 2014 to
April 2020; an independent non-executive director and an audit committee member
of Shenzhen Mason Technology Co., Ltd. (A share stock code on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange: 002654) from July 2014 to October 2020; the deputy general
manager of Shenzhen Pengxin Asset, Land and Real Estate Appraisal Co., Ltd. since
April 2016; and an independent non-executive director of O-film Light Group Co.,
Ltd. (A share stock code on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange: 002456) since
November 2017.

Mr. Chen previously served as an independent non-executive director and audit
committee member of Shenzhen Yitoa Intelligent Control Co., Ltd. (A share stock
code on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange: 300131) from May 2011 to November
2017; and an independent non-executive director of Zibo Qixiang Tengda Chemical
Co., Ltd. (A share stock code on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange: 002408) from
March 2014 to April 2017.

Mr. Chen served as a project manager of Shenzhen Zhonghua Accounting Firm
from July 1993 to December 1997. He served as director, chairman of the board
and general manager of Shenzhen Zhongginxin Asset Appraisal Co., Ltd. from
October 2000 to June 2008 and served as the general manager of Shenzhen Jinkai
Zhongginxin Asset Appraisal Co., Ltd. from June 2008 to December 2009.
Mr. Chen served as the deputy general manager of Shenzhen Dezhengxin
International Asset Appraisal Co., Ltd. from January 2010 to March 2016.

Mr. Chen obtained his bachelor’s degree in engineering from Beijing University of
Science and Technology in China in July 1988 and graduated from Nankai
University in China with a master’s degree in economics majoring in political
economics in July 1993. Mr. Chen became a non-practicing member of the Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants in October 1994 and first obtained the
People’s Republic of China Certificate of Certified Public Valuer in August 1997.

Mr. Wang Zhaohui (FZ}%), aged 45, is our independent non-executive Director.
Mr. Wang joined the Company and was appointed as an independent Director in
July 2017. Mr. Wang has also been serving as the founding partner of Ruchuan
Capital Investment Fund since April 2016. From June 2001 to August 2009,
Mr. Wang served as a senior journalist of Chinese College Students magazine.
Mr. Wang served as the public relations manager of Innovation (Beijing) Software
Development Co., Ltd. from September 2009 to January 2011, served as the public
relations manager at Beijing Innovation Ark Technology Co., Ltd. from February
2011 to August 2015, and worked at Sinovation Ventures (Beijing) Enterprise
Management Co., Ltd. as the director and deputy general manager from September
2015 to April 2016.

Mr. Wang graduated from the China University of Geosciences in China with a
bachelor’s degree in engineering in July 2001.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

SUPERVISORS

Mr. Zheng Zehui (¥82}Z), aged 53, is the chairman of our Supervisory Committee.
Mr. Zheng has also been serving as the general manager of URIT Medical Electronic
Sales Co., Ltd. since October 2006. Mr. Zheng graduated from Wuhan University in
China with a bachelor’s degree in biochemistry in July 1992 and graduated from
China Europe International Business School in China with a master’s degree in
business administration in October 2011.

Ms. Tang Haijun (E%19), aged 44, is a Supervisor and the manager of the GXP
document control department of our Company. Ms. Tang joined the Company in
February 2001 and was appointed as our Supervisor in December 2007.

Ms. Tang graduated from Sun Yat-sen University in China with a bachelor’s degree
in administrative management in July 2014.

Ms. Su Jilan (8R4CBJ), aged 43, is an employee Supervisor of our Company. Ms. Su
joined the Company in February 2004 and was appointed as our employee
Supervisor in December 2007. Ms. Su served as the deputy manager of the quality
inspection department of our Company from April 2014 to June 2021. She has
been the Inspection Module Manager of our Quality Control Department since June
2021.

Ms. Su graduated from Xi’an Jiaotong University in China with a bachelor of
science degree in pharmacy in July 2001. Ms. Su obtained the qualification of
assistant engineer from the Department of Human Resources of Shaanxi Province in
August 2002.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Shan Yu (), aged 62, is our executive Director and general manager. For
the biography of Mr. Shan, please refer to “— Directors — Executive Directors” of

this section.

Ms. Li Tan (%1H), aged 58, is our executive Director, co-founder and deputy
general manager. For the biography of Ms. Li, please refer to
Executive Directors” of this section.

— Directors —

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FE R SHENZHEN HEPALINK PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP CO., LTD. F&YIITisE i E L E BB HER AR e

EX EEMASAETEE

E=

EUEERL 53 REFEEF -HLAER
—EERFET AR - ERETEMNENGER
EFHERRARMAKE HEER -
FLAEXRTENRERSE  BEEMLE
Brafg WR-ZT——F+ARERPEDY
hEBER TR Sk - BISTRHERB TR -

B Lt 4455 BARRABIEFE RGXPIIE
LB -FRLITR _ZEE—F - AMALRR
Al TR ZZEE+F+_ARZTRES -

FLXEITR-Z-—NELASENPENP LR

8 EETHREEZEXE LS -

BLOWMLLT 435 ARARAABIES - #K
TR_ETZNF-_AMALARR YR =_TE
tFET - AEZAARTIES gt N =T
—MEMAE T - —FNAEEARRRE
THIHBIEE c —E-—FXNARSETAR
A E = I ER AR R SR AT R o

HUITRN-_ZZ-FLARERNTENAERLR
BALE BEEFEIEEBEBELEL - gt
RIZBZ-F\ARSRARANERBER
BV BN IE TAZAD & 183 -

_'%_Il %EEE
BREL 625 ITESHRAEKE -BHE
FEMBE  F2HAH-EF-HTEE] -

FHEL L+ 585 BITEE  BaslnAKE
BIER - BHFRIHNER  F2HAEH[—
BEE-ATE=E] -




Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
55 ESEkaREERE

Save as disclosed above, none of our Directors, Supervisors and members of senior
management is related to other Directors, Supervisors and members of the senior
management.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Qian Fengqi (8@ %), aged 37, the Secretary to the Board and one of the
joint company secretaries of the Company, is experienced in capital market research
and investment matters, in particular in the healthcare industry in the PRC.
Mr. Qian served as a research analyst at Bosera Fund Management from July 2008
to March 2010, a senior research analyst at Goldman Sachs Group (China) from
August 2010 to August 2013, and a fund manager of Norges Bank, which manages
the assets of the sovereign wealth fund of Norway, from September 2013 to April
2016, each with a focus on investments in listed securities of PRC-based healthcare
companies. Mr. Qian also served as a managing director of Lingfeng Capital
Management Co., Ltd. (BREAREEFRAA]), a private equity fund with a focus
on the fintech sector in the PRC, from January 2017 to August 2019 and from
November 2020 to August 2021, and the head of Strategic Investment Department
of We Doctor Group (Zhejiang) Co., Ltd. (B & E(#)I)HFR A 7)), a digital medical
service provider in the PRC, from August 2019 to November 2020. Mr. Qian
graduated from Fudan University with a bachelor of economics (specialising in
finance) degree in July 2008. Mr. Qian obtained the board secretary certificate
granted by the Shenzhen Stock Exchange in September 2021.

Ms. Chan Sze Ting (F#55%) is a Joint Company Secretary. Ms. Chan currently
serves as a director of corporate services of Tricor Services Limited, a global
professional services provider specializing in integrated business, corporate and
investor services. Ms. Chan has over 17 years of experience in the corporate
secretarial field. She has been providing professional corporate services to multiple
Hong Kong listed companies. Ms. Chan is a Chartered Secretary, a Chartered
Governance Professional and an Associate of both The Hong Kong Chartered
Governance Institute and The Chartered Governance Institute in the United
Kingdom. Ms. Chan holds a bachelor of laws degree from the University of London.
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The Board is pleased to present this annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Reporting Period.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is a joint stock limited company incorporated under the laws of the
PRC, the predecessor of which, Shenzhen Hepalink Industrial Development
Company Limited (FRYITEE IR EEEREBRAR)
of the PRC on April 21, 1998. The Company completed its initial public offering
and listing of its A Shares on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002399)
on May 6, 2010. The Company completed its initial public offering and listing of its

, was established under the laws

H Shares on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, (stock code: HK
9989) on July 8, 2020 (the “Listing Date”). The Group is a leading China-based
pharmaceutical company with global pharmaceutical, innovative biotech and
CDMO businesses.

The activities and particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are shown
under note 1 to the consolidated financial statements. An analysis of the Group's
revenue and operating profit for the year ended December 31, 2022 by principal
activities is set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” in
this annual report and note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group's business during the year ended December 31, 2022, which
includes a discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group, an
analysis of the Group’s performance using financial key performance indicators,
particulars of important events affecting the Group during the year ended
December 31, 2022, and an indication of likely future developments in the Group's
business, could be found in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”,
“Management Discussion and Analysis” and “Corporate Governance Report” in
this annual report. The review and discussion form part of this Directors’ report. An
account of the Company’s key relationships with its employees, customers,
suppliers and others that have a significant impact on the Company is set out in the
environmental, social and governance report of the Company for the Reporting
Period to be published in due course.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The audited consolidated results of the Group for the Reporting Period are set out
on pages 95 to 96 of this annual report.

The Board proposed the distribution of a final dividend (the “Final Dividend”) of
RMB1 (tax inclusive) per ten ordinary shares for the year ended December 31, 2022.
If such profit distribution proposal is reviewed and approved by shareholders of the
Company at the 2022 annual general meeting to be held on Monday, May 22,
2023 (the "2022 AGM"), the Final Dividend will be distributed no later than
August 15, 2023 to H shares shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company’s H shares on Wednesday, May 31, 2023. The Final
Dividend is denominated and declared in Renminbi. The Final Dividend payable to
the holders of the Company’s H shares shall be paid in Hong Kong dollars. The
amount of Hong Kong dollars payable shall be calculated on the basis of the
average closing exchange rates for Hong Kong dollars as announced by the Foreign
Exchange Trading Centre of the PRC one calendar week prior to the approval of
the Final Dividend at the 2022 AGM.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last
five financial years is set out on page 5 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property and equipment of the Group during the
Reporting Period are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements on
pages 182 to 183 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is highly aware of the importance of environment protection and has
not noted any material in compliance with all relevant laws and regulations in
relation to its business including environmental protection, health and safety,
workplace conditions, employment and the environment.

The Group has established detailed internal rules regarding environmental
protection, in particular, the discharge of air, water and solid waste and noise
control. During the year ended December 31, 2022, we did not incur any additional
costs specifically attributable to environmental compliance.

Further details of the Group’s environmental policies and performance will be
disclosed in the environmental, social and governance report of the Company for
the Reporting Period to be published in due course.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the Reporting
Period are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements on pages 223
of this annual report.
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RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein for the current
and prior years are presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
pages 99 to 100 of this annual report. Details of the movement in the reserves of
the Company during the Reporting Period is set out in note 47 to the consolidated
financial statements on pages 255 of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at December 31, 2022, the Company's distributable reserves, calculated in
accordance with PRC rules and regulation, were RMB1,233 million.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities during the Reporting Period.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association, or
the laws of the PRC, which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a
pro-rata basis to its existing Shareholders.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE H SHARE LISTING OF
THE COMPANY

The Shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
on July 8, 2020. Pursuant to the Global Offering (as defined in the Prospectus), the
Company issued 220,094,500 H Shares of the Company on July 8, 2020 with a
nominal value of RMB1 each at a price of HK$18.40 per H Share, the Company
obtained net proceeds of RMB3,538.4 million.

According to the plan on use of proceeds as set out in the prospectus,
approximately 30% of the net proceeds (or approximately RMB1,061.5 million) is
intended to be used for improving capital structure and repaying the existing debt;
approximately 30% of the net proceeds (or approximately RMB1,061.5 million) is
intended to be used for expansion of the sales and marketing network and
infrastructure in the European Union and other global markets, such as the PRC;
approximately 20% of the net proceeds (or approximately RMB707.7 million) is
intended to be used for expanding our development and manufacturing capacity
and broadening our product and services offering of Cytovance; and approximately
20% of the net proceeds (or approximately RMB707.7 million) is intended to be
used for investment in innovative drugs.
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As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated September 30, 2022 (the
“Announcement”), the remaining balance of unutilized Net Proceeds amounted
to RMB2,423.2 million, and the Group proposed to adjust the use of Net Proceeds,
under which part of the unutilized balance of the Net Proceeds will be utilized in

general meeting of the Company held on November 4, 2022. Details of the use of
Net Proceeds as at December 31, 2022 are set out in the following table:

Original
planned use Remaining Utilized
of the Net  Net Proceeds Revised during the  Accumulated Unutilized
Proceeds as as atthe allocation of year ended utilized up to as at
disclosed in date of the unutilized  December 31, December 31,  December 31,
Business objectives the Prospects Announcement  Net Proceeds 2022 2022 2022
BRER
e e REDE ABAFE BE-B--F HE-B--Ff R-B-Cf
MIEFHEM BEMEBT FEFHEM tZA=t-B t=A=t+-B t=A=+-H
EBEE RitEpE FMENEFE BEITIR LEEEBA ERHBA 28A
(RMB million) ~ (RMB million)  (RMB million) ~ (RMB million) ~ (RMB million) ~ (RMB million)
(NREBET) ANREEEL) (AREBEET) ARKEER) (AREEET) AREKEET)
(1) Improving capital structure and (1) MEBRLEER 1,061.5 27.1 - - 1,034.4 -
repaying the existing debt BERFER (30% of the
Net Proceeds)
(FsRIE
FEH30%)
(2) Expansion of the sales and Q) ERBERAMZI 1,061.5 1,061.5 636.9 25.6 25.6 6113
marketing network and s (MR E) AR (30% of the
infrastructure in the European HE RS HBE Net Proceeds)
Union and other global markets, R EHRIE (53R
such as the PRC JFIEHI30%)
(3) Expanding our development Q) RARMMEER 707.7 707.7 451.8 25 25 4493
and manufacturing capacity EERN WEX (20% of the
and broadening our product and EMAELZEY Net Proceeds)
services offering of Cytovance REMEMRRRE (Fis3R
FE20%)
(4) Investment in innovative drugs @) EFENRE 707.7 626.9 376.2 4.1 80.8 376.2
(20% of the
Net Proceeds)
(FiEHE
FE620%)
(5)  General working capital of the (5) ARFAM—KREE - - 958.3 292.0 292.0 666.3
Company or, subject to permission B (EHRELE
under the PRC laws and requlations, £ ZHIBRT)
the balance to be placed with PRC BESFEATE SR
financial institutions as short-term BRBEREBRRER
deposits
Total: st 3,5384 2,423.2 2,423.2 324.2 1,4353 2,103.1
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The Net Proceeds have been and are expected to be utilized in the manner
consistent with that previously disclosed in the Prospectus (as updated in the
manner disclosed in the Announcement), and the remaining unutilized Net
Proceeds as at December 31, 2022 were placed with PRC financial institutions as
short-term deposits. The Group expects to fully utilize the remaining Net Proceeds
on or before December 31, 2025.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this Directors’
Report are as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. Li Li (Chairman)

Ms. Li Tan (Deputy General Manager)
Mr. Shan Yu (General Manager)
Mr. Zhang Bin (resigned on April 29, 2022)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Lu Chuan

Mr. Chen Junfa
Mr. Wang Zhaohui

SUPERVISORS

The Supervisors during the Reporting Period and up to the date of this Directors’
Report are as follows:

Mr. Zheng Zehui (Chairman)
Ms. Tang Haijun
Ms. Su Jilan (Employee Supervisor)

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS, THE
SUPERVISORS AND THE SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors, the Supervisors and the senior management of
the Group as at the date of this annual report are set out on pages 29 to 34 in the
section headed “Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” of this annual
report.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

Mr. Li Li, Ms. Li Tan and Mr. Shan Yu, as executive Directors, each renewed the
service contract with the Company for a term of three years starting from August
31, 2020.

Dr. Lu Chuan, Mr. Chen Junfa and Mr. Wang Zhaohui, as independent
non-executive Directors, each renewed the service contract with the Company for a
term of three years starting from August 31, 2020.

Mr. Zheng Zehui, Ms. Tang Haijun and Ms. Su Jilan, as Supervisors, each renewed
the service contract with the Company for a term of three years starting from
August 31, 2020.

The appointments of the Directors and Supervisors are subject to the re-election
upon expiry of their term of office according to the Articles of Association.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or Supervisors has entered into any
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries (excluding contracts
expiring or determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation).

CONTRACT WITH CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

No contract of significance was entered into between the Company or any of its
subsidiaries and the controlling shareholders or any of its subsidiaries during the
Reporting Period or subsisted at December 31, 2022 and no contract of significance
for the provision of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a
Controlling Shareholders or any of its subsidiaries was entered into during the
Reporting Period or subsisted at December 31, 2022.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACT OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No transaction, arrangement and contract of significance to the business of the
Group which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a
Director/Supervisor or any entity connected with such a Director/Supervisor had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at December 31, 2022 or
at any time during the Reporting Period.
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COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The remuneration of Directors, Supervisors and senior management is determined
with reference to factors including the salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of the Directors, Supervisors and senior
management, employment conditions of other positions in our Company and the
desirability of performance-based remuneration.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and emoluments of the five highest paid
individuals in the Group are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the consolidated financial
statements on pages 174 to 177 of this annual report.

For the Reporting Period, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any Director,
Supervisors or any of the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of the Directors
or Supervisors has waived any emoluments for the year ended December 31, 2022.

Except as disclosed above, no other payments have been made or are payable, for
the year ended December 31, 2022, by our Group to or on behalf of any of the
Directors.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

During the period from the Listing Date to December 31, 2022, none of the
Directors and Supervisors or their respective close associates (as defined in the
Listing Rules) had any interest in a business that competed or was likely to compete,
either directly or indirectly, with the business of the Group, other than being a
Director of the Company and/or its subsidiaries.

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OBLIGATIONS
PURSUANT TO THE LISTING RULES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Company does not have any other
disclosure obligations under Rules 13.20, 13.21 and 13.22 of the Listing Rules.
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NON-COMPETITION ARRANGEMENTS

Each of the Controlling Shareholders provided certain non-competition
undertakings in favor of the Company. Details of the non-competition agreements
are set out in the section headed “Relationship with the Controlling Shareholders
— Competition” in the Prospectus.

The Controlling Shareholders confirmed that they have complied with the non-
competition undertakings for the Reporting Period. The independent non-executive
Directors have conducted such review for the Reporting Period and also reviewed
the relevant undertakings and are satisfied that the non-competition undertakings
have been fully complied with.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than the Directors’ and Supervisors’ service contracts and appointment
letters, no contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Group was entered into or in
existence as at December 31, 2022 or at any time during the Reporting Period.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

During the Reporting Period, save as disclosed in this annual report, the Company
has not entered into any equity-linked agreement.

MATERIAL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Group was not involved in any material legal proceeding during the Reporting
Period.

LOAN AND GUARANTEE

During the Reporting Period, the Group had not made any loan or provided any
guarantee for loan, directly or indirectly, to the Directors, Supervisors and senior
management of the Company, the controlling shareholders of the Company (if any)
or their respective connected persons.

THEF R
EERBRUAADAAESAFHETFRHES
Fin o FEFHEOFERRRBRER 82
BB SR AR (5 — B | — £ -

ERRRER  MEHN RE-—BEETTER
FokgE o MEHA  BIUFRTEFCETR
o e EMEEAG AR/BRETE2ETD
R AGE -

BEEEK
BREEREERBEORZAEEIN R-F
ToFT A=+ ARSI AERER
BEA S FEEAEEERBREMERILD
EBNEERTREBEENGL -

JR #8415 5
WEMN - BATEASRBEN - ARAL
5 5T ] AR 24815 3 -

BEREEFR

WEHA  AEEREESEAEAOREFAR -

BRRER

BEMN - ARELRAXAAEE  EFR
BRERE  ARARBEEE (0E) RS E
B EBIE A TIE M E AR R E B R
S Y HR A8 AT 2R -

@ SHENZHEN HEPALINK PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP CO., LTD. F&YIIfiEE i E L EEBRHER AR ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FE %



SHARE INCENTIVE SCHEMES

The valid share incentive schemes of the Group as of the date of this report are as

follows.

Share Incentive Scheme Il (“Scheme 11”) and the Share
Incentive Scheme llI

The Company adopted the Share Incentive Scheme Il (“Scheme I1”) and the Share
Incentive Scheme Il (“Scheme Ill”, and together with Scheme I, the “Schemes”)
in November 2016 and December 2018, respectively. The following is a summary of

the principal terms of the Schemes:

(a)

(b)

Purpose

The purpose of the Schemes is to promote the success and enhance the value
of the Company by linking the personal interests of the employees to those
of the Shareholders. It is intended to provide flexibility to the Company in its
ability to motivate, attract and retain the services of the employees upon
whose judgment, interest and special effort the successful conduct of the
Company’s operation is largely dependent.

Scope of Participants

The participants of Scheme Il are our Directors (excluding our independent
Directors and external Directors), Supervisors (excluding our external
supervisors), senior management and core staff members of the Company
and its subsidiaries.

The participants of Scheme Il are employees of the Company and its
subsidiaries (excluding our Directors, Supervisors and senior management).
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(c)

(d)

(e)

Term of the Schemes

Scheme Il was effective for an initial period of 36 months from December 12,
2016 to December 11, 2019. Scheme lll is effective for a period of 24 months
from December 28, 2018 to December 27, 2020. Within two months prior to
the expiration of the respective term of each Scheme, with the approval of
more than two-thirds of the votes of holders of the interests under relevant
Scheme (the “Holders”), who attend the Holders’ meeting, and subject to
the approval of the Board, the term of the relevant Schemes may be
extended, provided that each extension shall not exceed 12 months. Each
Scheme may be terminated upon expiry of the respective lock-up period as
detailed below when all the assets underlying such Scheme become monetary
assets. On December 6, 2019, the Company, with the Board's approval,
extended the term of Scheme Il for 12 months, up to December 11, 2020.
On December 4, 2020, the Company, with the Board's approval, further
extended the term of Scheme Il for 12 months, up to December 11, 2021,
and extended the term of Scheme Ill for 12 months, up to December 27,
2021. Accordingly, as at the date of this report, there is no further shares
available for grant under each of the Schemes. During the year ended
December 31, 2022, there was also no grant of Shares under the Schemes.

Source of Shares under the Schemes

The Shares underlying the Schemes shall be A Shares purchased from the
secondary market through bidding, block trade, share transfer or other
methods in compliance with the applicable laws and regulations.

Maximum Number of Shares

All the Shares underlying Scheme Il had been purchased as of March 9, 2017.
As of the date of this report, the total number of Shares underlying Scheme
Ilis 15,118,035 A Shares, accounting for approximately 1.03% of the total
outstanding share capital of the Company.

All the Shares underlying Scheme Il had been purchased as of February 1,
2019. The total number of Shares underlying Scheme Il is 3,886,264 A
Shares, accounting for approximately 0.26% of the total outstanding share
capital of the Company as of the date of this report.

The maximum number of Shares to be granted to an employee under each
Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the total outstanding share capital of the
Company.

(c)

(d)

(e)
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(7)

(9)

(h)

Administration of the Schemes

The Holders’ meeting is the highest management authority of the Schemes.
A management committee has been set up to oversee the daily management
of respective Scheme.

For Scheme I, the management committee has appointed Guolian Securities
Co., Ltd. to establish a single customer assets management plan. Guolian
Securities Co., Ltd. is responsible for the management of the assets
underlying Scheme I, including purchasing and holding the Shares and cash
under Scheme II.

For Scheme Ill, the management committee has appointed CMS Asset
Management Co., Ltd. to establish a single customer assets management
plan. CMS Asset Management Co., Ltd. is responsible for the management
of the assets underlying Scheme Ill, including purchasing and holding the
Shares and cash under Scheme III.

Source of Funds to be Used to Purchase the Shares
under the Schemes

The source of funds for the Schemes consists of (i) the funds raised by the
participants and (ii) loans provided by the Controlling Shareholders.

The maximum amount of the funds to be raised for Scheme Il and Scheme IlI
shall not exceed RMB400 million and RMB87 million, respectively. The
Holders shall pay the subscription amount before the establishment of the
relevant single customer asset management plan.

The purchase price of each Share granted under the Scheme was RMB20.34.

Lock-up Period

The first lock-up period lasted until March 10, 2018. The Shares underlying
Scheme Il are not subject to lock-up and have been fully unlocked on June
11, 2019. As of the date of this report, 15,118,035 A Shares remain unsold.

The lock-up period for the Shares underlying Scheme Ill is from February 2,
2019 to February 1, 2020, being a period of 12 months commencing from
the date of publication of the announcement in respect of the transfer of the
last batch of Shares to the relevant single customer asset management plan.

There is no vesting period in relation to Shares granted under the Schemes.
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(i) Rights of the Holders (i)

The Holders of each Scheme are entitled to the following rights:

(1) to share the interests of the assets underlying the Scheme in proportion
to his holding in the Scheme;

(2)  to attend the general meeting of Holders in person or by proxy, and to
exercise the corresponding voting rights;

(3) to supervise the administration of the Scheme, and to make
suggestions or inquiries as applicable;

(4)  to waive the voting rights attached to the underlying Shares of the
Company he holds indirectly through the Scheme; and

(5)  to exercise other rights stipulated by laws, administrative regulations,
or the terms of the Scheme.

(j) Obligations of the Holders ()

The Holders of each Scheme have the following obligations:

(1) to assume the risks associated with the Scheme in proportion to his
holding in the Scheme;

(2)  to comply with the provisions of the Rules Governing Employee Share
Scheme;

(3) not to request the Company to distribute the assets underlying the
Scheme during the term of the Scheme; and

(4)  to assume the obligations provided by applicable laws, administrative
regulations and other obligations stipulated under the terms of the
Scheme.

(k) Transfer of Holders’ Interests (k)

During the term of the respective Scheme, no Holder shall in any way
transfer, withdraw, charge or mortgage his holding interests in the Scheme
or use such interests to guarantee or repay debts except for unusual
circumstances as provided under the terms of the relevant Scheme.
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() Distribution of Interests under the Schemes

Upon the expiry of the respective lock-up period of each Scheme, the
liquidation of the Schemes shall be completed within fifteen business days
upon the sale of all the Shares underlying the Schemes. The proceeds from
the sale of all the Shares underlying the Schemes shall be distributed in the
following order:

(1) to repay the loans provided by the Shareholders for the Schemes and
the associated interests;

(2)  to repay the funds contributed by the employee and the associated
return based on the performance of the employee in accordance with
the terms of the Schemes; and

(3)  the remaining proceeds (if any) shall be distributed among the Holders
in proportion to their interest in the Schemes.

OncoVent Share Option Scheme
The following is a summary of the principal terms of the OncoVent Share Option

Scheme, the share option scheme adopted by our subsidiary, Shenzhen OncoVent
Biomedical Technology Co., Ltd. (“OncoVent"”), in June 2018. OncoVent did not
constitute a principal subsidiary (as defined under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules)
of the Company as at the date of this report, and it is accordingly not subject to
the provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

(a) Purpose
The purpose of the OncoVent Share Option Scheme is to promote the
long-term success of OncoVent and the interests of its shareholders and
employees by providing a means through which OncoVent may grant equity-
based incentives to motivate, attract and retain the services of its employees
upon whose judgment, interest and special effort the successful conduct of
OncoVent's operation is largely dependent.

(b) Scope of Participants

Those eligible to participate in the OncoVent Share Option Scheme include
the employees of OncoVent who meet the performance targets.

(c) Administration of the Scheme

The OncoVent Share Option Scheme is administered by the board of directors
of OncoVent (the “Administrator”). Pursuant to the OncoVent Share Option
Scheme, the Administrator may, from time to time, select from eligible
persons to whom awards in the form of options in OncoVent shares (the
“OncoVent Options”) will be granted.
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(d) Maximum Number of Shares

(e)

(7)

The maximum number of shares which may be granted under the OncoVent
Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the total enlarged share
capital of OncoVent taking into account the shares to be issued upon the
exercise of the options.

Term of OncoVent Share Option Scheme

OncoVent Options granted at each stage is valid for a period of four years.
Grantees are subject to a lock-up period of one year commencing from the
grant date.

Exercise of OncoVent Options

The grantees may exercise the OncoVent Options within ten business days
upon expiry of the lock-up period in accordance with the terms of grant
letters. When OncoVent is listed or sold, the participants may realise the
benefit of share options based on the stock circulation rules at the listing
place or the value of OncoVent at the time of sale. The participant may
choose to convert the option into actual investment to OncoVent.

The exercise price per OncoVent share underlying the OncoVent Options shall
be determined by the Administrator with reference to the fair value of
OncoVent. If OncoVent carries out financing transactions within the
preceding twelve months, the fair value shall be determined with reference
to the valuation of OncoVent for the purpose of such financing transactions.
If no financing transaction is carried out during such twelve months’ period,
the fair value shall be determined by the Administrator.

(d) RERGEE

(e)

(7)
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Outstanding OncoVent Options Granted

The proposal to grant the OncoVent Options under the OncoVent Share Option
Scheme as set out above has been approved by the boards of OncoVent and the
Company. OncoVent proposes to grant OncoVent Options representing 4% of the
enlarged share capital of OncoVent to one participant (namely Mr. Shi Yuenian
(“Mr. Shi”), who acts as the CEO of OncoVent), provided that the participant
reaches the agreed milestones. Mr. Shi will be granted OncoVent Options
representing 2%, 1% and 1% of the enlarged share capital of OncoVent when the
first, second and third milestone is reached, respectively.

Milestones Conditions
BEe 16k 44
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The first milestone

£ —{ARZ® S2EERBHBENSHER

The second milestone

The participant signs employment contract with OncoVent

OncoVent new pharmaceutical varieties obtains permission to carry out

Phase Il clinical trials from Chinese pharmaceutical regulatory authorities

E_(EBREM

The third milestone

£ T B Bh h MR S 1S o B 4 o R R AP PI AL B R RINER EG IR & 8

New pharmaceutical varieties obtain permission to sell in the market from

Chinese pharmaceutical regulatory authorities

E={ARE™

The grant date is within one month when each milestone is reached. 40%, 30%
and 30% of the OncoVent Options granted will vest in each of the three years
following the expiry of the one-year lock-up period. When and only when
OncoVent is listed or sold, the grantee can choose to exercise OncoVent Options.
As of December 31, 2020 and the date of this report, the conditions for the first
milestone has been met and the conditions for the remaining milestones have yet
to be met. The exercise price, corresponding to the fair value of the OncoVent
Options granted to Mr. Shi upon the fulfillment of the first milestone, was
approximately RMB1,271,000.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As of December 31, 2022, interests or short positions of Directors, Supervisors and
chief executive of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of
the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO), which are registered in the register that the Company must keep in

accordance with the section 352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance; or which

shall be separately notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed

Issuers set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”), are as

follows:

Interests of Directors in the Shares or Underlying Shares of

the Company

Number and class

EE -EERTIETHRAER
AR S EAHB B A RD
MRS R EEEERS R

HE_ZT-_—_F+ZA=+—H ARra#E
FEERIBTHRABRARAR KHE B
EE(EER(ES REBEIERG) EXVE) B9IX
7 BEKRD REEEPHEERBE(ESF LR
1B E321EARA A RIBFENERMAZREN
BERIAR - SREC ETR B M+ A8 e
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i

Approximate
Percentage of
shareholding
in the relevant

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in

of Shares class of the total Shares
Name of Director Nature of Interest interested in Shares** in issue***
HEERERWN LEREER HEBITRG
RHBEA R 17 B9 4 49 BE LD
= " R BB BERE D **
Mr. Li Li®” Interest in a controlled corporation; 922,391,179 Shares 73.96%(L)* 62.86%(L)*
interest of a spouse A Shares(L)*
FBEED RVEEEER  IRBER 922,391,1795% 73.96%(L)* 62.86%(L)*
AR(L)*
Ms. Li Tan® Interest in a controlled corporation; 922,391,179 Shares 73.96%(L)* 62.86%(L)*
interest of a spouse A Shares(L)*
FHEZ O REEAEER  ILBER 922,391,1798% 73.96%(L)* 62.86%(L)*
ARR(L)*
Mr. Shan Yu®@ Interest in a controlled corporation; 52,302,892 Shares 4.19%(L)* 3.56%(L)*
beneficial owner A Shares(L)*
EFHEEY REEEER  EnlEEA 52,302,892 % 4.19%(L)* 3.56%(L)*

ARB(L)*
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Notes:

* %

“L" means holding a long position in Shares.

Refers to the percentage of the number of relevant class of Shares involved divided by the
number of Shares in issue of the relevant class of Shares of the Company as at the December
31, 2022.

Refers to the percentage of the number of relevant class of Shares involved divided by the
number of all Shares in issue of the Company as at the December 31, 2022.

These Shares include: (i) 474,029,899 A Shares held by Shenzhen Leren Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Leren Technology”); (ii) 408,041,280 A Shares held by Urumqi Jintiantu Equity Investment
Partnership (Limited Partnership) (“Jintiantu”); and (iii) 40,320,000 A Shares held by Urumaqi
Feilaishi Equity Investment Co., Ltd. (“Feilaishi”).

For Leren Technology’s issued share capital, Mr. Li Li holds 99% and Ms. Li Tan holds 1%; for
Jintiantu’s issued share capital, Mr. Li Li holds 1% (as a limited partner) and Ms. Li Tan holds
99% as a general partner; and Feilaishi is wholly-owned and controlled by Mr. Li Li. Since Leren
Technology, Jintiantu and Feilaishi beneficially own a total of 922,391,179 A Shares in the
Company, and Mr. Li Li and Ms. Li Tan are spouses, Mr. Li Li and Ms. Li Tan are deemed to be
interested in 922,391,179 A Shares beneficially held by Leren Technology, Jintiantu and
Feilaishi according to Part XV of the SFO.

Mr. Shan Yu holds 99% of equity interests in Urumgi Shuidi Shichuan Equity Investment
Partnership (Limited Partnership) (“Shuidi Shichuan”). Thus, he is deemed to be interested in
46,425,600 A Shares held by Shuidi Shichuan. In addition, Mr. Shan also participated in
Scheme Il and has a 38.88% interest in 15,118,035 A Shares held by the asset manager for the
benefit of the participants of the Scheme II.

Save as disclosed above, so far as the Directors are aware, as at the December 31,

2022,

none of our Directors, Supervisors or chief executives of the Company has

any interest and/or short position in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures

of the Company or our associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of

the SFO) which will be required to be notified to the Company and the Stock

Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have taken under such
provisions of the SFO) or which will be required, pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which will be required,
pursuant to the Model Code to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF FERR
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN THE SHARES AND R 17 BV #E 3
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

So far as the Directors or chief executive of the Company are aware, as at REFAARRETETBRABRM RT
December 31, 2022, the following persons (other than the Directors and chief ——F+-A=+—8"  THAL(RARE
executive of the Company) had interests and/or short positions in the Shares or EREFETBRABRIN RIRH I ABBE RS+
underlying Shares which are required to be notified to the Company under HAERB(ES RBERI)EXVEE2RE
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or had interests or short positions in 5% or 3R EEMNEARAINERRTAR -
more of the respective type of Shares which were recorded in the register required HIRECE 7 LB G D) E33616 KA A AT
to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO: 5% or more of the ENEEMrist s SEANRMH5%KIA LB
respective type of Shares which were recorded in the register required to be kept BmIKR -

<
S

Bl St

ﬁ’&ﬁﬂifﬁ&*ﬁﬁﬁ

KRB

by the Company under section 336 of the SFO:

Approximate

percentage of Approximate
shareholding percentage of
Number and class in the relevant shareholding in
of Shares class of the total Shares
Name of Shareholder Nature of Interest interested in shares** in issue***
BEREEN 1L EBAE R HEBRTRG
KROEHAE BR 13 B B4 BEHEN
R E EEtE REH BRE D BRE DL
Leren Technology™"® Beneficial owner 474,029,899 Shares 38.01%(L)* 32.31%(L)*
A Shares(L)*
LR EmEEA 474,029,8990% 38.01%(L)* 32.31%(L)*
ARZ(L)*
Jintiantu® Beneficial owner 408,041,280 Shares 32.72%(L)* 27.81%(L)*
A Shares(L)*
EHIO BB A 408,041,280% 32.72%(L)* 27.81%(L)*
AR(L)*
AVICT Global Holdings Limited® Beneficial owner 12,629,500 Shares 5.74%(L)* 0.86%(L)*
H Shares(L)*
AVICT Global Holdings Limited® EniB A 12,629,5000% 5.74%(L)* 0.86%(L)*
HA(L)*
Morgan Stanley Investments (UK)® Interest in controlled 38,215,400 Shares 17.36%(L)* 2.60%(L)*
corporation H Shares(L)*
Morgan Stanley Investments (UK)® SIAERER 38,215,400% 17.36%(L)* 2.60%(L)*
HA(L)*
100,000 Shares 0.04%(S)* 0.01%(S)*
H Shares(S)*
100,000% 0.04%(S)* 0.01%(S)*
HRA(S)*
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Name of Shareholder
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Number and class
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Approximate
percentage of
shareholding
in the relevant
class of
shares**
hAEEE R

IR 43 # BE 4
BHRE D

EEEgWmE

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
the total Shares
in issue***
HEBTRS
BN
BRE DL

Morgan Stanley International Limited®

Morgan Stanley International Limited®

Morgan Stanley International

Holdings Inc.®

Morgan Stanley International

Holdings Inc.®

Morgan Stanley & Co.

International plc®

Morgan Stanley & Co.

International plc®

Interest in controlled
corporation
ZEEEER

Interest in controlled
corporation
X B R

Underwriter

BiHA
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38,215,400 Shares
H Shares(L)*
38,215,4000%
HAR(L)*
100,000 Shares
H Shares(S)*
100,000%
HA(S)*

38,215,400 Shares
H Shares(L)*
38,215,400/%
HAZ(L)*
100,000 Shares
H Shares(S)*
100,000f%
HA(S)*

38,215,400 Shares
H Shares(L)*
38,215,400/%
HA(L)*
100,000 Shares
H Shares(S)*
100,000f%
HA(S)*
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17.36%(L)*

17.36%(L)*

0.04%(S)*

0.04%(S)*

17.36%(L)*

17.36%(L)*

0.04%(S)*

0.04%(S)*

17.36%(L)*

17.36%(L)*

0.04%(S)*

0.04%(S)*

2.60%(L)*

2.60%(L)*

0.01%(S)*

0.01%(S)*

2.60%(L)*

2.60%(L)*

0.01%(S)*

0.01%(S)*

2.60%(L)*

2.60%(L)*

0.01%(S)*

0.01%(S)*
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Notes:

* %

* Kk

“L" means holding a long position in Shares; “S” means holding a short position in Shares.

Refers to the percentage of the number of relevant class of Shares involved divided by the
number of Shares in issue of the relevant class of Shares of the Company as at the December
31, 2022.

Refers to the percentage of the number of relevant class of Shares involved divided by the
number of all Shares in issue of the Company as at the December 31, 2022.

The above-mentioned interests of Leren Technology and Jintiantu have been disclosed as the
respective interests of Mr. Li Li and Ms. Li Tan in the section “Interests and short positions of
Directors, Supervisors and chief executives in Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations” above.

Pursuant to a stock pledge repurchase agreement, Leren Technology has pledged 43,600,000
A Shares held in the Company to Guotai Junan Securities Co. Ltd. on December 19, 2019.
Such stock pledge has all been released.

AVICT Global Holdings Limited is wholly-owned by Hangyuan Holdings Limited. Hangyuan
Holdings Limited is held as to 99.01% by Qingdao Zhongjian Xincheng Investment
Construction Co., Ltd., which is in turn held as to 96.77% by AVIC Trust Co., Ltd. Therefore,
each of Hangyuan Holdings Limited, Qingdao Zhongjian Xincheng Investment Construction
Co., Ltd. and AVIC Trust Co., Ltd. is deemed to be interested in the H Shares held by AVICT
Global Holdings Limited.

Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc. (“MS & Co. Intl PLC"), as an underwriter, holds a
long position in 38,215,400 H Shares (physical-settled unlisted derivative instruments) and a
short position in 100,000 H Shares issued by the Company (cash-settled unlisted derivative
instruments).

MS & Co. Intl PLC is a wholly controlled corporation of Morgan Stanley Investments (UK) (“MS
UK"), while MS UK is wholly controlled by Morgan Stanley International Limited (“MS Intl”),
and MS Intl is wholly controlled by Morgan Stanley International Holdings Inc. (“MS Intl HId").

Therefore, MS UK, MS Intl and MS Intl Hld are deemed to be interested in the H Shares held by
MS & Co. Intl PLC.

Morgan Stanley is a company listed on the New York Stock Exchange (stock code: MS). It is the
parent company of MS UK, MS Intl, MS Intl HId, and MS & Co. Intl PLC, and it is deemed to be
interested in the long position in 38,215,400 H Shares and short position in 100,000 H Shares
held by MS & Co. Intl PLC.

In addition, Morgan Stanley is also a parent company of Morgan Stanley Capital Management,
LLC. ("MS CM"), Morgan Stanley Domestic Holdings, Inc. (“MS DH") and Morgan Stanley &
Co. LLC ("MS & Co. LLC"), of which MS & Co. LLC beneficially holds a long position in
750,000 H Shares of the Company. MS & Co. LLC is a wholly controlled corporation of MS DH,
and MS DH is a wholly controlled corporation of MS CM. Therefore, Morgan Stanley, MS DH
and MS CM are deemed to be interested in the H Shares held by MS & Co. LLC.

Except as disclosed in this section, as far as the Directors are aware, as at December

31, 2022, no person owned interests and short positions in the Shares and

underlying Shares which shall be disclosed in accordance with Divisions 2 and 3 of

Part XV of the SFO, or interests or short positions in 5% or above of relevant class

of Shares that the Company must record in the register according to section 336 of
the SFO.
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ARRANGEMENTS FOR PURCHASE OF SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

None of the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries has entered
into any arrangement at any time from the Listing Date to the date of this report,
so that the Directors would benefit from the purchase of Shares or debt securities
(including debentures) of the Company or any other body corporate.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

In the Reporting Period, the Group's largest customer accounted for 10.3% of the
Group's total revenue. The Group's five largest customers accounted for 31.7% of
the Group's total revenue.

In the Reporting Period, the Group’s largest supplier accounted for 5.4% of the
Group's total purchase. The Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 20.7% of
the Group's total purchase.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates (as defined under the Listing
Rules) or any Shareholders (which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owns more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) has any interest in the Group's five
largest suppliers or the Group's five largest customers.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION OF HOLDERS OF
LISTED SECURITIES

As at the date of this annual report, the Company is not aware of any tax relief or
exemption available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the
Company'’s securities.

In accordance with the Enterprise Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China
(i AR AFMBEDEFBETIE) and its implementation regulations which came into
effect on January 1, 2008, the Company is required to withhold and pay enterprise
income tax at the rate of 10% on behalf of the non-resident enterprise
Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members for H Shares when
distributing the cash dividends. Any H Shares not registered under the name of an
individual Shareholder, including HKSCC Nominees Limited, other nominees, agents
or trustees, or other organizations or groups, shall be deemed as Shares held by
non-resident enterprise Shareholders. Therefore, on this basis, enterprise income
tax shall be withheld from dividends payable to such Shareholders. If holders of H
Shares intend to change its Shareholder status, please enquire about the relevant
procedures with your agents or trustees. The Company will strictly comply with the
law or the requirements of the relevant government authority and withhold and
pay enterprise income tax on behalf of the relevant Shareholders based on the
register of members for H Shares as of the Record Date.
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If the individual holders of H Shares are Hong Kong or Macau residents or residents
of the countries which had an agreed tax rate of 10% for the cash dividends to
them with the PRC under the relevant tax agreement, the Company should
withhold and pay individual income tax on behalf of the relevant Shareholders at a
rate of 10%. Should the individual holders of H Shares be residents of the countries
which had an agreed tax rate of less than 10% with the PRC under the relevant tax
agreement, the Company shall withhold and pay individual income tax on behalf of
the relevant Shareholders at a rate of 10%. In that case, if the relevant individual
holders of H Shares wish to reclaim the extra amount withheld due to the
application of 10% tax rate, the Company can apply for the relevant agreed
preferential tax treatment provided that the relevant Shareholders submit the
evidence required by the notice of the tax agreement to Tricor Investor Services
Limited. The Company will assist with the tax refund after the approval of the
competent tax authority. Should the individual holders of H Shares be residents of
the countries which had an agreed tax rate of over 10% but less than 20% with
the PRC under the tax agreement, the Company shall withhold and pay the
individual income tax at the agreed actual rate in accordance with the relevant tax
agreement. In the case that the individual holders of H Shares are residents of the
countries which had an agreed tax rate of 20% with the PRC, or which has not
entered into any tax agreement with the PRC, or otherwise, the Company shall
withhold and pay the individual income tax at a rate of 20%.

HUMAN RESOURCES

The Group had 2,366 employees as at December 31, 2022. During the Reporting
Period, the total staff costs (including director’s emoluments) were approximately
RMB774.4 million (2021: approximately RMB684.6 million). The Group enters into
employment contracts with its employees to cover matters such as wages, benefits,
and grounds for termination.

Remuneration of the Group’s employees includes salary, bonus and allowance
elements. The compensation programs are designed to remunerate the employees
based on their performance, measured against specified objective criteria. We also
provide our employees with welfare benefits in accordance with applicable
regulations and our internal policies. We provide periodic training to our employees
in order to improve their quality, skills and knowledge, including introductory
training for new employees, technical training, professional and management
training and health and safety training, as well as extensive training to our sales
and marketing team. The Group also has in place incentive schemes for its
employees, the details of which are set out in the section headed “Share Incentive
Schemes”.
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC are required to contribute a
certain percentage of their payroll to the retirement benefits schemes to fund the
benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to this retirement benefits
schemes is to make the specified contributions.

Details of the pension obligations of the Company are set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions of the Group for the Reporting Period are
set out in note 42 to the consolidated financial statements contained herein.

The related party transactions disclosed in note 42 were not regarded as connected
transactions or were exempt from reporting, announcement and shareholders’
approval requirements under the Listing Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Board, as at the date of this annual report, the Company has
maintained the public float as required under the Listing Rules.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance) in relation to the director’s and officer’s liability insurance is currently in
force and was in force during the Reporting Period.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to ensuring high standards of corporate governance
and has adopted the code provisions set out in the Part 2 of the Corporate
Governance Code in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (the “Corporate
Governance Code”). During the Reporting Period, the Company has complied
with all the applicable code provisions in the Corporate Governance Code.

In order to maintain high standards of corporate governance, the Board will
continuously review and monitor the Company’s corporate governance code.

Information on the corporate governance practices adopted by the Company is set
out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 61 to 83 of this annual report.

DONATIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Company made donations of RMB608,125.

AUDITOR

The H Shares were listed on the Stock Exchange on July 8, 2020, and there has
been no change in auditors of the Company since the Listing Date. The
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Reporting Period have been
audited by Ernst & Young, Certified Public Accountants.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

For the Reporting Period, the Company is in compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Company.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

There are certain key risks and uncertainties involved in our operations, some of
which are beyond our control:

o We are largely dependent on sales of our two products, enoxaparin sodium
injection and heparin sodium API;

o Failure to attain market acceptance among the medical community would
have a material adverse impact on our operations and profitability;

° The retail prices of certain of our products are subject to price control or
downward adjustment by the government authorities or other pricing
pressure;

o Sales of our enoxaparin sodium injection products depend on the
reimbursement policies of the governmental authorities and health insurers.
Failure to obtain or maintain adequate medical insurance coverage and
reimbursement for our pharmaceutical products could limit our ability to
market those products and decrease our ability to generate revenue;

o If our products are not manufactured to the necessary quality standards, it
could harm our business and reputation, and our revenue and profitability
could be adversely affected,

. If we suffer substantial disruption to any of our production sites or encounter
problems in manufacturing our products, our business and results of
operations could be adversely affected;

o Fluctuations in prices of our raw materials may have a material adverse effect
on us if we are not able to transfer the cost increase to our customers;
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o If we are unable to successfully complete clinical development, obtain
regulatory approval and commercialize our product candidates, or experience
significant delays in doing so, our business will be materially harmed,

o Our CDMO business is dependent on our customers’ spending on and
demand for outsourced biologics discovery, development and manufacturing.
A reduction in spending or demand could have a material adverse effect on
our business, financial condition, results of operations, cash flows and
prospects;

o If we or parties on whom we rely fail to comply with the laws and regulations
related to, or maintain the necessary licenses for, the development,
production, sales and distribution of our products, our ability to conduct our
business could be materially impaired; and

o Goodwill comprises a substantial portion of our total assets; if we determine
our goodwill to be impaired, it would adversely affect our financial position.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Saved as disclosed above, there were no important events affecting the Company
and its subsidiaries which occurred after December 31, 2022 and up to the date of
this Directors’ Report.

On behalf of the Board
Mr. Li Li
Chairman

Shenzhen, PRC, March 29, 2023
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report for the Reporting
Period in this annual report (the “Corporate Governance Report”).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board of the Company is committed to achieving good corporate governance
standards.

The Board believes that good corporate governance standards are essential in
providing a framework for the Company to safeguard the interests of shareholders,
enhance corporate value, formulate its business strategies and policies, and
enhance its transparency and accountability.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the principles as set
out in the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules.

The Board is of the view that throughout the whole Reporting Period, the Company
has complied with all the applicable code provisions as set out in the code
provisions set out in the Part 2 of the Corporate Governance Code in Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules (the “Corporate Governance Code”).

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has devised its own code of conduct for the trading of securities by
its directors, supervisors and members of senior management of the Group (who
are likely to possess inside information about the securities of the Company due to
their offices or employments in the Company or its subsidiaries) on terms that no
less exacting than the required standard set out in the Model Code. Having made
specific enquiry by the Company, all directors, supervisors and members of senior
management of the Group have confirmed that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code from the Listing Date to the date of
this report. The Company continues and will continue to ensure the compliance
with the corresponding provisions set out in the Model Code.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is headed by an effective Board which oversees the Group's
businesses, strategic decisions and performance and takes decisions objectively in
the best interests of the Company.

The Board should regularly review the contribution required from a Director to
perform his responsibilities to the Company, and whether the Director is spending
sufficient time and attention performing them.

Board Composition
During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this report, the Board comprised

6 Directors, consisting of 3 executive Directors and 3 independent non-executive
Directors as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Li (Chairman)

Ms. Li Tan (Deputy General Manager)

Mr. Shan Yu (General Manager)

Mr. Zhang Bin (resigned on April 29, 2022)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Lu Chuan

Mr. Chen Junfa

Mr. Wang Zhaohui

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” of this annual report and the
relationships between the Directors are disclosed in the respective Director’s
biography.

Except for the relationships between the Directors set forth in the respective
Director’s biography under the section headed “Directors, Supervisors and Senior
Management”, the Directors do not have financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with one another.
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Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Code provision C.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief Executive

should be separate and should not be performed by the same individual.

The Chairman and General Manager (equivalent to Chief Executive Officer) of the
Company are held by Mr. Li Li and Mr. Shan Yu respectively, thus we have complied
with Code provision C.2.1. The division of responsibilities between the Chairman
and the General Manager has been clearly established.

Independent Non-executive Directors
During the Reporting Period, the Board at all times fulfilled the requirements of the

Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive directors representing one-third of the board with one of whom
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors in respect of his/her independence in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors
The non-executive Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) of the

Company are appointed for a specific term of three years and are eligible for re-
election upon expiry of their term of office in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company.

According to the Articles of Association of the Company, Directors shall be elected
or replaced at general meetings and their term of office shall be three years.
Directors are eligible for re-election upon expiry of their term of office. Without
violating the relevant laws, regulations and regulatory rules of the locality where
the Company's shares are listed, a person newly appointed as director by the Board
to fill a temporary vacancy or to add to the quote of directors of the Board shall
serve until the next annual general meeting of the Company, at which time the said
person is eligible for re-election. All directors appointed to fill temporary vacancies
shall be elected by shareholders at the first shareholders’ general meeting following
their acceptance of appointment.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FE R SHENZHEN HEPALINK PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP CO., LTD. F&YIITisE i E L E BB HER AR @

RV A e r'a s ==l
TEEBRWME

EERTBAR
FAEXEC2 VAT - TRETHEHMN A
EEREES L TEE— ARBRE -

ARAEERREEE (BERITHRAE) N5
mEEEENEFRAREE  HAUHRMEEST
SPRNEX B C21MEMRE - EFREREEY
BV E D TEAMEY

BYFHITES
WERMA B B8 T(ETRIDBHER
EEREES=RBUFRTEST(HEES
KEANB=0D2—) HP —LBIIFNTE
FEREENTEEER RABEENIH
HEYHEREER -

ARRCEESBYIFRTESTRE(LTR
A1) 5531316 P 80 38 32 1 5 5| Bt EL 8 57 1 #
WFEEEARR - ARFRR ABEBLIFHR
TEEHURBIAL -

REREERES
BREADTDEBERMAN  FARFNTES
(BEBIFRTES) BEERA=F  EH
R ATERE T -

REBEALNFEABERMY EENBRERRE
FERYBELES THA=F -E=CLHE
o TEREL - AETERARTME LM
BRER ZFRAKEERAUNBEAT HES
EHERAEENEAHBRERIENESS
EEZZENABRREREARA T —EFER
RAETEZABEERNEFERRAS LE
BEHEF - MARZEUNERERERNES
EREREERNE - RBRAE EEEBR
HIR A o




Corporate Governance Report
/\ Al /‘\—/1— \
ﬂﬁm

FTXRE

Responsibilities of the Directors
The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control of the Company
and is collectively responsible for directing and supervising the Company's affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and provides
direction to management by laying down strategies and overseeing their
implementation, monitors the Group's operational and financial performance, and
ensures that sound internal control and risk management systems are in place.

All Directors, including non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning.

The independent non-executive Directors are responsible for ensuring a high
standard of regulatory reporting of the Company and providing a balance in the
Board for bringing effective independent judgement on corporate actions and
operations.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the Company and
may, upon request, seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses, for discharging their duties to the
Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held by them.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy matters,
strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management, material transactions
(in particular those that may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of directors and other significant operational matters of the Company.
Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board, directing and
coordinating the daily operation and management of the Company are delegated
to the management.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage on Directors’ and
officers’ liabilities in respect of any legal actions taken against Directors and senior
management arising out of corporate activities.
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Continuous Professional Development of Directors
Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes in order to

effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure that their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant.

Every newly appointed Director has received formal, comprehensive and tailored
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Company and full awareness
of Director’s responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. Internally-facilitated briefings for
Directors would be arranged and reading material on relevant topics would be
provided to Directors where appropriate. All Directors are encouraged to attend
relevant training courses at the Company’s expenses.

During the year ended December 31, 2022, all Directors attended training sessions
on the respective obligations of the Directors and senior management. In addition,
relevant reading materials including legal and regulatory update have been
provided to the Directors for their reference and studying.

The record of continuous professional development relating to director’s duties and
regulatory and business development that have been received by the Directors for
the year ended December 31, 2022 is summarized as follows:
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Type of Training Not

Directors = EII g RN

Executive Directors BITEE

Mr. Li Li FERE A

Ms. Li Tan L+ A

Mr. Shan Yu BFEAE A

Independent Non-Executive Directors BUHBITEE

Dr. Lu Chuan aIE+ A

Mr. Chen Junfa PR & 8% o A A

Mr. Wang Zhaohui FEBEE A

Note: B 5 -

Types of Training HFEE

A Attending training sessions, including but not limited to, briefings, seminars, conferences and A 2IFIIRE eEETRAGNE e
workshops B E=

B: Reading relevant news alerts, newspapers, journals, magazines and relevant publications B: BIEAER R - = BT MEREETY
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Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) in
order to enhance the effectiveness of our Board and to maintain high standard of
corporate governance. The Board Diversity Policy sets out the criteria in selecting
candidates to our Board, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background and professional experience. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to our
Board.

Our Directors have a balanced mixed of knowledge and skills, including but not
limited to overall management and strategic development, finance and accounting
and risk management, as well as professional experiences in the pharmaceutical
industry. The Board is of the view that our Board satisfies the Board Diversity Policy.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises five male Directors and one
female Director. The Company considers that there is gender diversity on the
current Board and in considering Director candidates in the future, it will continue
to consider female individuals for promoting gender diversity of the Board. To
ensure gender diversity of the Board in a long run, the Group will seek to identify
and select several female individuals with a diverse range of skills, experience and
knowledge in the field of the Group's business from time to time, and maintain a
list of such female individuals who possess qualities to become the Board members
in order to develop a pipeline of potential successors to the Board to promote
gender diversity of the Board.

The workforce of the Group (including its senior management) comprised
approximately 56% male employees and 44% female employees as at December
31, 2022. Due to the nature of work in the pharmaceutical industry, the Group
mainly considers factors such as the candidates’ ability and experience, rather than
their gender, in recruiting employees.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the diversity of the Board.
The Nomination Committee will monitor and evaluate the implementation of the
Board Diversity Policy from time to time to ensure its continued effectiveness.

Director Nomination Policy
The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to make recommendation to
the Board regarding the appointment of Directors and senior management.

The Company has adopted the Director Nomination Policy which sets out the
objectives, selection criteria and nomination procedures for identifying and
recommending candidates for appointment or reappointment of Directors.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established 4 committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration and Evaluation Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Strategy Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.

All Board committees of the Company are established with specific written terms of
reference which deal clearly with their authority and duties. The terms of reference
of the Board committees are posted on the Company’s website and the Stock
Exchange’s website and are available to shareholders upon request.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Chen Junfa, Dr. Lu Chuan and Mr. Wang Zhaohui. Mr. Chen Junfa is
the chairperson of the Audit Committee.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no less exacting terms than
those set out in the Corporate Governance Code and in compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations of the PRC.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include but are not limited to:

o handling relationship with the external auditor of the Company;
o reviewing the financial information of the Company;
o reviewing the independence of the external auditor and recommending to

the Board on the re-appointment of the external auditor;

o monitoring the financial reporting system, risk management and internal
control procedures of the Company;

. Reviewing and monitoring the effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit
function and the communication with the external auditor;

o reviewing and monitoring corporate governance functions; and
o other matters as authorized by the Board.

During the year of 2022, the Audit Committee held two meetings with the external
auditor of the Company to discuss issues they considered necessary.

The Audit Committee held 6 meetings in 2022. The following is a summary of the
work performed by the Audit Committee in 2022:

o reviewing the external auditor’s statutory audit plan and the nature and
scope of audit before commencement of audit work;

o reviewing and recommending for the Board's approval for the annual results
announcement and annual financial statements for the year ended December
31, 2021, the interim results announcement and interim financial statements
for the six months ended June 30, 2022, and the 2022 first quarterly and
third quarterly reports with particular focus on changes in accounting policies
and practices, compliance with accounting standards, the Listing Rules and
other requirements in relation to financial reporting;

o discussing with the external auditor and the management on possible
accounting risks and major findings in the course of audit/review;
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o reviewing the independence of the external auditor and recommending to
the Board the re-appointment of the external auditor;

o approving the audit fees and terms of engagement of the external auditor;

o reviewing 2022 internal audit findings and recommendations, and approving
2023 internal audit plan; and

o reviewing the effectiveness of the Company’s risk management functions
and internal control system, including the financial reporting and compliance
functions.

The Audit Committee also met the external auditors 1 time without the presence of
the executive Directors.

The attendance records of the Audit Committee are set out under “Attendance
Record of Directors and Committee Members”.

Remuneration and Evaluation Committee
The Remuneration and Evaluation Committee consists of two Independent Non-

executive Directors, namely Mr. Wang Zhaohui and Mr. Chen Junfa, and one
Executive Director, namely Mr. Li Li. Mr. Wang Zhaohui is the chairperson of the
Remuneration and Evaluation Committee.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration and Evaluation Committee are of no
less exacting terms than those set out in the Corporate Governance Code and in
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations of the PRC.

The main duties of the Remuneration and Evaluation Committee include but are
not limited to:

o formulating remuneration plans or schemes based on the main
responsibilities, scope and importance of the management positions of the
directors and senior management, and the remuneration levels of similar
positions in other enterprises; and making recommendations to the Board as
to the overall performance appraisal and remuneration management system
and structure for the directors and senior management, and the
establishment of proper and transparent formulation procedures of the
remuneration policy;

. reviewing and approving the management’s proposal on remuneration based
on the corporate goals and objectives set by the Board;

o the appraisal and remuneration management system includes but is not
limited to performance appraisal criteria and procedures, the main appraisal
system, and the principal plan and system regarding incentive and penalty;
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determining, with delegated responsibility of the Board, the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior management or making
recommendations to the Board for the remuneration package of individual
executive directors and senior management. This should include benefits in
kind, pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment;

making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of non-
executive Directors;

considering the remuneration package, time commitment, scope of
responsibility of similar companies and other employment terms of other
positions within the Group;

reviewing and approving the compensation due to executive directors and
senior management for any loss or termination of office or appointment, so
as to ensure that such compensation is consistent with the contractual terms;
if such compensation is not consistent with the contractual terms, ensuring
that it is fair, reasonable and not excessive;
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° reviewing and approving compensation arrangements relating to the
dismissal or removal of directors for misconduct or the like, so as to ensure
that such arrangements are consistent with the contractual terms; if such
compensation is not consistent with the contractual terms, ensuring that it is
reasonable and appropriate;

o ensuring that no director or any of his associates is involved in the
determination of his remuneration;

o evaluating the performance of duties by the directors and senior
management of the Company and conducting the annual performance
evaluation on them;

o supervising the implementation of the Company’s remuneration system; and
o other matters as authorized by the Board.

The Remuneration and Evaluation Committee held 1 meeting in 2022. The
following is a summary of the major tasks carried out by the Remuneration and
Evaluation Committee in 2022:

o To review the results of evaluation for members of senior management of
the Company for 2021

o To review the remunerations for directors and members of senior
management of the Company for 2021

o To review the remuneration policy and structure of all Directors and senior
management of the Company

The Remuneration and Evaluation Committee believes that the remuneration
scheme for directors and members of senior management complies with the
Company's relevant system and requirements of current operation and
management of the Company, and remunerations disclosed are in line with the
actual situation.

The attendance records of the Remuneration and Evaluation Committee are set out
under “Attendance Records of Directors and Committee Members”.

Details of the remuneration of the senior management by band for the year ended
December 31, 2022 are set out below:
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Nomination Committee
The Nomination Committee consists of two Independent Non-executive Directors,

namely Dr. Lu Chuan and Mr. Chen Junfa, and one Executive Director, namely
Mr. Li Li. Dr. Lu Chuan is the chairperson of the Nomination Committee.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of no less exacting terms
than those set out in the Corporate Governance Code and in compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations of the PRC.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee include but are not limited to:

o formulating and reviewing the Board diversity policy; evaluating the structure,
size and composition (including skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board at least once a year and making recommendations to the Board on the
size and composition of the Board based on the Company’s operating
activities, asset size and equity structure; and when considering the
combination of the members of the Board, ensuring the balance between
executive and nonexecutive directors (including independent directors) and
considering from multiple aspects of the diversity of the members of the
Board, including but not limited to their gender, age, cultural and
educational background and professional experience;

3 studying the selection criteria and procedures for directors and senior
management and putting forward proposals to the Board;

o searching extensively for qualified candidates for the roles of directors and
senior management;

o examining and putting forward proposals in relation to the candidates for
the roles of directors (including independent directors) and senior
management;

o making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-

appointment of directors and succession planning for directors (in particular,
the chairman and the general manager);

o evaluating the independence of the independent directors; and

o other matters as authorized by the Board.
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In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee would take into
account various aspects as well as factors concerning Board diversity as set out in
the Company’s Board Diversity Policy, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge
and industry and regional experience etc. The Nomination Committee would
discuss and agree on measurable objectives for achieving diversity on the Board,
where necessary, and recommend them to the Board for adoption.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships, the Nomination
Committee would consider the candidate’s character, qualifications, experience,
independence, time commitment and other relevant criteria necessary to
complement the corporate strategy and achieve Board diversity, where appropriate,
before making recommendation to the Board.

The Nomination Committee held 2 meetings in 2022. The following is a summary

of the major tasks carried out by the Nomination Committee in 2022:

o To nominate candidates for non-independent directors of the sixth Board of
the Company

o To review director nomination policy

o To nominate candidates for the sixth session of the Board of the Company

The attendance records of the Nomination Committee are set out under
“Attendance Record of Directors and Committee Members”.

BOARD INDEPENDENCE

The Board reviewed and considered that the following key features or mechanisms
under Company’s governance structure are effective in ensuring that independent
views and input are provided to the Board.

Board and committees’ structure
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The Company has been steered by a Board half of which are independent non-executive

Directors. The Board comprises three executive Directors and three independent

non-executive Directors.
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e Members of all board committees are independent non-executive Directors (save for Mr. Li Li

in the Strategy Committee, the Remuneration and Evaluation Committee and the Nomination

Committee and Ms. Li Tan in the Strategy Committee)
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Independent non-executive
Directors’ tenure

BYFHTESNES

Independent non-executive
Directors’ remuneration

BYFHTESHNEH

Appointment of independent
non-executive Directors

BYFHTESNEL

Annual review of independent
non-executive Directors’
independence

BYFHTESBUNNFEERHN

Conflict management

Professional advice

Corporate Governance Report
TrEERHBE

The directors’ nomination policy of the Company sets a maximum tenure of six consecutive
years for independent non-executive Directors to be eligible for nomination by the Board to
stand for re-election by Shareholders unless the Board considers that the Director is still
independent with reference to requirements under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
RARANESFRERERT  fEREESSREZNRREENBYIFNTEERRA
BEEERF BFEFSR2Z LTRAUEIBENRTER  BRRZEFNABEL -

Independent non-executive Directors receive fixed fee(s) for their role as members of the
Board and Board committee(s) as appropriate, and have not participated in the share
schemes of the Company.
BUFNTESFTHRARTETSREFTSZE N ENNEEHES (WER) - AT ES
HEANBORMDETE -

Independent search firm(s) will be engaged to help identify potential candidates for
appointment of independent non-executives Directors.

HEBELEBERRGMEBIFATEENEEREA

In assessing suitability of the candidates, the Nomination Committee will review their
profiles, including their qualification and time commitment, having regard to the Board's
composition, the Directors’ skill matrix, the list of selection criteria approved by the Board,
its nomination policy and the board diversity policy.

FHEREANGELY REZEGNESHERNER  BEEEERKHAR  LTEE
EFREgMREAR BEFNRGEER EFESRANDERESE  HREABUELEFS
Z ALK o

The Board assessed the annual independence confirmation received from each independent
non-executives Director, having regard to the criteria under Rule 3.13 of the Main Board

Listing Rules.
EZeRB(EMARADEIMEINGNRE . FEESBLIFNTESRRNFRE LM
FERE

The Articles of Association of the Company and internal guidelines of the Company provide
guidance to the Directors on avoiding conflicts of interest and on the circumstances under
which appropriate action(s) shall be taken by the director in conflict.
ARAHEBERMEILARBOANILIES REFRFEB RN RTROES] - ARELES
REERARAEETHOER -

To facilitate proper discharge of their duties, all Directors are entitled to seek advice from
the company secretary or the in-house legal team as well as from independent professional
advisers at the Company’s expense.

RAFBEZABTHRE  2BEFHERALRANERANBEEZEBULRBIEERMEZ K
BE - WHEARTREER-

The quality and efficiency of discussions at Board meetings are assessed during the annual
evaluation of the Board'’s performance.

REEREANEE TG E R R OE R RNE -
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Strategy Committee
The Strategy Committee consists of 3 members including two Executive Directors,

namely Mr. Li Li and Ms. Li Tan, and one independent non-executive Directors,
namely Dr. Lu Chuan. Mr. Li Li is the chairperson of the Strategy Committee.

The terms of reference of the Strategy Committee are in compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations of the PRC.

The main duties of the Strategy Committee include but are not limited to:

o evaluating and advising on long term strategic development plans of the
Company;
o evaluating and advising on major investment financing proposals that are

subject to the approval of the Board and the shareholders’ meeting in
accordance with the requirements of the Articles of Association;

° evaluating and advising on major capital operations and asset management
projects that are subject to the approval of the Board and the shareholders’
meeting in accordance with the requirements of the Articles of Association;

. evaluating and advising on any other significant events that affect the
development of the Company;

o overseeing the implementation of the above matters; and
3 carrying out other matters as authorized by the Board.

The Strategy Committee did not hold any meetings in 2022.

Corporate Governance Functions
The Audit Committee is responsible for performing the functions set out in the

code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee had reviewed the Company’s
corporate governance policies and practices, training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of
the Model Code and Written Employee Guidelines, and the Company’s compliance
with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.
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ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS AND EENRZESREHFERLE
COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The attendance record of each director during their tenure of office at the Board TERXIFHVNSESARETHRAEEARAATRE
and Board Committee meetings and the general meetings of the Company held HABRTHNESeNEEEZEe@EURKRE
during the Reporting Period is set out in the table below: ReEmH FiLg

Attendance/Number of Meetings

LERE/EERY
Other General
Meetings and
Remuneration A Share Class
and Annual Meeting and
Audit Evaluation Nomination Strategy General  H Share Class
Name of Director Board Committee Committee Committee Committee Meeting meeting
EfRRAE
RARER
RRAER
i E HIR &R
ESfg Ezg EHELE ZRZ88 REZ88 BMZEE FERRAS RRAE
Mr. LiLi 99 N/A n 2/2 0/0 mn 212
FEEE 99 TER n 22 0/0 " 212
Ms. Li Tan 99 N/A N/A N/A 0/0 " 12
FHELT 9/9 TER TER TER 0/0 11 12
Mr. Shan Yu 9/9 N/A N/A N/A N/A 1" 22
BTt 9/9 TER TER TER TER 171 n
Mr. Zhang Bin (resigned on April 29, 2022) 22 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 0/
REAE(R-E-_FNA-TNBEL) 22 TR TER TER TER TER on
Dr. Lu Chuan 99 6/6 N/A 212 0/0 n 212
allEt 99 6/6 TER 2/2 0/0 n 212
Mr. Chen Junfa 99 6/6 11 212 N/A n 212
ik LA 99 6/6 n 22 TEf n 212
Mr. Wang Zhaohui 99 6/6 n N/A N/A n 12
TEERL 99 6/6 N TER TER n 112
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Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held meeting with the
independent non-executive Directors without the presence of other Directors
during the year.

All independent non-executive Directors and non-executive Directors have attended
general meetings to gain and develop a balanced understanding of the view of
shareholders.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Company is dedicated to establishing and maintaining a robust internal control
system. We have adopted and implemented risk management policies in various
aspects of our business operations to address various potential risks in relation to
our strategic plan, research and development, infrastructure, procurement,
manufacturing, marketing and distribution. Our risk management system also
covers general finance management, human resources, information technology,
projects, logistics, subsidiaries and policy matters. The Audit Committee reviews
and supervises our risk management and internal control system.

Our Directors recognize the importance of good corporate governance to protect
the interests of our Shareholders. We have adopted the following corporate
governance measures to manage potential conflict of interests between our Group
and our Controlling Shareholders:

o the Company has established internal control mechanisms to identify
connected transactions. If the Company enters into connected transactions
with our Controlling Shareholders or its associates, the Company will comply
with the applicable Hong Kong Listing Rules;

o where a Shareholders’ meeting is to be held for considering proposed
transactions in which our Controlling Shareholders or their associates have
any material interest, our Controlling Shareholders shall not vote on the
resolutions and shall not be counted in the quorum for the voting;

. our Board consisted of a balanced composition of executive and nonexecutive
Directors, including not less than one-third of independent non-executive
Directors to ensure that our Board is able to effectively exercise independent
judgment in its decision making process and provide independent advice to
our Shareholders. Our independent non-executive Directors, individually and
together possess the requisite knowledge and experience to perform their
roles. They will review whether there is any conflict of interests between our
Group and our Controlling Shareholders and provide impartial and
professional advice to protect the interest of our minority Shareholders;
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. where the advice from an independent professional, such as that from a
financial adviser, is reasonably requested by our Directors (including the
independent non-executive Directors), the appointment of such an
independent professional will be made at the Company'’s expenses; and

o we have appointed Somerley Capital Limited as our compliance adviser,
which will provide advice and guidance to us in respect of compliance with
the applicable laws and the Listing Rules including various requirements
relating to corporate governance.

All departments conducted internal control assessment regularly to identify risks
that potentially impact the business of the Group and various aspects, including key
operational and financial processes, regulatory compliance and information
security. Self-evaluation has been conducted annually to confirm that control
policies are properly complied with by each department.

The Board had reviewed the risk management and internal control systems,
including the financial, operational and compliance controls, for the Reporting
Period, and considered that such systems are effective and adequate. The annual
review also covered the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff in the aforementioned systems and of the Company’s accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting function, and the adequacy of their training programs
and budget.

The Board confirms its responsibility for supervising the Group's risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness at least annually
through the Audit Committee. Such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failing to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. The
Group internal audit and the Audit Committee assist the Board in the review of the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control systems on the
basis of continuity. The directors through these committees are kept regularly
appraised of significant risks that may impact on the Group's performance.
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The Audit Committee assists the Board in performing its supervision and corporate
governance roles in the Group's financial, operational, compliance, risk
management, internal controls, the resourcing of the finance and internal audit
functions by reviewing the working report from internal audit and external audit.
During the Reporting Period, the Group internal audit conducted selective reviews
of the effectiveness of the systems of risk management and internal controls of the
Group in respect of financial, operational and compliance controls with emphasis
on information technology and security, information privacy and protection,
business continuity management and procurement. Such results were assessed by
the Group internal audit and reported to the Audit Committee, which then
reviewed and reported the same to the Board. The Audit Committee and the Board
were not aware of any areas of concern that would have a significant impact on
the Group’s financial position or results of operations and considered the risk
management and internal control systems to be generally effective and adequate
including the sufficiency of resources, staff qualifications and experience, adequate
training programs for the staff and budget of the accounting, internal audit and
financial reporting functions.

The Company has developed its disclosure policy which provides a general guide to
the Company’s Directors, officers, senior management and relevant employees in
handling confidential information, monitoring information disclosure and
responding to enquiries.

Control procedures have been implemented to ensure that unauthorized access
and use of inside information are strictly prohibited.

Regarding the procedure and internal control over handling and propagation of the
inside information, the Group has adopted an inside information management
policy which has been disseminated to all the staff. Based on the policy and in
order to ensure that the inside information would be processed and propagated in
compliance, the Group has established monitoring measures to ensure that the
potential inside information could be recognized, assessed and then provided to
the Board for their decision that whether a disclosure is required.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Directors, Supervisors and senior management receive their remuneration in
the form of salary and allowances, employer’s contribution to pension schemes,
annual bonuses and independent directors’ fee.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2022.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the Independent Auditors’
Report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s external auditors of the Group in
respect of audit services for the year ended December 31, 2022 amounted to

RMB6,010,000.

An analysis of the remuneration paid or payable to the external auditors of the
Group, in respect of audit services and non-audit services for the year ended
December 31, 2022 is set out below:
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Fees Paid/Payable

B ENER

RMB’000

Service Category R 3 38 51 AR¥BT T
Audit Services — annual audit for the year EBiRE —HE-ZT ==

ended December 31, 2022 +=A :+—E¢5FT£ZEFT§%§JF 6,010

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

During the Reporting Period Mr. Qian Fenggi and Ms. Chan Sze Ting of Tricor
Services Limited (an external service provider) were the joint company secretaries of
the Company. The main contact of Ms. Chan Sze Ting at the Company is Mr. Qian
Fengqi, the Board Secretary of the Company.
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The joint company secretaries of the Company have complied with Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules by taking no less than 15 hours of the relevant professional training
during the year.

All Directors have access to the advice and services of the joint company secretaries
on corporate governance and board practices related matters.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolution should be
proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings, including the
election of individual Director All resolutions put forward at general meetings will
be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after each general
meeting.

Convening Shareholders’ General Meetings
A shareholders’ annual general meeting is required to be held once every year

within six months following the end of the previous financial year. An extraordinary
general meeting is required to be held within two months subsequent to the
occurrence of any of the following:

o when the number of directors is less than the minimum number required by
the Company Law, or is less than two thirds of the number stipulated in the
Avrticles of Association;

o when the uncovered loss is more than one-third of the Company’s total share
capital;
o when any of the shareholders individually or jointly holding no less than 10%

of total number of the Company’s voting shares make any written request to
convene the meeting;

o when the Board deems it necessary to convene the meeting;
o when the Supervisory Committee proposes to convene the meeting; and
o any other circumstances as stipulated by laws, administrative regulations,

departmental rules, regulatory documents and the listing rules for stock
exchanges where the Company’s shares are listed or the Articles of
Association.

ADARE D REL BT TR F3.20
REORE - RERE T LRSI IS
SR

MEEFHEEFSREARWEREEE RN
E=ZeEBHEBEERENER LR

iR R A

RRERRER  RRASEREGEETE 8
UMHBEBEBROIARRE BRESENE
= REBE(ETRAY) > REERARERENME
REFBUNERETARR - BRZERERK
RRERNAR T R B 22 P8 uh A e o

BERRKE
FERRREGFAR—R  EENL—g&
FEEREONEARNET - BTIEEZ—
B RECFEEEZAEMEAANGHRE
FRERAE :

. EZABTRAAAEIREREAZ
HEDRERERARNTE AR 2/38

. AR BIARBE O EEBBARAEEE /38

. EREBREAHBFTHELRARANLR
10% 8 ORI REMEH KA R

LELE

- EFERRABHEBBUES

. EFERATHEMAN R

. RRTEOER  HMPIRE RBEX
f RATRE ETBBE RS E
7 488 o 48 4 0 R AL 0 1 2 A

B -

@ SHENZHEN HEPALINK PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP CO., LTD. F&YIIfiEE i E L EEBRHER AR ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FE %



Corporate Governance Report

A shareholders’ general meeting shall be convened by the Board, and chaired by
the Chairman of the Board. In the event that the Chairman is incapable of
performing or is not performing his/her duties, the meeting shall be presided over
by the Vice Chairman. In the event that the Vice Chairman is incapable of
performing or is not performing his/her duties, a Director jointly nominated by half
or more of the Directors shall preside over the meeting.

A shareholders’ general meeting convened by the Supervisory Committee shall be
chaired by the chairman of the Supervisory Committee. Where the chairman of the
Supervisory Committee is incapable of performing or is not performing his/her
duties, a supervisor jointly recommended by more than one half of the supervisors
shall chair the meeting.

A Shareholders’ general meeting convened by the shareholders themselves shall be
chaired by a representative elected by the convener. If for any reason the convener
fails to elect a chairperson, the shareholder (including proxy thereof) holding the
most voting shares thereat shall chair the meeting (other than HKSCC Nominees).

Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings
Shareholders individually or jointly holding 3% or more of the Shares of the

Company can propose extraordinary proposals and submit them to the convener in
writing 10 working days before the general meeting is held. The convener shall
serve a supplemental notice of general meeting within two days upon receipt of
the proposal and announce the contents of the extraordinary proposal.

The contents of such proposals shall fall with the functions and powers of the
general meeting, shall feature definite topics and specific issues for resolution, and
shall be in compliance with relevant requirements of laws, administrative
regulations, listing rules for stock exchanges where the Company’s shares are listed
and the Articles of Association.

For procedures of nomination of candidates for directorship by shareholders, please
refer to the website of the Company.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board
For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company, Shareholders may

supervise the operations of the Company, and to make suggestions and enquiries
accordingly.
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Contact Details
Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above to the

following:

Mailing No. 21 Langshan Road, Nanshan District, Shenzhen, People’s
Address: Republic of China

Fax: 0086-0755-86142889

Email: stock@hepalink.com

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholder(s) must deposit and send the original duly
signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case may be) to
the above address and provide their full name, contact details and identification in
order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required
by law.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS/INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with Shareholders is essential
for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding of the Group’s business
performance and strategies. The Board has also established a written shareholders’
communication policy. The Board has conducted a review of the implementation
and effectiveness of the shareholders’ communication policy during the year ended
31 December 2022. To promote effective communication, the Company maintains
a website at www.hepalink.com/en/, where up-to-date information and updates on
the Company’s business operations and developments, financial information,
corporate governance practices and other information are available for public
access. Investors may write directly to the Company or via email to stock@hepalink.
com for any inquiries. Having considered the multiple channels of communication
in place, it is satisfied that the shareholders’ communication policy has been
properly implemented during the year ended 31 December 2022 and is effective.

The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with Shareholders and
in particular, through annual general meetings and other general meetings. At the
annual general meeting, Directors (or their delegates as appropriate) are available
to meet Shareholders and answer their enquiries.

Changes to the Articles of Association
During the Reporting Period, there were no amendments to the Articles of

Association of the Company.

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated March 29, 2023, the Company
proposes to expand the business scope of the Company to include property
management and amend its Articles of Association in view of the proposed change
of the Company’s business scope and the removal of the position of vice-chairman
of the Board. Such proposed amendments to the Articles of Association shall be
subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the 2022 AGM by way of a special
resolution

AR AR
BRETEBATHTABE LRBARER -

Dy

BT HbHE FEARZEMERYMELRER
BALLIBE2 157

(- 0086-0755-86142889

BF A stock@hepalink.com

REERRB RRAEIRBEHEAEZEZE
EER - BARBARSHRBERIME) ZE
ARE Riispil - WRHEE 2R  BEFERS
7 ASEER - RREH A ERBEERTE
i F AR ©

Eﬁéﬁﬁiﬁ?ﬁﬁ%ﬁ’ﬂﬁiﬁ/iﬁﬁ

ARFRBEBRREEBEIRAREEBER
BREEHRNEEEBRERRBEN THRERASE -
EFZENCHEEARIBEER -HREEZT
TIFFZ AT IEFER  EFEEEEMR
ﬁé_ﬁ?ﬂlﬁﬂ’]?ﬁ@&ﬁ@’lﬁ o RARMERHBUB® -
KN ERR A i www.hepalink.com)it AR E R B
Eﬁzli RIEBEERER MBER  BEES
BHREREMENNSNERREN - EEWE
EER - TEREREARRSERETHHE
stock@hepalink.com © 4% IR A Z iRz REE
ARBIRBREBEBRRRBE_S-__F1+=
A=+ FENCEZARTETZER -

ARBBMOERRERRFIN - HFHIBBFE

BRARGMEMBRAE - RFERRAE
ER(FERBRR(EM))ABERGE L

B EREHRRA -

ERNEE
FEEP - AN T ERIL KGR

BUOARREARAR T _=F=A -+ NAEHK
NEMRE  EREREEARRKEHRE R
HOBEESRIIRERA  ARREEABAEK
M%ﬁl«\x*ﬂﬂ%%ME CIERTRBIER © %
BHRERARAERAFERRR_Z__FFF¥
Hﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ:LA%%\J/?%m%?E’Uﬁ/i&ﬁt/ﬁféﬁﬁﬂ’ﬁ

o

it

@ SHENZHEN HEPALINK PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP CO., LTD. F&YIIfiEE i E L EEBRHER AR ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FE %



Corporate Governance Report

Policies relating to Shareholders
The Company has in place a shareholders’ communication policy to ensure that

Shareholders’ views and concerns are appropriately addressed. The policy is
regularly reviewed to ensure its effectiveness.

Shareholders’ communication policy
The Board has reviewed the shareholders’ communication policy for the Reporting

Period and consider the implementation and effectiveness of the shareholders’
communication policy to be sufficient and adequate.

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a policy on payment of dividends pursuant to code
provision F.1.1 of the Corporate Governance Code. The articles of the Company
contain the profit distribution policy, setting out, among others, the principles and
forms of profit distribution, the conditions and proportion of cash distribution, the
period of profit distribution, the conditions of dividend distribution of shares, the
decision- making process and mechanism of profit distribution, and the principles
for adjusting the profit distribution policy. At the end of each financial year, profit
distribution proposal will be formulated by the Board, and will be subject to
shareholders’ approval. The Board should complete the dividend distribution within
2 months after the holding of the shareholders’ meeting.
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Ernst & Young

27/F, One Taikoo Place
979 King’s Road
Quarry Bay, Hong Kong
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To the shareholders of Shenzhen Hepalink Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd.

(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Shenzhen Hepalink
Pharmaceutical Group Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
"Group”) set out on pages 95 to 256, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2022 and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs") issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of
most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below,
our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report, including
in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit
procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial

statements.

Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

Independent Auditor’s Report
J& N iz LR ¥R &

BRFSTSEEGA)
BMEETABRET [BHMAFS T
WEXAENEF| SRz EE  BEEZ
SEEF@E A RITNERTHERERE
TTEREERARMEEA M BRI ERNBRRL
Rzt zEr EEXEF(BRABEET
FIEEMARNIER) &R DR FIBEEM 4
BYMBHmERZERE R IRMER -

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EPNESFNAEEFAREESSE

Revenue recognition

PN+

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the revenue of Shenzhen
Hepalink Pharmaceutical Group Co. Ltd. reported in the
consolidated financial statements was RMB7,151,039,000, which
was mainly contributed from the production and sale of
heparin-based active pharmaceutical ingredient (“API"), finished
dose pharmaceutical products and contract development and
manufacturing organisation services (“CDMO services”).
RBE_ZT-__F+-_A=T—HIEFEMS REEHKR
RPBENRINTEEREXETERODBERAAZBEARAR
#7,151,039,0007T * = E R BT RAPI - B BT 6 A 2E I 3
EARE R FEMNEEESRE ([COMOR]) -

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the revenue of finished
dose pharmaceutical products was RMB3,210,465,000.
Distribution model has been adopted for these sales and mainly
includes two types: buyout and non-buyout. Shenzhen Hepalink
Pharmaceutical Group Co. Ltd. determined the point in time
when the control of the goods is transferred according to the
distribution agreement and recognised the revenue of goods
accordingly.

MBE_T-_—_F+-_A=T—HIEFEMS  EMRAENHK
AR AR®3,210,465,0007T - ZEHERKMDHERX - T2
EMEAR : BEAEEE - RIMBE R EXEERNOAR
RRIBEDHBERESA TN EEETELNRES - I
PR It T 52 7 M

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FE R SHENZHEN HEPALINK PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP CO., LTD. FYIfiEE i E £ E BB HER AR @

Our audit procedures included, among others, the following:

BMEARFEETISES

(1)  We evaluated and tested the design and the operating
effectiveness of the controls in relation to revenue;

AR IR A B 2 EE I i O RR AT MBTTRO B UL

(2)  We obtained major sales contracts and CDMO service
contracts, read then identified contractual terms in relation
to transfer of control, and its transfer for revenue
recognition in practice, and evaluated whether the
accounting policy for revenue recognition is in accordance
with IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers;
BHMEEREZHE S L KCODMORE & 4 - B & I 55
Bl B G R R A & AR R LB RS R AR
WA H AR 5t R E S &6 BRI 53R & 281D
FISHEELEAZHA
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

BAREITEE(A)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMNESFNAEEFARETSE

Revenue recognition (Continued)
WA (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2022, the revenue of CDMO
services was RMB1,084,066,000, among which, the revenue
recognised over time and at a point in time were RMB763,887,000
and RMB320,179,000, respectively. For CDMO services, Shenzhen
Hepalink Pharmaceutical Group Co. Ltd. identified the goods or
services stated in the CDMO services contracts as performance
obligations, and revenue is recognised upon analysing the present
right to payment for the CDMO services and the point when a
customer obtains control of the goods or services. For performance
obligation to be delivered over time, revenue is recognised according
to the progress of performing the respective obligation.
MBE_ZT__F+-_A=+—HIEFEMS - COMORKEH
WA R AKRH1,084,066,0007T © HfH - £ — RS A K&K~
) B A AR A EZH&Z)\%EIN%/\EE&M& 887,000t & A R ¥
320,179,0007T » BLCDMOMRIS M & » RINT B EH HEEEE K
Tﬁﬁﬁi@ﬁ?ﬁ%CDMoﬂ&%é\%’UﬁFﬁﬁ\JE@%uui&ﬂ&%%ﬁﬁ@%@%ﬂ‘% 0
1A 53 T CDMOBR 7 89 & Al 32 - 4 | A I & = 7% BR 7 m 3k AR 7%
ZEHIENREEEEERRA - HRE-—REEANBITHRED
B BBEEROTSAEBHNEEEIRA -

As revenue recognition criteria of the Group involved judgement
as explained above, we considered this as a key audit matter.
BN E S B AW A TERR L R0 b P a9 # T P9 ER
AR ETEE -

For revenue from sales of goods, we performed tests of
details to check supporting documents including sales
contracts and other related supporting documents and
evaluated whether the relevant revenue recognition is in
compliance with the accounting policy for revenue
recognition of Shenzhen Hepalink Pharmaceutical Group
Co., Ltd.;

HREmEERA - BRMETHRERH - AEF R
(BIEHESNAREMAERZA M) - WA HEBRA
BARERARNTELE HREXEERNBER 2K A
ARG BE

For revenue from CDMO services, we performed tests of
details on supporting documents by selecting samples from
sales transactions and inspected whether the performance
obligations had been met at the point of recognising
corresponding revenue:

HNCOMORIE A - HFETAEH A - BBRHEER
2R FE ZJSXZ¥EXE§EHX1¢ I 25 15 HE R4 FE WL A B
WBENEBRESFINET

(i) For performance obligations satisfied over time, we

evaluated whether the “over time” criteria had been
met and evaluated the accuracy of the progress of
the performance;
HRE-—RKBEABTHRBRAEE  RMTMEEE
Biwe [ —REBARE W HELNEENE
T

(i)  For performance obligations satisfied at a point in
time, we checked the supporting evidence of the
services transferred/delivery of units produced.
HREX KRBT EARE  RMxEE#®
EIRE,/ RNBEEERNIFHERR -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) BRETSEA)
Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BRETEE BN ETNNERREETSE

Revenue recognition (Continued)

WAER (&)

Refer to note 2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING  (5) We selected samples of transactions of sales of goods
POLICIES, note 3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND before and after the balance sheet date and checked to
ESTIMATES and note 5 REVENUE to the consolidated financial supporting documents including goods delivery note and
statements for accounting policies and disclosure related to logistics documents, etc., to evaluate whether the relevant
revenue recognition. revenue was recorded accurately in the proper accounting
BLMRAMBRMENOMA2AEZERNSFHERHE - Ma3EXE period;

ST I 08 5T DA R B S5 MR A - T BRI A HE SR AR B 2 R IR R HMEREEEEROPAZNAMEERIEAR U
o EXHUEXH (BREEREEEMYR X E) LT EHE

EesTHHE  HRAKAEEEERCE

(6)  We compared the revenue from sales of goods, from CDMO
services and other operating income, as well as gross profit
margins for the current year with those of the previous year,
and analysed the variance; and
BMEE ML E - COMOMRTS A K E A & B s (WA -
NEERMERNEMEE F—FOHEEREHL XD
fTZEL: &

(7)  We reviewed the sufficiency and completeness of the
disclosure of revenue in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements.
BMEBEEHZAMBREWMTRRARBEER BT MEMT
B o
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

BAREITEE(A)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMNESFNAEEFARETSE

Impairment of goodwill

BERE

At 31 December 2022, the carrying value of goodwill in the
consolidated financial statements amounted to RMB2,350,992,000.
RZZBEZZF+ZA=+—H HSeWBERETIENEDE
B AR®2,350,992,0007T °

In accordance with IFRSs, the Group is required to perform the
impairment test for goodwill at least on an annual basis. The
goodwill impairment test is based on the recoverable amount of
each cash-generating unit (“CGU") to which the goodwill is
allocated. The recoverable amount of the CGU has been
determined based on the higher of the value in use (“VIU") and
fair value less costs of disposal (“FVLCD"). In determining the
recoverable amount, the Group engaged independent valuers to
perform the impairment test for goodwill.
REBE(RRETBREER) - EEEFTEEZLFFETHENE
AR - HEREAR N ERABREI NS REEEEMHNA
KEeE REELEUNAIKBSEIBEECHAEEERR
BEREEXRAMERNRS EET - £H#E A KO ER -
ESEEFE L EMETEERENR -

In performing the impairment test for goodwill, key assumptions
and judgements were used by the Group, for example, when the
recoverable amount of the CGU was determined based on VIU,
key assumptions including the CGU’s cash flow forecast, revenue
growth rates and earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation
and amortisation (“EBITDA") rate of forecast periods, and the
pre-tax discount rates; and when the recoverable amount of the
CGU was determined based on FVLCD, key assumptions including
the selection of comparable companies, etc.

EETHBREARR  EXEERATEEBRRK LA flm
EERNGERAEERERSELEUNAKEEE T ERKXE
FHEAPHBSEASUNRSRER WAERRE - KN
BRAIE - BiIE - 78 REEA R (TEBITDAL) == Bk F AT AL IR
EUREERAABEREEXNARTEIR S EEEMHN A K
e FEBRRLBRARAANEERS -

Our audit procedures included, among others, the following:

BMMEAREFEE TSRS

(1) We evaluated and tested the design and the operating
effectiveness of the controls in relation to goodwill
impairment testing;

FAFF il OB S B B R DR B 2 4 A b B AR AT R
TR ML

(2)  We evaluated the base data used in cash flow forecast by
comparing those to the historical data;

HMBBYHLELEE  FERSRERAMBNEREE

(3) We ascertained and assessed the revenue growth rates
adopted for the forecast periods by comparing those to the
historical revenue growth rates;
BMABHLFEL WAL RE - BE R HTEIHAEERA
B U AIE R K

(4)  We evaluated the EBITDA rates of forecast periods by
comparing those to the historical corresponding rates;
HABBELLE L EBITDAR - 1 TR A U AB RA tE X

(5)  We involved internal valuation specialists to assist in
evaluating the assumptions and methodologies used by the
Group, such as the pre-tax discount rate, etc;
BMBABGEEER BTG BESEMANRKESZE -
WARR B R BR IR K%

(6) We evaluated the comparable companies, and the data of
comparable companies selected by the Group/its
independent valuers;

PR BEEEHBYAEMEENRER R REEE
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Key Audit Matter
BRETEHE
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BAREITEE(A)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMNESFNAEEFARETSE

Impairment of goodwill (Continued)

BEREE)

The judgements and estimates involved will be significantly
influenced by management’s assessment of future market and
economic changes, which in turn will pose significant impacts on
the recoverable amount of the CGU to which goodwill is
allocated. In light of this, we considered this as a key audit
matter.

WK HY % B R R BB IR T R R T 5 A OB B AT
EHEATE MREXSHBELESIENRSELEMNA
WEEREEATE - ZENU - BMRREBHEREFFE -

Refer to note 2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES, note 3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES and note 16 GOODWILL to the consolidated financial
statements for accounting policies and disclosures related to
goodwill impairment.
FLUEAUBBRROMT24ERE
ST A BT B RS DA RIS 167 8 TR e B R
BEHHWEER -

AAREBE - ME3EARE
A REEEER

(7)  We reviewed mathematically the calculations of VIU;

B EREENAEETENES

(8)  We ascertained the profile of independent valuers engaged
by the Group and evaluated their competence, capabilities
and objectivity; and
BHMEE E5EE
1% BN MBEIL )Si

FOBEEMOER  YAHEE

(9)  We reviewed the sufficiency and completeness of the
disclosures of goodwill in the notes to the consolidated
financial statements.
BMEEEAMBERERMTPAEREERNN TS M KT
B o
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRETEE

BAREITEE(A)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMNESFNAEEFARETSE

Assessment of fair value of financial instruments
AEemIANQIAEE

At 31 December 2022, the fair value of the Group’s financial
assets which are measured at fair value amounted to
RMB2,786,365,000.

RZBEZZF+_A=Z+—HB UAAEEFEN E5ESE
MEENAREERARK2786,365,0007T

The valuation of financial instruments is based on a combination
of market data and valuation models which often require a
considerable number of inputs. Many of these inputs are
obtained from readily available data. For financial assets classified
under the fair value hierarchy as Level 1 and 2, inputs of
valuation models include the quoted market price and observable
data. When such observable data is not readily available, that
means the financial instruments under the Level 3 of fair value
hierarchy, management’s estimate will be used for the
determination of the unobservable inputs.
CRIENGHEDENTSEEEGERI CBEFTEREH A
IR MES STE UL BREARES B NA 5 RGBS - &
RAOBRFIRNMERAABEEEANEREE  HEELE
ASBEBEROINMEMAIBRRERE - BEEXFERGAIHE
HiR(AERAABEEBRATHNERMIA) BERABEREME
RHE TE A LB A o A BUR o

Our audit procedures included, among others, the following:

BMOBHIEFOE TSRS -

(1) We evaluated and tested the design and the operating
effectiveness of the controls in relation to fair value
measurement of financial instruments;
BMIETARERASRIAAREENE ZIEFEED
R RBITH RN

(2)  We inspected investment agreements entered into, on a
sample basis, to understand the relevant terms and identify
conditions that were relevant to the valuation of financial
instruments, and inspected the audited financial statements
of the investee companies to evaluate the reasonableness of
the valuation;

BPMERE R LR E Bk - AR AR A BE (R R0 55 ) R
SRIAMAEBRBOGE  UREHRREATANLERZ
IHBRRAFEERAGENS R

(3)  For financial assets traded in active market, we checked to
the quoted price of corresponding financial assets as at
balance sheet date and re-performed the calculation to
arrive at the carrying value of respective financial assets;
FRERTSXINEMEENS  KAPFIZEURNEEER
REOHECREENRE  UENTE  UGLHERSH
BEMNKREE

(4)  We involved internal valuation specialists to assist in
evaluating the methodologies and the key parameters used
for assessing fair value of financial instruments and testing
the fair value, on a sample basis;
BMBABEEERBYTEeR T AR BENGAA
WAEMEZLE - WHEARAR R EE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter
BRETEHE

Independent Auditor’s Report
Y& Ntz BLRD ¥R &

BAREITEE(A)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EMNESFNAEEFARETSE

Assessment of fair value of financial instruments (Continued)
AEeRmIANDIAEEE)

Because of the complexity involved in assessing the fair value of
financial instruments, and significant management judgement
involved in determining the inputs of valuation models, we
consider this as a key audit matter.
EREMIEARBENENEME  UREBREGEREEH
ABBEREELEREEREAE RAUERMBREBHERE
E D

Refer to note 2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES, note 3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES, note 19 EQUITY INVESTMENTS DESIGNATED AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME, note 20
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS,
note 21 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS and note 44 FAIR
VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS to the consolidated financial statements for
accounting policies and disclosures related to fair value of
financial instruments.
FLHBGEAEUEREOMA2AERA ST BRBE  IF3ERS
TR E M9 E N AR EEFEEHEH A HM
2HWRENRERE  ME200AABEFEEHEEEHFTAE
HiEmNemEE Ma21fTEem T AU KFF44em T A
NARBEARAARBERESR THREABREUREHASRT
ERARBENKESEH -

(5)  We ascertained the profile of independent valuers and
evaluated their competence, capabilities and objectivity; and
BMEABLAEMOBR  WAAEEER B NFNEEH
MRk

(6) We reviewed the sufficiency and completeness of the
disclosures of financial instruments in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements.
HMNEEHAMBBREANTI R TEAREENNTHE
MTEIM -
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Independent Auditor’s Report
J& Ntz BLRD ¥R

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, other than
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do
s0.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement
and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

3 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group'’s
internal control.

3 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern

basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a
material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
J& Ntz BLRD ¥R

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report
is M.L. Chau.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
27th floor, One Taikoo Place
979 King's Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

29 March 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

=IVAN
2 =i

= N7

S

Year Fnded 37 December 2022
BE T _—F+_H=+—HIFE

2022 2021
—g=-= —E-—F
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
M 5 AR TR ARBFT

REVENUE WA 5 7,151,039 6,359,786
Cost of sales $HE AR (4,860,850) (4,366,204)
Gross profit EX 2,290,189 1,993,582
Other income and gains/(losses) Hip g A R Wz (BE) 6 207,431 (11,682)
Selling and distribution expenses HELDHEMAS (518,502) (430,493)
Administrative expenses THAX (742,461) (668,326)
Impairment losses on financial assets TREERERE (61,067) (101,958)
Impairment losses on associates e NRIREERE - (223,092)
Other expenses HEmR (1,648) (5,463)
Finance costs b & B AN 8 (245,629) (210,074)
Share of profits and losses of associates FEAR B & A B A R 5 1B (98,462) (120,230)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX Bt A0 7 7 829,851 222,264
Income tax (expense)/credit e (X)) e 11 (115,164) 11,120
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FR=EF 714,687 233,384
Attributable to: R AL :

Owners of the parent BRAEAR A 727,077 240,788

Non-controlling interests FE 2 AR HE 2 (12,390) (7,404)
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO BARAEERERIFEA

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT EEEsRAEF 13
Basic E- YN
— For profit for the year — 5 N s Al RMBO0.50 RMBO0.16

AR #¥0.507T AR¥0.1670
Diluted s
— For profit for the year — 5 A3 A RMBO0.50 RMBO0.16
AR #¥0.507T AR¥0.167C
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Year ended 31 December 2022
BE T _—F+_H=+—HIFE

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

2022 2021
—E-F —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR TR AREF T
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR F i A 714,687 233,384
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) Hir 2wk (i)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that may be reclassified 7 (& 48 B (&1 A] G E 37 7 48 = 18 725
to profit or loss in subsequent periods (net of tax): B E 2 E s, (EHE)
(BB HE) -
Exchange differences on translation of foreign operations /SN # R & [E i =58 260,977 (24,373)
Share of other comprehensive (loss)/income of associates R E AR HEMEE
(BB, (13,481) 1,013
Net other comprehensive income/(loss) that may be REBHEREEETVES
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods BEmEMEmks (EBE)
F R 247,496 (23,360)
Other comprehensive loss that will not be reclassified to REEHET@EF B2 R
profit or loss in subsequent periods (net of tax): A i 2 ETE1E (HIBR#IE) -
Change in fair value of equity investments designated at fair AR R BEE B H & A
value through other comprehensive income HEhzEW =R RERED
NAEEES (5.554) (64,774)
Remeasurement income on defined benefit pension AEMNBRBARESFTENEFT =
schemes & 67,688 892
Net other comprehensive income/(loss) that will not be REBEHEITSETDEEER
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods mEMEEKE(EI8) F58 62,134 (63,882)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, FRAEMEEKE (FE)
net of tax (MBRFLE) 309,630 (87,242)
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax FREZEWZAE (NRHE) 1,024,317 146,142
Attributable to: BT AL FEAY
Owners of the parent ISUNEIE7Z=DN 1,035,957 153,886
Non-controlling interests FEFE IR HE 2 (11,640) (7,744)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ira BN &

As at 37 December 2022
RZFZZF+-_H=+—H

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Ff 5 AR®F ARBFT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - B MERE 14 2,454,845 2,526,672
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15 244,443 239,854
Goodwill EE 16 2,350,992 2,152,201
Other intangible assets EMEEEE 17 462,908 472,969
Investments in associates REERRZIRE 18 989,386 1,146,465
Equity investments designated at fair value through 1 FUAALEBETEHH
other comprehensive income STAEMEE W E
IR E 19 507,146 474,885
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss AR AR BEGTE A&
AR HERNeREE 20 967,576 996,500
Deferred tax assets REMSHEE 33 139,649 121,718
Other non-current assets HihIEmoEE 22 224,948 206,016
Total non-current assets kRBEELTE 8,341,893 8,337,280
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 23 6,843,906 4,707,549
Trade and bills receivables B 5 EUGRIE Kk R ER 24 1,606,211 1,525,209
Contract assets BHEE 25 19,534 14,993
Prepayments, other receivables and other assets TERTFRIE - Eo b FE U TR IE K
Hih&E 26 507,405 566,687
Due from related parties FEHSZ 8 5t 77 SR 42 44,833 44,088
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss A AR EBETEBHEESH
AR HERNEREE 20 1,311,633 980,909
Derivative financial instruments MTEEBIA 21 10 248
Pledged deposits BEHERER 27 69,388 11,581
Time deposits E B TE X 27 749,684 1,440,000
Cash and cash equivalents BERBECEED 27 1,319,707 1,479,633
Total current assets REBEELAE 12,472,311 10,770,897
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Trade payables 2 5N RIEA 28 427,433 385,787
Other payables and accruals H fth fE 5 5RIE R FEETIE B 29 545,512 608,729
Contract liabilities EHBEE 30 428,218 377,814
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings T EIRTT R EME R 31 4,020,784 3,268,166
Tax payable FE B IE 112,257 112,997
Due to related parties FE A B B 5 SRR 42 5,902 6,223
Lease liabilities HEBE 15 35,690 31,754
Total current liabilities REBAEERE 5,575,796 4,791,470
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
F B B AR O R

As at 37 December 2022

R-DEFE-——F+—H=+—H

2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
Fff 5 ARET AR®EF T
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEETFHE 6,896,515 5,979,427
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EEHABERRBAERE 15,238,408 14,316,707
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings T BERIT R EABfE K 31 2,296,680 2,250,270
Deferred income PR U A 32 32,547 16,673
Deferred tax liabilities BEFSHERE 33 328,920 275,358
Long-term employee benefits RHEBEF 34 51,938 138,020
Other non-current liabilities HEMIERBARE 9,935 9,070
Lease liabilities HEAE 15 110,749 104,001
Total non-current liabilities kRBEBEATE 2,830,769 2,793,392
Net assets EEEE 12,407,639 11,523,315
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners of the parent BRAHE ARG ER
Share capital i@ 35 1,467,296 1,467,296
Reserves & 36 10,843,619 9,944,058
Total equity attributable to owners BAREEAEBGESZER
of the parent 12,310,915 11,411,354
Non-controlling interests JERRER 96,724 111,961
Total equity EREHE 12,407,639 11,523,315
Li Li Shan Yu
=48 BF
Director Director
EF EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equ
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Year ended 37 December 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

/\\/T\/\EE \/ ;ﬁ%%

Year ended 31 December 2022
BE T _—F+_H=+—HIFE

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
M 5 AR®BT AREF T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETHEENRERE
Profit before tax B0 AR - 829,851 222,264
Adjustments for: KA BIEAE -
Bank interest income HRITH B A (54,139) (54,857)
Finance costs B & AR 2N 245,629 210,074
Share of profits and losses of associates JE ik Bt 2 X ) e A S S 4R 98,462 120,230
Dividend income from financial assets NI TE%%H,H\
at fair value through profit or loss FEITAEEE
@mﬂé%a’aﬂxéuﬂz)\ 6 (7,107) (28,575)
Dividend income from financial assets designated EENAREEFZ
at fair value through other comprehensive loss BEZBT AEAM
THEBENSREE
COlIIN N 6 - (15,488)
Interest income from debt investment BEREEEHF EHA 6 - (1,744)
Losses/(gains) on disposal of financial assets HENAREBEE
at fair value through profit or loss BEZ&H AE BB
e mEENER
(Wezt) 5,624 (5,761)
Fair value losses on derivative instruments PTETIEMAREBEEEE 26,869 4,181
Fair value losses/(gains) on financial assets at fair RAREBEFEEEZS
value through profit or loss FTAEBERN SR
BEMNAREEESE
(Yez) 6 74,831 (68,065)
Impairment losses on associates B AR EE 1R 7 = 223,092
Losses on disposal of items of property, HEME  BEREE
plant and equipment B E M EE 6 2,760 5,105
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - -BENEREITE 7 219,970 217,492
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 7 38,741 37,782
Amortisation of other intangible assets H A B B 8 7 53,296 51,520
Impairment losses on financial assets R EEREEIS 7 61,067 101,958
Gains on disposal of investment in associates HERBEQRR ZIRED
Wz (21,771) -
Foreign exchange (gains)/losses, net BN (Wa) B8 FE 6 (186,331) 205,044
1,387,752 1,224,252
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= /A ANz B
%/\Qiﬁiulbiﬁ
Year ended 31 December 2022
BE T _—F+_H=+—HIFE

2022 2021
—E-F —E-—F
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
B AR TR ARBETF T
Increase in inventories FEEN (2,136,357) (1,539,300)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and bills receivables B S RKHIBERERER
(& 10,8 > (131,811) 84,822
(Increase)/decrease in contract assets AREE GM),wmL (4,541) 5,484
Decrease in prepayments, TERFRIE - Be REM
deposits and other receivables JE U FR T8 R 69,711 22,005
(Increase)/decrease in amounts due FE AR B 7 7k0B (3 hn) R A
from related parties (745) 5,147
Increase in trade payables Z 5 FE < ;IB I N 41,646 146,569
Increase in other payables and accruals H Ath FE A FE K FEETIE B 10 73,502 27,473
Decrease in amounts due to related parties FE A< B B 5 FRIE R (321) (1,890)
Increase in contract liabilities A X BB 50,404 120,864
Increase/(decrease) in deferred income EEW AL I CRA) 15,874 (2,071)
(Decrease)/increase in long-term employee benefits & 8i{f& E & # G4 ), &0 (452) 7,084
Increase in pledged deposits B #3077 5138 00 - (11,501)
Cash (used in)/generated from operations weE (A /FeRs (635,338) 88,938
Bank interest income RITH B UA 7,164 5,596
Income tax paid B (128,440) (101,163)
Net cash flows used in operating activities KEEBMARESREFHE (756,614) (6,629)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= A s =
/\\/T\ EE v //lbi%
Year ended 31 December 2022

B2 T - —F+-_A=+—HIFEF

2022 2021
—E-CF —E -
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
Ff 5 AR TR ARBETF T
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES RETBHEENRERE
Dividend income from financial assets at fair value AR A BET 2 A H & &
through profit or loss AR HERNERMEE
B AR BA 20,760 25,929
Dividend income from equity investments BEAAABEFERHR
designated at fair value through other FERH AHEMEERES
comprehensive income iR A o) IR B A o 15,488
Dividend received from an associate B2 E R FIRE = 22,837
Interest income from debt investment BERERENT B WA — 5,950
Investment income received from disposal of HERBENRIZIRER
investment in associates ‘ERA 6,403 -
Investment income received from financial assets at AR 7 BEEH 2 B H & &)
fair value through profit or loss FFAEHEENEREEN
REWRA 58,939 518,502
Proceeds from disposal of investment in associates HEREE N A ZIRENE
HIA 31,536 -
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets EENARBEFE B E#8)
at fair value through profit or loss FFAEHERNSREEDN
P18 58 4,091,177 2,501,219
Proceeds from disposal of equity investments HEAARBEFEEEES)
designated at fair value through other .ﬁ')\ﬁf’@iﬁ”ﬂl & ) AR
comprehensive income KBTS - 145,199
Purchases of derivative instruments BEITETA - (38,706)
Purchases of items of property, HEEYXE WERZHEIEE
plant and equipment (212,256) (175,236)
Purchases of other intangible assets BEAMETLEE (10,165) (18,624)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value through BEUAARBEFEAEEES
profit or loss FFAEHERNERMEE (4,482,674) (2,331,456)
Disposal of debt investment HEBEERE = 70,000
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEME  BEKAKZEEE
plant and equipment Fr 18 5B 2,531 1,718
Decrease/(increase) in time deposits EHEFR D35 m) 700,000 (71,513)
Interest received from time deposits B WE R BB 43,589 48,621
Net cash flows from investing activities KA TR R FHE 249,840 719,928
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

mAERTRER

Year ended 31 December 2022
BE T _—F+_H=+—HIFE

2022 2021
—E-F —E-—F
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
M 5 AR®BT ARBF T
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES mﬁﬁiﬁiﬁéiﬂﬁﬁﬁms
New bank loans and other borrowings IR ITETREMER 6,755,938 3,693,770
Repayment of bank loans and other borrowings 1?53%%&?7%?&(&&@1&% (6,036,258) (3,730,562)
Interest on bank loans and other borrowings paid B RITE R R E A E KA B (251,839) (196,556)
Contribution from the non-controlling shareholders  3E#% Hxﬂx?ﬁé - 19
Dividends paid BEfIRE (23,251) (220,094)
Principal and interest elements of lease payments fﬁfaﬁ E’JZK ZERAIPS (38,325) (35,996)
Counter guarantee deposit and other HARESEH E’\J&%%
expenses related to corporate bond RESRHEMAZ (25,000) (11,662)
Increase in pledged deposits [REEEEREE$: DIl (51,700) -
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities REEESRE,(FFH)
ReneE 329,565 (501,081)
NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH iﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%f‘%ﬁﬁ
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS )1 (177,209) 212,218
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year i%ﬂﬁﬁfﬁé&fﬁ/ﬁfr{%% 1,479,633 1,330,245
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net PE o 3 B 2/ 20 R 4B 17,283 (62,830)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRESRESZEEY
AT END OF YEAR 1,319,707 1,479,633
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND ReRBRSEBYNESR DT
CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances IB& NMEBITHES 27 1,319,707 1,479,633
Non-pledged time deposits with original [RIGEARR DR =18 A &
maturity of less than three months JEIREE BER 27 - =
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS STATED IN ReRERBINEER
THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS REEEY 27 1,319,707 1,479,633
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Notes to Financial Statements

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company is a joint stock company with limited liability established in the
People’s Republic of China (hereafter, the “PRC") on 21 April 1998. With the
approval of the China Securities Regulatory Commission, the Company
completed its initial public offering and was listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (stock code: 002399.5Z) on 6 May 2010. On 8 July 2020, the
Company was listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “HKSE") (stock code: 9989. HK). The registered address of the
office of the Company is No.21 Langshan Road, Nanshan District, Shenzhen.
The Company is ultimately controlled by Mr. Li Li and Ms. Li Tan who are
acting in concert.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
are principally engaged in biopharmaceutical production, biopharmaceutical
services, biopharmaceutical trading and biopharmaceutical research and
development in Asia, Europe and North America, and investment business in
Asia and North America.
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B 7% o= I AE
31 December 2022
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% o3k I AT
31 December 2022
—E - —Ff—H=+—H

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continued)

As of the date of this report, the Company had direct and indirect interests
in its subsidiaries, all of which are private limited liability companies or

limited partnerships, the particulars of which are set out below:

Date and place
of incorporation/
registration and place

Issued
ordinary share/

1. XAEHAE)

BEARSHS  AQRAEEFLEF
HmEEEEMEER

ZEFTRAEYR

IAEREERAFALBEREFTAER
Rl HFAEREIWT

Percentage of equity

Name of operations registered capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
/3B 8 BRAZER/ ERRES
£ MR REE LR EILE-EN BEAAL TEER
Direct Indirect
Hi B

Chengdu Sunrace Co., Ltd.*** PRC/Mainland China RMB200,000,000 96% - Production and sale

RBRHEERERLA RE/HREMNE  ARK200,000,0007T of heparin sodium

19 November 2009 EEREEFRH
Z2ENET-ATAB

Shandong Ruisheng Biotechnology PRC/Mainland China RMB30,000,000 100% = Production and sale of

Co., Ltd.*** HE/RE R AR 30,000,000 heparin sodium

WERREEMRIER AR 15 July 2010 EERBEEFRR
“Z2-ZFtAtHA

Shenzhen Penghe Property PRC/Mainland China RMB132,000,000 55% - Property management operation

Management Co., Ltd.* ** HE /AN AE%132,000,0007 MEEREE
RY AR ERERAR 13 June 2011
“2——%~At=H

Shenzhen Pingshan New District PRC/Mainland China RMB120,000,000 100% - Biopharmaceutical production;

Hepalink Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.* ** R/ E A AR #120,000,0007T biopharmaceutical services; and

FITFLTREE R EEER AR 29 July 2013 biopharmaceutical research and

“Z-=%tA=thA development ("R&D")

ENMRBEEE  ENHERTE

REMHEHTRHAE ([HE])

Shenzhen Dekang Investment PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100% = Equity investment; investment

Development Co., Ltd.* ** HE /RN AR#10,000,0007 management and consulting

AT ERREERER AR 23 March 2015 RiERE  REERERN
“F-h%=A=1=H
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% o= I AE
31 December 2022
—EFE-—F+ZH=+—H

CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continued) 1. ARIEHR (&)

Date and place
of incorporation/
registration and place

Issued
ordinary share/

Percentage of equity

Name of operations registered capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
B/ 2 8 BROLER/ RAAEE
£8 MEUAREE R HMEE BEAAL TEER
Direct Indirect
Hi EE:

Shenzhen Fanpu PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 66% = Biopharmaceutical technology
Biotechnology Co., Ltd.*** 25 February 2015 AR #1,000,0007 development and consulting
RYTREENRMER R A “E-Rf¥-A=+EA EMRERIMFEERA
Hepalink (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK330,221,445 100% = Investment holding and trading of
BELREB)ERAR B 330,221,445 7T biopharmaceutical products
23 November 2010 BRERRRAENBEERES

—Z-%F

t-AZt+=H
Hepalink Europe AB Sweden SEK100,000 = 100% Investment holding
5 100,0005 £ 5% 5 RERR

1 February 2010

“2-24-f-H
Hepalink USA INC. USA 10,000 shares 100% - Investment holding
EL 10,0008 Bk {7 REZR

25 October 2013

—Z-=#tA-ThAH
SPL Acquisition Corp. (“SPL") USA 500,000 shares = 100% Production of active
13 July 2006 500,0008% i3 pharmaceutical ingredients and
“EER FtAT=H manufacture of pancreatin
EERHEREERE
Scientific Protein Laboratories LLC USA 1,000 shares = 100% Biopharmaceutical
22 January 2004 1,0008% i 2 production and sales
“EEME-A=+=H EYHBEERHE
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Notes to Financial Statements
B 1% 2% Y 5

7/
31 December 2022
—E-——HFEF - H=+—H

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continued) 1. REEHR(E&)
Date and place
of incorporation/ Issued
registration and place ordinary share/ Percentage of equity
Name of operations registered capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
B/ 2 8 BROLER/ RAAEE
£8 MEUAREE R EMER BEAAL TEER
Direct Indirect
Hi EE:
Mobren Logistics L.L.C. USA 1 share = 100% Biopharmaceutical
xH 1Rk production and sales
22 December 2003 EMRBELEREE
=TE=
+-A-+=H
Mobren Transport Inc. USA 1,000 shares - 100% Biopharmaceutical
e 1,0008% & {7 production and sales
23 December 1997 EBEEEREE
—hntE
+TZA=+=H
Novahealth Biosystems, LLC USA 1 share = 100% Biopharmaceutical R&D
E35 1HRB& 3 EYRBERE
24 March 2016
—F-"E=A=1mA
Pharma Bridge International LLC USA 1 share - 100% Biopharmaceutical sales
e 1R EWABHE
28 November 2012
“T-——F
+-—A=t/NAB
SPL Distribution Holdings LLC USA 1 share = 100% Biopharmaceutical sales
e 1R AR 15 ENHEHE
26 December 2017
—T+tf
TZAZ+7RH
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Notes to Financial Statements
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31 December 2022
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continued) 1. ARIEHR (&)

Date and place
of incorporation/

registration and place

Issued
ordinary share/

Percentage of equity

Name of operations registered capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
B3/ A BROLER/ KDAEE
£ MpEUAREE R HMEE BEAAL TEER
Direct Indirect
Hig Gk
SPL Distribution LLC USA 1 share - 100% Biopharmaceutical sales
£ 1RR 5 ENRERE
26 December 2017
Tt
+ZAZtE
Cytovance Biologics, Inc. USA 5,000 shares = 100% Biopharmaceutical contract
el 5,0008% i 3 manufacturing and development
19 September 2005 ENREAREERRE
ZZTREAATAR
Shenzhen Beidi Aoke Technology PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100% = Biopharmaceutical
Development Co., Ltd.* ** HE/ AN AK#10,000,0007 technology development
AT ERHREREER AR 19 July 2002 BB %
“ZZ-F+ATAB
Shenzhen Maple Sea Capital Equity PRC/Mainland China RMB250,000,000 99% = Equity investment;
Investment Fund Partnership (Limited HE /R E R AR#250,000,0007T venture investment; investment
Partnership)*,*** 10 April 2015 consulting and management
RIEEEARERERG AR R “Z-AFWATH RERE : AlRRE
(FREH) REFARER
Y| E B B R TR A 7 PRC/Mainland China USD9,259,300 54% - Biopharmaceutical R&D
Shenzhen OncoVent Biomedical HEL/ BRI 9,259,300F 7T Y REER %
Technology Co., Ltd.*** 26 July 2016
ZEAELAZTRE
OncoVent USA Inc. USA 20,000 shares = 54% Biopharmaceutical R&D
E35 20,0008 A& 3 EYRBERE
11 August 2016
“T-~ENAt-H
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Notes to Financial Statements
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1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continued)

Date and place
of incorporation/
registration and place

Issued
ordinary share/

1. XAEHAE)

Percentage of equity

Name of operations registered capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
B3/ A BROLER/ KDAEE
£ MpEUAREE R ZMER BEAAL TEER
Direct Indirect
Hig Gk
Shenzhen Ruidi Biomedical Co., PRC/Mainland China USD14,117,647 51% - Biopharmaceutical production,
R L NEEERAA RE/EN 14,117 B4TETT sales and R&D
2 July 2018 EMBBENEE  HERFE
—Z-\¥tAZH
Arimab USA Inc. USA 100 shares = 51% Biopharmaceutical R&D
%H 1008 A 3 BB %
10 December 2018
ZZ-\f+ZA+H
Hepalink Pharmaceutical Hong Kong 1 share = 100% Investment holding
(Hong Kong) Limited BE 1R R BAER
BERBE(FE)ERAA 08 December 2019
—Z2-nE+=ZANB
Hepalink Investment Limited Hong Kong 1 share = 100% Investment holding
BERRERRAF Bk 1RR D RERR
08 December 2019
“Z-NE+ZANR
Cytovance Cayman, Inc. Cayman Islands 1 share = 100% Investment holding
REHE 1RR 5 RERR
12 August 2019
—Z2-nENATZH
Techdow USA INC. USA 1,000 shares = 100% Investment holding and trading of
%E 1,000z 1 biopharmaceutical products
25 June 2021 REBRRANBEERES
—E-—fXA-TEHH
Hepalink Capital | Inc. Cayman Islands USD50,000 - 100% Investment holding
REHE 50,000% 70 RERR
02 September 2021
“Z--%ARCH
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continued) 1. ARIEHR (&)

Date and place
of incorporation/
registration and place

Issued
ordinary share/

Percentage of equity

Name of operations registered capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
B3/ A BROLER/ KDAEE
£ MpHARLE ZMER ERESH TEEHR
Direct Indirect
Hig Gk
Hepalink Healthcare Partners | L.P. Cayman Islands = = 100% Investment holding
HEHE RERR
08 September 2021
“Z--%1ANR
Hepalink Biotechnology | Limited Hong Kong 1 share = 100% Investment holding
BE 1R R 15 RERR
24 September 2021
ZE--FAAZTMmA
Hepalink Biotechnology Il Limited Hong Kong 1 share = 100% Investment holding
AR 1RR D REER
24 September 2021
R -FnA-THEA
Hepalink Capital Il Inc. Cayman Islands USD50,000 - 100% Investment holding
REHE 50,000% 7T RERR
02 September 2021
“Z--%ARCH
Hepalink Healthcare Partners II L.P. Cayman Islands = = 100% Investment holding
HEHS REER
08 September 2021
“Z-Z-%¥NANRB
Hepalink Biotechnology III Limited Hong Kong 1 share = 100% Investment holding
Bk 1R R {7 REER
24 September 2021
2 -#nA-+HA
Shenzhen Topknow Industrial PRC/Mainland China RMB902,000,000 100% = Biopharmaceutical R&D
Development Co., Ltd.* ** HE/RE N AR#902,000,0007T BB 2
RINTLELEEERERRA 7 June 2000
ZZ2REALH
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1.

CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continued)

Date and place
of incorporation/
registration and place

Issued
ordinary share/

1. XAEHAE)

Percentage of equity

Name of operations registered capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
/2 A BRALER/ KRR EL
g MpEUAREE R HMEE BEAAL TEER
Direct Indirect
Hig M
Shenzhen Techdow Pharmaceutical PRC/Mainland China RMB768,000,000 - 100% Biopharmaceutical R&D
Co., Ltd.** RE/ BN AR¥768,000,0007T EMRERE
RITREBEBR LA 29 June 2004
ZZZMERAZTAR
Techdow (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK 233,960,000 = 100% Investment holding and trading
B 233,960,000/ 7T of medical products
22 May 2013 REERRBREERES
“E2-=fEA-tZH
Techdow Europe AB Sweden SEK100,000 = 100% Trading of medical products
iy 100,000% 42 52 B4 BEEMZSH
12 June 2014
“Z2-MESATZH
Hepalink (Shanghai) Co,. Ltd.*** PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 = 100% Provision of services on
LR LB EEERAR e/ E Rt AE#1,000,0007T pharmaceutical related activities
5 March 2012 REENABEDRE
“Z--F#=RAH
Techdow Pharma Poland Sp.zo.o. Poland PLN7,359,000 - 100% Trading of medical products
hid] 7,359,000% % % BEEMES
12 October 2016
ZZ2-AEtATZH
Techdow Pharma Netherlands B.V. Netherlands EUR480 = 100% Trading of medical products
R 4808 T BREEME S
6 June 2017
ZZ2—tE5ARE
TD Pharma B.V. Netherlands EUR480 - 100% Investment holding
#H 48088 T RERR
22 November 2016
—TRE
+—A=+=H
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (Continued) 1. REEHR(E&)
Date and place
of incorporation/ Issued
registration and place ordinary share/ Percentage of equity
Name of operations registered capital attributable to the Company Principal activities
/3B 8 BRALER/ RAFEE
£8 MR REE R HMER BEAAL TEER
Direct Indirect
Hi i
Techdow Pharma England Limited England EUR1,000 = 100% Trading of medical products
BT 1,000B(7T BREMEH
6 December 2016
ZZ-"E+ZAKA
Techdow Pharma Spain, S.L. Spain EUR3,000 = 100% Trading of medical products
iy 3,0008 70 BREERES
23 January 2017
ZZ—+f-A-t=H
Techdow Pharma Germany GmbH Germany EUR25,000 = 100% Trading of medical products
] 25,0008 70 RREMES
13 December 2016
“T-~EtZAt=H
Techdow Pharma Italy S.R.L. Italy EUR10,000 - 100% Trading of medical products
BAF 10,0008t 7T BREME S
4 April 2017
“Z—+5MAMA
Techdow Pharma Switzerland GmbH Switzerland CHF20,000 - 100% Trading of medical products
it 20,0008 1% BB BREMES
23 March 2017
“T—t§=RA=1=H
* The English names of these subsidiaries registered in the PRC represent the translated * RAEGMNZEFR A EXATBAHE
names of these companies as no English names have been registered. % BAAYRIMEMMELTE -
LA The company is registered as a limited liability company in the PRC. *k ZAREREIMAEREEAT
O The company is registered as a limited partnership in the PRC. * ko ZATIEPRAMAEREE AT
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion FRILESZRRYEARFERIFEKE
of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed a FEABRARBEEFEERH S
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. HARRA TR o
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2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 REEE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), (which include all
International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting
Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB") and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

They have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
equity investments designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income, derivative financial instruments and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss which have been measured at fair value. These financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB") and all values are rounded to
the nearest thousand (RMB’000) except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the

Group for the year ended 31 December 2022. A subsidiary is an entity
(including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results in
control. When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority of
the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the

investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c)  the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)
The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same

reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting policies. The
results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such
control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the
non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control described above. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the assets
(including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount
of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (ii) the fair value of any investment retained and (iii) any resulting
surplus or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share of components
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit
or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be
required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND

DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for the first time for the

current year’s financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 3
CEIRR B 76 3R 5 A R ) 398 B 5T
Amendments to IAS 16

(BB g st &R B 165 BE AT
Amendments to IAS 37

(BB g st R E37REMERT

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020

(B EHeER) —E— N FE _F-FF2FENE

22 SR RBBESHET

AEBRAFEP BRI ERFHIA
TRIEATCEBR P B REAER) -

Reference to the Conceptual Framework

SIFHE E& B2 24

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before
Intended Use

Y% BERRE  KERTEHEFZAE5E

Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

EREN—ELERZHEAR

Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, lllustrative Examples
accompanying IFRS 16, and IAS 41

CEIBR B R S 2RI D 158 ~ (BRI B & 4 A
F5% - (BB T REXERI D F165% BEFT 2 AR & B
RMCEBR &R E415FIEET

The nature and the impact of the revised IFRSs that are applicable to the

Group are described below:

(a)

Amendments to IFRS 3 replace a reference to the previous Framework
for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements with a
reference to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting (the
“Conceptual Framework") issued in March 2018 without significantly
changing its requirements. The amendments also add to IFRS 3 an
exception to its recognition principle for an entity to refer to the
Conceptual Framework to determine what constitutes an asset or a
liability. The exception specifies that, for liabilities and contingent
liabilities that would be within the scope of IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 if they
were incurred separately rather than assumed in a business
combination, an entity applying IFRS 3 should refer to IAS 37 or IFRIC
21 respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework. Furthermore,
the amendments clarify that contingent assets do not qualify for
recognition at the acquisition date. The Group has applied the
amendments prospectively to business combinations that occurred on
or after 1 January 2022. As there were no contingent assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities within the scope of the amendments arising
in the business combination that occurred during the year, the
amendments did not have any impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 ST BERIBEESEET
DISCLOSURES (Continued) (#&)

(b)

Amendments to IAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from selling
items produced while bringing that asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds from selling
any such items, and the cost of those items as determined by IAS 2
Inventories, in profit or loss. The Group has applied the amendments
retrospectively to items of property, plant and equipment made
available for use on or after 1 January 2021. Since there was no sale of
items produced prior to property, plant and equipment being available
for use, the amendments did not have any impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group.

Amendments to IAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous under IAS 37, the cost of fulfilling the
contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract. Costs
that relate directly to a contract include both the incremental costs of
fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract
(e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property,
plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well as contract
management and supervision costs). General and administrative costs
do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless they are
explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract. The
Group has applied the amendments prospectively to contracts for
which it has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at 1 January 2022 and
no onerous contracts were identified. Therefore, the amendments did
not have any impact on the financial position or performance of the
Group.
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND 22 B BRRBEESEHEH
DISCLOSURES (Continued) (4&)
(d)  Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2018-2020 sets out amendments to () (EIBRAB#HEER) ZF—/NF
IFRS 1, IFRS 9, lllustrative Examples accompanying IFRS 16, and IAS 41. P oECFFFENEEHT(EH
Details of the amendments that are applicable to the Group are as BRBA 75 RS 2ERI) S 158 ~ BB EA
follows: BWmEERDFER - (BRI B ®

HER) B 1657 HE M 2 T AAE G K
<<Iﬁ’“%é ERI) FBA15R Y EFT
ERARAEEM ST FHFIIT

° IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an entity
includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified
financial liability are substantially different from the terms of the
original financial liability. These fees include only those paid or
received between the borrower and the lender, including fees
paid or received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s
behalf. The Group has applied the amendment prospectively
from 1 January 2022. As there was no modification of the
Group's financial liabilities during the year, the amendment did
not have any impact on the financial position or performance of
the Group.

3 IFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments from the
lessor relating to leasehold improvements in lllustrative Example
13 accompanying IFRS 16. This removes potential confusion
regarding the treatment of lease incentives when applying IFRS
16.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs, that have
been issued but are not yet effective, in the financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28
CEIPR B 75 3R 5 2E R D 31058 RCBE R & 51 A1) F 2855 S 7]
Amendments to IFRS 16

(BB s ERI) E165% B F]

IFRS 17

(BB &R RN AT

Amendments to IFRS 17

(BB ERI)E1T5RMEE]
Amendment to IFRS 17
(EBR S5 ERD)E175RAEET

Amendments to IAS 1

(BB g s R E15RHER

Amendments to IAS 1

(BB &R E1RMER

Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2

<<I Ra s RERD B 15 RCEBR M B mEER) BB RS
E25R B RT

Amendments to IAS 8

(BIPR e ERI) B85 1B E]

Amendments to IAS 12
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2.3 CERTEHARERN(ER
B EZEA)

AEERWREFBHRRPRBUATEHE
1B 8 R AR RN #T BT M AR & 7T e KB IR B
BE AR -

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

REZHREBENFIHNE BEPRZFLHERENTE?

Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback?

E#EHPHHEE

Insurance Contracl‘s7

Rz & #)

Insurance Contracts’*®

RS A S

Initial Application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 — Comparative Information®

2R (BB B B3R 2B R D 1758 R ( B BR A1 75 #R 25 2B Al )
FEIR—LIL B E K

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current?*

B ESIEBRE S IETE?

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants (the “2022 Amendments”) ?

W ERESFH BB E ([ = F = = F5571)?

Disclosure of Accounting Policies’

B BERE

Definition of Accounting Estimates’

BiHAHOER

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction’

CEBR g R F1258 BB FT HE—XGELZEERE EIHBELRHE
l Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 ! g%iizifﬂ —HRZERBOFEE
HRER
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 2 Q@q%ii@@*ﬁ —HEZBRBRNFE
AR EX
3 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption 2 8 7K 78 E 9 M A Ak B HA B AT IR AR
@ As a consequence of the 2022 Amendments, the effective date of the 2020 4 EAR-ZE_—FEiINER —T=F%
Amendments was deferred to annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024. FEITNERBHTEHER T _NF—
A— Bz % RmEEHRE
E As a consequence of the amendments to IFRS 17 issued in June 2020, IFRS 4 was > f?ﬁﬂ_2_2$/\ﬁiﬁﬁﬂ'3<lfwﬁﬁ%$ﬁ
amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits insurers to apply IAS 39 SRR FNTRZERTHEER - =
rather than IFRS 9 for annual periods beginning before 1 January 2023 E A— Rz HiEhe e E (R
BMERERDFAFEMLBEET - UERR
SRR IR A FE A CBIBR 2 5T 2RI ) 853955 M 3F
(PR SRS SERI) FOFME R AR
£ An entity that chooses to apply the transition option relating to the classification © BEEANEPRATESBRERAMEY

overlay set out in this amendment shall apply it on initial application of
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be applicable to
the Group is described below.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an inconsistency between the
requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing with the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture. The
amendments require a full recognition of a gain or loss resulting from a
downstream transaction when the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business, a gain or loss
resulting from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s profit or loss
only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in that associate or
joint venture. The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 was removed
by the IASB in December 2015 and a new mandatory effective date will be
determined after the completion of a broader review of accounting for
associates and joint ventures. However, the amendments are available for
adoption now.

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current
clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current or non-current, in
particular the determination over whether an entity has a right to defer
settlement of the liabilities for at least 12 months after the reporting period.
Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will
exercise its right to defer settlement of the liability. The amendments also
clarify the situations that are considered a settlement of a liability. In 2022,
the IASB issued the 2022 Amendments to further clarify that, among
covenants of a liability arising from a loan arrangement, only those with
which an entity must comply on or before the reporting date affect the
classification of that liability as current or non-current. In addition, the 2022
Amendments require additional disclosures by an entity that classifies
liabilities arising from loan arrangements as non-current when it has a right
to defer settlement of those liabilities that are subject to the entity complying
with future covenants within 12 months after the reporting period. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. An
entity that applies the 2020 Amendments early is required to apply
simultaneously the 2022 Amendments, and vice versa. The Group is currently
assessing the impact of the amendments and whether existing loan
agreements may require revision. Based on a preliminary assessment, the
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group'’s
financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies require entities to
disclose their material accounting policy information rather than their
significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information is material if,
when considered together with other information included in an entity’s
financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions
that the primary users of general purpose financial statements make on the
basis of those financial statements. Amendments to IFRS Practice Statement
2 provide non-mandatory guidance on how to apply the concept of
materiality to accounting policy disclosures. Amendments to IAS 1 are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and earlier
application is permitted. Since the guidance provided in the amendments to
IFRS Practice Statement 2 is non-mandatory, an effective date for these
amendments is not necessary. The Group is currently revisiting the
accounting policy disclosures to ensure consistency with the amendments.

Amendments to IAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes in accounting
estimates and changes in accounting policies. Accounting estimates are
defined as monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty. The amendments also clarify how entities use
measurement techniques and inputs to develop accounting estimates. The
amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2023 and apply to changes in accounting policies and changes in
accounting estimates that occur on or after the start of that period. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception
in IAS 12 so that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences, such as leases and
decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are required to recognise a
deferred tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable profit is available) and a
deferred tax liability for temporary differences arising from these
transactions. The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied to transactions
related to leases and decommissioning obligations at the beginning of the
earliest comparative period presented, with any cumulative effect recognised
as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits or other
component of equity as appropriate at that date. In addition, the
amendments shall be applied prospectively to transactions other than leases
and decommissioning obligations. Earlier application is permitted.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE INTERNATIONAL 2.3
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

The Group has applied the initial recognition exception and did not recognise
a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for temporary differences for
transactions related to leases. Upon initial application of these amendments,
the Group will recognise deferred tax for all temporary differences related to
leases at the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented. During
the year, the Group has performed a detailed assessment on the impact of

amendments to IAS 12. The Group has estimated that it will recognise a
deferred tax asset of RMB28,222,000 for deductible temporary differences
associated with lease liabilities and a deferred tax liability of RMB26,743,000
for taxable temporary differences associated with right-of-use assets, and
recognise the cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an
adjustment to retained profits at 1 January 2022.

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.4
POLICIES

Investments in associates
An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest of

generally not necessary not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and
over which it is in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee, but is not control over those policies.

The Group's investments in associates are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at the Group's share of net assets under the
equity method of accounting, less any impairment losses. Adjustments are
made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.

The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other comprehensive
income of associates is included in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and consolidated statement of comprehensive income, respectively. In
addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of
the associate, the Group recognises its share of any changes, when
applicable, in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. Unrealised
gains and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's investments in the
associates, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment
of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates
is included as part of the Group’s investments in associates.

Upon loss of significant influence over the associates, the Group measures
and recognises any retained investments at their fair values. Any difference
between the carrying amounts of the associate upon loss of significant
influence and the fair values of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

@ SHENZHEN HEPALINK PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP CO., LTD. FYIIiSE i E £ LR HHR AR ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FE &

2 81718 18 R &£ Y (B BR
MR EER) (&)

AEBORAVRERR R - WERBEH
HEMNRZMES 2 B2 EERELTT
EAESELEREEE NEXERZSE
BTk AEBBRES 2L REY
MEREHESENMEEREENE
TR - TR AEEDFATHCBEE
FHEADENRROEITNTE - &R
HETEERENEA BB T HRY
REERIELEHIEE EARK28,222,000
ThEFEHEEERNENERB R
REHIRER A& EARK26,743,0007T -
THERE XERAZEITNRITEAY
RZTZ=—F—F—BREBEFNAE -

EXEFHEBE

REEQAT 2 RE
FERFREAEBREARAERNE
£ OB%(BTLE) TRERBERRE
#920% « A BB AHEBMEAL B
Nl - EXFENRBERRES
BB T R AR EOR R O AR S - (BT R
RSB -

AEBERE = AR 2R EELEE A BB
MERPAER G ERAEBRIEEE
FER EARER BRI - $ 7 8
FENEAMTRNETBEREFEHAE -

AEBEBEARKBREAR AR
EWREDBFAGEBRAERREGAEH
WER SR o Ub S - BB R 2 RN R S
REFE  AEBENREERE I RE
REEMAGEED (WER) - A&E
HHBENRETRIEEZRBRIR
mMEREASEREE AR 2 RER
H EAERBESERSHECEREE
AR T EE A R BR S - U B IS 28 2 R P EE
EZAEBINEASERBE AR 2RE

Z—akam e

REHBERBZEAZENK K&
BRI BEFERERETARER
B REBAYZENKRNEE A RRE
BERFREBEREZAABERMEMSHK
BZEBENBETER -



Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in associates (Continued)
When an investment in an associate is classified as held for sale, it is

accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operation.

Business combinations and goodwiill
Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method,

except for business combination under common control. The consideration
transferred is measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the sum of
the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For
each business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the
non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when the acquired set
of activities and assets includes an input and a substantive process that
together significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and
liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation in
accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation
of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held equity
interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised
at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as an
asset or liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

24 EXEFBERBE (F)

POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
An acquisition of a business which is a business combination under common

control is accounted for in a manner similar to a uniting of interests whereby
the assets and liabilities acquired are accounted for at carryover predecessor
values to the other party in the business combination within all periods
presented as if the operations of the Group and the business acquired had
always been combined. The difference between the consideration paid by the
Group and the net assets or liabilities of the business acquired is adjusted
against equity. Contingent consideration from the business combination
under common control is recognised in equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of
the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for non-controlling
interests and any fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests in
the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
If the sum of this consideration and other items is lower than the fair value
of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised
in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
value may be impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill
acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to
each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to
those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the goodwill
relates. The recoverable amount of the CGUs has been determined based on
the higher of the value in use (“VIU”) and fair value less costs of disposal
("FVLCD"). In measuring VIU, the Group bases cash flow projections on the
most recent financial budgets/forecasts covering a period of five years, or a
period longer than five years if it is justifiable, which takes into account the
length of the post projection period for the cash flow into perpetuity, and
this shall be achieved by identifying a “steady state” set of assumptions for
the cash flows and applying a terminal value multiple to those cash flows.
Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)
Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or group of

cash-generating units) and part of the operation within that unit is disposed
of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the
carrying amount of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured based on
the relative value of the operation disposed of and the portion of the
cash-generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement
The Group measures its equity investments designated at fair value through

other comprehensive income, derivative financial instruments and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss at the end of each reporting period.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in the
absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset
or liability. The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a
market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset
in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the
use of unobservable inputs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the

financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described
as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a
recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each of reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets
Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment testing

for an asset is required (other than inventories, contract assets, deferred tax
assets and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An
asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating
unit’s value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal (“FVLCD"), and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case, the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-generating
unit for impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of a corporate asset
(e.g., a headquarters building) is allocated to an individual cash-generating
unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise,
to the smallest group of cash-generating units.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)
An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an asset

exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated
future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to
the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it arises in those
expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to whether
there is an indication that previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of
an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in
the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but
not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment
loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family and
that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(iii)  is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or

of a parent of the Group;

or
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXESTHERE (&)
POLICIES (Continued)
Related parties (Continued) B (&)
(b)  the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies: (by EBRATAFEATEMAGHZE

HE'

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same group; (i) ZEREAER AR —£E
IR B AT

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or (i) ZERAS—RER (IS

of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity); —REEMNTRR - FAA
BAEESSaNCIDR:0): 2N
LEERE

(i)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third (i) ZEBHEAEERR-—F=
party; FHAEERE:

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity (ivy ZERBAF-FINAED
is an associate of the third entity; ¥ ME—EBEBRZEE=

palz0): A W/NC]|

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of (v) E ERAAEE N AL EH
employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group; BERMNEERENZERIKE

At EIFe—7

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified (vi) FZEREX(a)ERATHLA T
in (a); ol H REH]

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the (vii) (@B Pritz A ¥ Z B
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the BEEAR %7‘]‘}67%%%?5%%
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and (KZEBIRR)MNEEE

EAB R

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, (vii) ZEBRESKTMEBERKE AT
provides key management personal services to the Group or to MAKESANEE G A ERE
the parent of the Group. HEEER AR -
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress, are

stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase
price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment have been
put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to
the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a
major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as
individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost of
each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as
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follows:
Land Not depreciated
Buildings 2.375%-4.75%

Machine equipment
Motor vehicles

Other equipment
Leasehold improvements

9.5%-19%
9.5%-19%
9.5%-19%
2.326%-33.3%

+ 3 RIETTE
BF 2.375%-4.75%
28 5% 9.5%-19%
A 9.5%-19%
H % 9.5%-19%
HEWMEEE 2.326%-33.3%
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

24 EXEFBERBE (F)

POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

(Continued)
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different

useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among
the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives
and the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under construction, which is
stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction and capitalised borrowing costs on
related borrowed funds during the period of construction. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.

Other intangible assets (other than goodwill)
Other intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial

recognition at cost. The cost of other intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition. The useful lives of
other intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Other
intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication
that the other intangible assets may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for other intangible assets with a finite useful
life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Other intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment
annually either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. Such other
intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life of other intangible assets
with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the
indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If not, the change in
the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for on a
prospective basis.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Other intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(Continued)

Patents and licences

Purchased patents and licences are stated at cost less any impairment losses
and are amortised on the straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives
of 10 to 20 years.

Computer software

Acquired computer software is stated at historical cost less amortisation.
Acquired computer software is capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred
to acquire and bring to use the specific software, and is amortised on a
straight-line basis over the useful life of 3 to 10 years.

Trademarks

Trademarks are initially recognised and measured at costs incurred to
register. The costs are amortised on the straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives of 10 years.

Proprietary technologies

Proprietary technologies invested by minority shareholders are recognised at
fair vales assessed on the investment day or at cost of getting the medicine
licences from the related authorities. Proprietary technologies are amortised
on the straight-line basis over the respective estimated useful lives of 10 to
30 years, and the useful lives of the proprietary technologies are assessed by
the Group after considering the useful lives of similar technologies and the
market condition.

Brands

Brands acquired in a business combination are recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. The brands have a finite useful life and are carried at cost
less accumulated amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the
straight-line method over the expected life of 15 years for the brands.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

24 EXEFBERBE (F)

POLICIES (Continued)

Other intangible assets (other than goodwill)
(Continued)

Customer relationships

Customer relationships acquired in a business combination are recognised at
fair value at the acquisition date. The contractual customer relationships have
a finite useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method over the expected
life of 15 years for the customer relationships.

The estimated useful life of other intangible assets is determined by
considering the period of the economic benefits to the Group or the periods
of validity of intangible assets protected by the relevant laws, as well as by
referring to the industry practice.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is capitalised and
deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of
completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale, its
intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the asset
will generate future economic benefits, the availability of resources to
complete the project and the Group's ability to measure reliably the
expenditure during the development. Product development expenditure
which does not meet these criteria is expensed when incurred.

Leases
The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains,

a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all
leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group
recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)

(a)

Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date
of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Where applicable, the cost of a
right-of-use asset also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle and
remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the
site on which it is located. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:

Properties 2 to 17 years
Equipment 2 to 5 years
Motor vehicles 2 to 4 years

Leasehold land 30 to 50 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the end of
the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)

(b)

(©)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of the lease
at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term.
The lease payments include fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease
payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to
be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also
include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be
exercised by the Group and payments of penalties for termination of a
lease, if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate the lease. The variable lease payments that do not depend
on an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because
the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After
the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to
reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured
if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in lease
payments (e.g., a change to future lease payments resulting from a
change in an index or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its
short-term leases of machinery and equipment (that is those leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the
recognition exemption for leases of low-value assets to leases of office
equipment and laptop computers that are considered to be of low
value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

24 EXEFBERBE (F)

He (&)
FEEBEBA (F)
(b) HEERIE

(©

@ SHENZHEN HEPALINK PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP CO., LTD. FYIIiSE i E £ LR HHR AR ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FE &

HEEBENEER®K A RRNESR
WS 1E L A EE M KA R ERER -
HENHEEREENR(BEEE
EREEMF) BREMNEEEEE
B BORN BB AR AT Z R E
NHREERABREFREERRZ
NHEHE - BENFTREAEE
BHREESITENEREERERNT
BB R4 I & S A 505K (40
REHARRAEEITERILHER
BE) o X PABURNIEREA EL
AR B R B B AN REY S B
BREENHAMERR/FX

REFEHRENFTNIRER - AR
ERREHNNETEZHEE - A
SENHERRBERERELEE
FAE - RRMBEHE  HEEE
B B BRI 00 DA f R ) 28 0 3E Bt A
H E9FE & IR © thoh - IR
Bigs] HAEE  HENRE
(g - R 45 8 1) =R 2 B M B i
ARBEENRES) KB EREEE
EREREFLESE  AEEAE
MREESSEMAE -

FRIHERCEEEEHE
REBSHBRREERAERER
#%% F  ELAE ERFL  (RD 1 BASA
FEEE 2 A E A 121B A A T
ETREREERENAE) o &
TS5 B (T 0 T R 2 1
AR ARAEEEORAER
BRECABKAE - EHAED
BENHREBELEBEEES
RIRESERB AL -



Notes to Financial Statements
B 1% R 2% Y 5

/
31 December 2022
—EFE-—F+ZH=+—H

24 EXEFBERBE (F)

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessor

He (&)
EEESHEA

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as
operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental
income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to its
operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as
rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the
period in which they are earned.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured
at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income, and fair
value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the
financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the Group’s
business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under IFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out for
“Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost
or fair value through other comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”) on the
principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are not
SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to how it
manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows. The business
model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and
measured at amortised cost are held within a business model with the
objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income are held within a business model with the objective of
both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business models are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
period generally established by regulation or convention in the market place
(regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the
effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised,
modified or impaired.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably its equity
investments as equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income when they meet the definition of equity under IAS 32
Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The
classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to the statement
of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income in the statement
of profit or loss when the right of payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably, except
when the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the
cost of the financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in other
comprehensive income. Equity investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income are not subject to impairment assessment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 EXREHBEME (&)
POLICIES (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued) SREE (&)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss URAAREBEFTEHEZEF A
EHEs A E
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the ManEEstE LSS AEHERD
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair value MEMEERDABENMBMRR K
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. R MAanBEMFEDHANBREA
R -
This category includes derivative instruments and equity investments which ERIVIEE RN S AN TR e
the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value through other NAnBESEEEZSHHAEMEE
comprehensive income. Dividends on equity investments classified as financial WA EOITETARKRERE - 5
assets at fair value through profit or loss are also recognised as other income RUAABEFEEAZSHAALZHA
in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been WO T MAENBRERERS IR M
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the EREN - SRR BB B O AT M 25 1R AT 6
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be MAARE  BREM S WA A Sent
measured reliably. R REZXABERREMKA -
A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability or ERARNEGER (BEERARIER
non-financial host, is separated from the host and accounted for as a BMEGR)MITETAABRIARATE
separate derivative if the economic characteristics and risks are not closely BHRAOCESBRER A ERA
related to the host; a separate instrument with the same terms as the AOTETAMRGROER LA ST
embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative; and the HETAMER BRGERWENURR
hybrid contract is not measured at fair value through profit or loss. BEFTEEHEHF AZHERE -
Embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value AZITETARFERDALIERER
recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Reassessment only occurs if TETAAR - BMAXITETLAKAR
there is either a change in the terms of the contract that significantly EEAE /\‘Cfﬁfﬁﬁﬁ“‘“@ﬁ/\\%/\*im
modifies the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification TR o B A R R B K iE & H At
of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss category. BRATHRAECREXEMEERNAR

ABEFEEHEEHT A HEZER
EN N R SETERTME -

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a financial asset BAREGER (BEEREEEAR)

host is not accounted for separately. The financial asset host together with MITET AW IFERARK - ﬁﬂﬁﬁi

the embedded derivative is required to be classified in its entirety as a ERERRAXITETARZHBSER

financial asset at fair value through profit or loss. NARBEAEAES ‘@Eﬂ')\ié%ﬁé!ﬁﬁ
W EE
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a
group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from
the Group's consolidated statement of financial position) when:

. The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

o The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in
full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset
or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what
extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset. When
it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Group continues to
recognise the transferred asset to the extent of its continuing involvement. In
that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the
rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of
the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could
be required to repay.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (“ECLs") for all
debt instruments not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based
on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or
other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which there has
not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, ECLs are
provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible
within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for
which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a
lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk on a
financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. When
making the assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring
on the financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking information.
The Group considers that there has been a significant increase in credit risk
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments
are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group may also consider
a financial asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual
amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by
the Group.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

General approach (Continued)

A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the following stages for
measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the simplified
approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not
credit-impaired financial assets and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date (but
that are not purchased or originated credit-impaired) and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified
approach, the Group does not track changes in credit risk, but instead
recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based on its historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as
derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of
loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction
costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade payables, other payables,
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, amounts due to related parties
and lease liabilities.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

(i) Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and

borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest
rate method unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in
which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in
the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as
well as through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Subsequent measurement (Continued)

(i) Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts
that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due
in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial
guarantee contract is recognised initially as a liability at its fair value,
adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i) the ECL
allowance determined in accordance with the policy as set out in
“Impairment of financial assets”; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income
recognised.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is
reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

24 EXEFBERBE (F)

POLICIES (Continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as warrants. Such
derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the
date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as assets when the fair value
is positive and as liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value of derivatives are taken
directly to the statement of profit or loss.

Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is

determined on the weighted average basis and, in the case of work in
progress and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour and an
appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable value is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash

equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and short term
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term
deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to
use.
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Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Provisions
A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive)

has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable that a future outflow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the future
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in
the discounted present value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to items

recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each
reporting period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of each of the reporting period between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences,
except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of
goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries and associates, when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

24 EXEFBERBE (F)

POLICIES (Continued)

Income tax (Continued)
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences,

and the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and associates, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at
the end of each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if the
Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets and current
tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either to settle
current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

@ SHENZHEN HEPALINK PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP CO., LTD. FYIIiSE i E £ LR HHR AR ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FE &

Frig%t (&)

PREAIMRERIEER  BENREA
HIRR 2 RAER RS AHIE BRI ER
RELERMSHEE - FREZEATRLR
RGN - 7] AR MZE R HRE
HHEEZE BENRPHHAHEBERR MK
PAMEEE MEeBIARTEMERE
&= AT BERESN

. IMRE AR ERNET
SMEERBERGHEURX—EE
FABENVIAHER - Bt R Bk
EBAH MRXSHHESTHENH
ERTGENHBEEEZE R

. PR F AR REEQRWRE N
AR EREEREME - EEY
Rt BB REE R R RED -
i B Bi& Bl se R ERTUR T -
AAREINZEEREERE - 7
EHRBRTEMESHEE -

RNEBRESHRBHREMESHEENK
E1E - AR BE A 2 50 e FE AR T s A
NERERRANBEMSREE © Bl
R R B - RNXMmEMRENF
EARERAELEMSHEE - RAT 5L
B RAEERTOE MA@ 2 F R E D
BIEPTISTREE - RIRER AR ME A0 B -

BERSHEERBBRAERBEES
RREECERAREANTEAE X
VAT % 3 o5 HA Pl 45 R A1 2 2R p S B R AR
MR (RBOR) BEE -

EHEEAREEE A FORRBIITHORE
A EIEIR IR A E R R A ER
HORERSREERBREMSHAR
HF — BB AR — ERHE R
FIFERTE f8 (FRHIN & R REARE B E
HEEABECEMSHEABREE I
SRR FRAESENANERERE
B RFEREREENSERER) UKD
FiSHiE R - BBEEMSHEERELT
SR EdEn THEH -



Notes to Financial Statements

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Government grants
Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is

reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item,
it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the
costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred
income account and is released to the statement of profit or loss over the
expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments or
deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and released to the
statement of profit or loss by way of a reduced depreciation charge.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of goods
or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount, the amount
of consideration is estimated to which the Group will be entitled in exchange
for transferring the goods or services to the customer. The variable
consideration is estimated at contract inception and constrained until it is
highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which provides the
customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer for more than one year, revenue is measured at the
present value of the amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction between the
Group and the customer at contract inception. When the contract contains a
financing component which provides the Group with a significant financial
benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised under the contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract liability under the
effective interest method. For a contract where the period between the
payment by the customer and the transfer of the promised goods or services
is one year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a
significant financing component, using the practical expedient in IFRS 15.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Sale of products

Revenue from the sale of products is recognised at the point in time
when control of the asset is transferred to the customer, generally on
delivery of the products.

Some contracts for the sale of products provide customers with rights
of return. The rights of return give rise to variable consideration.

Contract development and manufacturing organisation
(“CDMO”) services

The Group earns revenues by providing research services to its
customers through Fee-for-service (“FFS"”) contracts. Contract duration
ranges from a few months to years. Under the FFS model, the contracts
usually have multiple task units, which are generally in the form of
technical laboratory reports and/or samples, each of which is with an
individual selling price specified within the contract. The Group
identifies each task unit as a separate performance obligation. The
revenue is recognised over time, as the Group’s performance has
created an asset with no alternative use and the Group has an
enforceable right to payments for performance completed to date. The
selection of the method to measure progress towards completion
requires judgement and is based on the nature of the products or
services to be provided. Depending on which better depicts the
transfer of value to the customer, the Group generally measures its
progress using cost-to-cost (input method).

Under the input method, the Group uses the known cost measure of
progress when it best depicts the transfer of value to the customer
which occurs as the Group incurs costs on its contract; and under the
cost-to-cost measure of progress, the extent of progress towards
completion is measured based on the ratio of costs incurred to date to
the total estimated costs at completion of the performance obligation.
Revenue is recorded proportionally as costs are incurred.

The Group also enters into commercial manufacturing contracts, and
engages in the manufacturing and sale of products under customers’
specific order. The Group recognised revenue at the point in time upon
acceptance of the deliverable products under customers’ specific order.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(c) Other services
The other service between the Group and its customers usually include
drug marketing service and consultation service, etc. The Group
recognised revenue during the service period in the amount to which it
is entitled.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.

Contract assets
A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or

services transferred to the customer. If the Group performs by transferring
goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or
before payment is due, a contract asset is recognised for the earned
consideration that is conditional. Contract assets are subject to impairment
assessment, details of which are included in the accounting policies for
impairment of financial assets.

Contract liabilities
A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a payment is

due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the Group transfers the
related goods or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when
the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the related
goods or services to the customer).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits

Share-based payments

The Company operates a share award scheme for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby
employees render services in exchange for equity instruments
("equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date on which they are granted. The fair
value is computed based on their most recent post-money valuations. The
cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee benefit expense,
together with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in which
the performance and service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has
expired and the Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss for a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Cash-settled scheme

The cost of cash-settled transactions is measured initially at the best estimate
of settlement amounts at the settlement date, taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the instruments were granted (note 34). The best
estimate of settlement amounts is expensed over the period until the vesting
date with recognition of a corresponding liability. The cumulative expense
recognised for cash-settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has
expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of awards that will
ultimately vest. The liability is measured at the end of each reporting period
up to and including the settlement date, with changes in best estimate of
settlement amounts at the settlement date recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Employee Benefits (Continued)

Pension scheme

The Group'’s subsidiaries which operates in Hong Kong operate a defined
contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for its
employees. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operates in Mainland China
are required to participate in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of its payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
contributions are charged to the statement of profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.

The Group contributes on a monthly basis to various defined contribution
plans organised by the relevant governmental authorities in various areas
other than Mainland China. The Group’s liability in respect of these plans is
limited to the contributions payable at the end of each reporting period.
Contributions to these plans are expensed as incurred.

Housing fund - Mainland China

The Group contributes on a monthly basis to a defined contribution housing
fund plan operated by the local municipal government. Contributions to this
plan by the Group are expensed as incurred.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

24 EXEFBERBE (F)

POLICIES (Continued)

Employee Benefits (Continued)

Defined benefit retirement plan obligations

The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit retirement plans is
calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of the future
benefit that employees have earned in return for their services in the current
and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine the present value,
and the fair value of any plan assets is deducted. The calculation is performed
by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the
calculation results in a benefit to the Group, the recognised asset is limited
to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future
refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan.

Service cost and net interest expense/(income) on the net defined benefit
liability/(asset) are recognised in profit or loss and allocated by function as
part of “cost of sales”, “selling and distribution expenses” or “administrative
expenses”. Current service cost is measured as the increase in the present
value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from the employee service in
the current period. When the benefits of a plan are changed, or when a plan
is curtailed, the portion of the changed benefit related to the past service
provided by employees, or the gain or loss on curtailment, is recognised as
an expense in profit or loss at the earlier of when the plan amendment or
curtailment occurs and when related restructuring costs or termination
benefits are recognised. Net interest expense/(income) for the period is
determined by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined
benefit obligation at the beginning of the reporting period on high quality
corporate bonds that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the
Group's obligations.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit retirement plans are recognised
in other comprehensive income. Remeasurements comprise actuarial gains
and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset) and any change in the
effect of the asset ceiling (excluding amounts included in net interest on the
net defined benefit liability/asset).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved by the
shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends are disclosed in
note 12 to the financial statements.

Foreign currencies
The financial statements are presented in RMB, which is the Company’s

functional currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency transactions
recorded by the entities in the Group are initially recorded using their
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling
at the end of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation of a
non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e.,
translation difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised
in other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related asset,
expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or
non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration, the date of initial
transaction is the date on which the Group initially recognises the
non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the advance
consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the
Group determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of the
advance consideration.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 24 ERETHEME (&)

POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)
The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries and associates are

currencies other than the RMB. As at the end of the reporting period, the
assets and liabilities of these entities are translated into the presentation
currency of the Company at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are translated into
RMB at the exchange rates that approximate to those prevailing at the dates
of the transactions.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of
a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive income relating
to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement of profit or
loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation and any fair
value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on
acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash flows
of overseas subsidiaries are translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling
at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated into RMB at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could require
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgements
In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, management has

made the following judgements, apart from those involving estimations,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements:

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group applied the following judgements that significantly affect the
determination of the amount and timing of revenue from contracts with
customers:

(a) Determining the timing of satisfaction of performance
obligations
The Group has different contractual arrangements with different
customers. In determining the timing of satisfaction of performance
obligations, management reviews the contract terms of each individual
contract.

For certain types of revenue under CDMO services, the directors of the
Company have recognised revenue upon the present right to payment
for the CDMO services and the point in time when a customer obtains
control of the goods or services. For revenue under the FFS model, the
directors of the Company have determined that performance
obligations are satisfied over time. Significant judgement is required in
determining whether the terms of the Group’s contracts with
customers in relation to certain types of revenue under the FFS model
create an enforceable right to payment for the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(b) Determining the method for measuring progress towards
complete satisfaction of performance obligations
Depending on which better depicts the transfer of value to the
customer, the directors of the Company make judgement to measure
the progress of the projects using the input method. Input methods
recognise revenue based on an entity’s efforts or inputs towards
satisfying a performance obligation relative to the total expected
efforts or inputs to satisfy the performance obligation. If an entity does
not have a reasonable basis to measure its progress, the Group
recognises revenue up to the amount of the costs incurred, until
progress can be reasonably measured.

Business model

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the
Group's business model for managing the financial assets. In determining the
business model, the Group considers how the performance of the business
model and the financial assets held within that business model are evaluated
and reported to the Group’s key management personnel, the risks that affect
the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within)
and, in particular, the way those risks are managed and how managers of
the business are compensated. In determining whether cash flows are going
to be realised by collecting the financial assets’ contractual cash flows, it is
necessary for the Group to consider the reason, timing, frequency, and value
of sales prior to maturity date.

Characteristics of contract cash flow

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the
financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics, and judgement is
required to determine whether they are “solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding”. The Group needs to
determine whether the resulting cash flows from those of an instrument with
modified time value of money element are significantly different from an
instrument that has an unmodified time value of money element when
assessing modification to time value of money element, and the Group needs
to determine whether the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant
when assessing a financial asset with a prepayment feature.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Determining significant influence over entities in which
the Group holds less than 20% equity interest

Despite the fact that the Group’s direct or indirect equity interest in Quest
PharmaTech Inc. (hereafter, the “Quest”) was 14.78% which was lower
than 20%, the Group had significant influence with a board representative
assigned and had the right to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the Quest PharmaTech Inc.

Determining no significant influence over entities in
which the Group holds more than 20% equity interest
Despite the fact that the Group’s direct or indirect equity interests in TPG
Biotechnology Partners V, L.P, TPG Biotechnology Partners IV, L.P, ORI
Healthcare Fund, L.P., Beijing Maple Sea Capital Equity Investment Fund
Partnership (Limited Partnership) and ORI Healthcare Fund I, L.P. were
68.52%, 20%, 20%, 24.69% and 33.28%, respectively, which were more
than 20%, the Group, as the limited partner, is entitled to investment return,
but has no right or power to participate in the management or control of
these entities. Therefore, the Group has no significant influence over these
entities.

Determining no significant influence over entities in
which the Group has a board seat

Despite the fact that the Group has a board seat in Shenzhen Top Dental
Medical Co., Ltd. and Guangzhou Heart Network Technology Co., Ltd., the
Group determined to have no significant influence over these entities after
taking into account all the facts and circumstances, such as the percentage
of equity interest, the composition of the boards and decision-making
mechanism and the way of the Group’s nominated director participating in
board meeting.

Determining indicators of impairment for investments in
associates

The Group determined whether there are indicators of impairment for
investments in associates at the end of each reporting period. Indicators of
impairment included, but not limited to serious deterioration of financial
condition of the associates, significant drop in share prices, adverse changes
in the industry market environment and other circumstances indicated that
the associates are unable to generate economic benefits for the Group.
When such an indicator exists, the Group tested its investments in associates
for impairment by comparing the estimated recoverable amounts with the
carrying amounts. An impairment exists when the carrying value of
investments in associates exceeds its recoverable amount.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty
The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of

estimation uncertainty at the end of each reporting period, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of

3.

EXRGEHH R MGG (F)

EEr T RERR
REEBREARAREDEBRRRI:EE

THRERRNEMEIERR (AFEHA
RTI—EYBREFEHEEZRAGEREE

assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below. EEERFHEMHERRR) HAmT -
Impairment of goodwill A& E
The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on an annual REBZLPEF-RABEHENRER

basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating
units to which the goodwill is allocated. Estimating the value in use requires
the Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of
goodwill at 31 December 2022 was RMB2,350,992,000 (2021:
RMB2,152,201,000). Further details are given in note 16 to the financial
statements.

Post-employment benefit obligations

The present value of the pension obligations depends on a number of factors
that are determined on an actuarial basis using a number of assumptions.
The discount rate is one of the assumptions used in determining the net cost
(income) for pensions. Any changes in these assumptions will impact the
carrying amount of pension obligations.

The Group determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year.
This is the interest rate that should be used to determine the present value of
estimated future cash outflows expected to be required to settle the pension
obligations. In determining the appropriate discount rate, the Group
considers using market yields at the end of each reporting period on high
quality United States corporate bonds of SPL Acquisition Corp., which is also
the currency that benefits will be paid, and make sure terms of corporate
bonds will match the estimated term of defined benefit plan.

Other key assumptions for pension obligations are partially based on current
market conditions.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision for expected credit losses on trade and other
receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade receivables. The
provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by geography, product type,
customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of credit and other forms
of credit insurance).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical observed
default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical
credit loss experience with forward-looking information. For instance, if
forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic product) are expected to
deteriorate over the next year which can lead to an increased number of
defaults in the manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are adjusted.
At each reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and
changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default rates,
forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount
of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and forecast economic
conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of
economic conditions may also not be representative of a customer’s actual
default in the future. The information about the ECLs on the Group’s trade
receivables and other receivables is disclosed in notes 23, 26 and 45 to the
financial statements, respectively.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can
be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The carrying value of deferred tax assets relating to recognised tax
losses at 31 December 2022 was RMB16,581,000 (2021: RMB21,998,000).
The amount of unrecognised tax losses at 31 December 2022 was
RMB573,690,000 (2021: RMB567,490,000). Further details are given in note
33 to the financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Fair value of unlisted equity investments

The unlisted equity investments have been valued based on a market-based
valuation technique as detailed in note 44 to the financial statements. The
valuation requires the Group to determine the comparable public companies
(peers) and select the price multiple. In addition, the Group makes estimates
about the discount for illiquidity and size differences. The Group classifies
the fair value of these investments as Level 2 and 3. The fair value of the
unlisted equity investments at 31 December 2022 was RMB1,458,596,000
(2021: RMB1,452,982,000). Further details are given in notes 19, 20, and 44
to the financial statements.

Development costs

Development costs are capitalised in accordance with the accounting policy
for research and development costs as detailed in note 2.4 to the financial
statements. Determining the amounts to be capitalised requires management
to make assumptions regarding the expected future cash generation of the
assets, the discount rates to be applied and the expected period of benefits.
The carrying amount of capitalised development costs at 31 December 2022
was RMB48,789,000 (2021: RMB39,803,000).

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a lease, and
therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR”) to measure lease
liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group would have to pay to
borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary
to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would
have to pay”, which requires estimation when no observable rates are
available or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions
of the lease. The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as
market interest rates) when available and is required to make certain
entity-specific estimates.

3.
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Notes to Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than
goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment for all
non-financial assets (including the right-of-use assets) at the end of each
reporting period. Indefinite life intangible assets are tested for impairment
annually and at other times when such an indicator exists. Other
non-financial assets are tested for impairment when there are indicators that
the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. An impairment exists when
the carrying value of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal
and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is
based on available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length
transaction of similar assets or observable market prices less incremental
costs for disposing of the asset. When value-in-use calculations are
undertaken, management must estimate the expected future cash flows from
the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised into business units based
on their products and services and has four reportable operating segments as
follows:

(@)  The finished dose pharmaceutical products segment mainly includes
enoxaparin sodium injection.

(b)  The active pharmaceutical ingredients segment includes standard
heparin sodium active pharmaceutical ingredients, and enoxaparin
sodium active pharmaceutical ingredients.

() The CDMO segment includes R&D, manufacturing, quality
management, program management and commercial manufacture

under customers’ specific orders.

(d)  The “others” segment.
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4.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on
reportable segment profit/loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss
before tax from continuing operations. The adjusted profit/loss before tax
from continuing operations is measured consistently with the Group's profit
before tax except that other income and gains, selling and distribution
expenses, administrative expenses, impairment losses on financial assets,
other expenses, finance costs and share of profits and losses of associates are
excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude cash and cash equivalents, pledged deposits,
deferred tax assets, equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income, derivative financial instruments, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss and other unallocated head office and
corporate assets as these assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, tax
payable, deferred tax liabilities and other unallocated head office and
corporate liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group basis.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with reference to the selling
prices used for sales made to third parties at the then prevailing market
prices.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REDIHER (F

(Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2022 BE-ZEZ_—_f+-A=+—HLEE
Finished dose Active

pharmaceutical ~ pharmaceutical

Segments products ingredients Others Total
Pk kS RHE CDMO At &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR

Segment revenue: FHBA
Sales to external customers HETHNPRE 3,210,465 2,673,754 1,084,066 182,754 7,151,039
Intersegment sales AHEHEE 2,468,477 3,369,777 2,213 435,821 6,276,288
5,678,942 6,043,531 1,086,279 618,575 13,427,327
Reconciliation: AR
Elimination of intersegment sales BHEHWHEHEE (6,276,288)
Revenue from contracts with customers B F A RYA 7,151,039
Segment results: PEEE: 1,071,893 925,075 418,754 54,927 2,470,649
Reconciliation: HE:
Elimination of intersegment results BHOBEEE (180,460)
Other income and losses Hing AREE 207,431
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEHEX (518,502)
Administrative expenses ABRX (742,461)
Impairment losses on financial assets £ B EEHEEE (61,067)
Impairment losses on associates BENTREES -
Other expenses HtA% (1,648)
Finance costs BAKAK (245,629)
Share of profits and losses of associates  fE{5EE & A A& F 2 &5 12 (98,462)
Group's profit before tax ALEBARE 829,851
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. BRETWER (A
(Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 (Continued) BE-Z--—F+-A=+—HLEFE
(#&)
Finished dose Active

pharmaceutical ~ pharmaceutical

Segments products ingredients Others Total
28 ENHAE R E CDMO Aty At
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARBTT

Segment assets APHEE 4,272,831 12,057,357 2,573,751 1,169,499 20,073,438
Reconciliation: HE

Elimination of intersegment receivables 4 5 25 f e Wi 008 (5,442,142)
Corporate and other unallocated assets M EREM AN EE 6,182,908
Total assets BELE 20,814,204
Segment liabilities FHEE 2,261,519 3,228,971 467,235 2,677,328 8,635,053
Reconciliation: .

Elimination of intersegment payables ~ #555 S E [ 2B (6,703,798)
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities (£ R E M A D E B E 6,475,310
Total liabilities BEAE 8,406,565
Other segment information H A HER

Impairment losses recognised in the RERXRERRE

statement of profit or loss, net ERFE 4,090 28,346 28,523 108 61,067
Depreciation and amortisation WEREH 47,343 89,404 77,826 97,434 312,007
Investments in associates REERR 2 RE 989,386
Capital expenditure* BARY 15,100 49,904 68,758 12,532 146,294
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4, REHIER (B
(Continued)

Year ended 31 December 2021 BE-ZE-_—F+-HA=+—HLEFE

Finished dose Active
pharmaceutical pharmaceutical
Segments products ingredients Others Total
P amsE R R CDMO Hip Bt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETRT AREFT ARETR AREFT
Segment revenue: AHBA

Sales to external customers HETHNEEP 2,638,151 2,721,733 813,104 186,798 6,359,786
Intersegment sales DEEEE 1,356,682 3,520,136 3,892 301,906 5,182,616
3,994,833 6,241,869 816,996 438,704 11,542,402

Reconciliation: HE
Elimination of intersegment sales HHSBEHEE (5,182,616)
Revenue from contracts with customers B F 4 RMA 6,359,786
Segment results: ABEE: 841,565 911,673 259,209 70,788 2,083,235

Reconciliation: AR
Elimination of intersegment results HHAPBEEE (89,653)
Other income and losses Hitl A REBB (11,682)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEHY (430,493)
Administrative expenses THHEY (668,326)
Impairment losses on financial assets &R EEHEBR (101,958)
Impairment losses on associates BENRARERR (223,092)
Other expenses HRx (5,463)
Finance costs MEAR A (210,074)
Share of profits and losses of associates {58 & A B3 7| & 18 (120,230)
Group's profit before tax ALEBARE 222,264
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4., RBESHER (&)
(Continued)
Year ended 31 December 2021 (Continued) BE-Z-—-F+-A=+—HLEFE
(#)
Finished dose Active
pharmaceutical pharmaceutical
Segments products ingredients Others Total
D EMA R¥ & (DMO ity Bt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Segment assets ABEE 3,616,707 11,062,171 2,080,120 1,272,434 18,031,432
Reconciliation: HE
Elimination of intersegment receivables 1 55 $HE % & (5,632,197)
Corporate and other unallocated assets (M EREMADEEE 6,708,942
Total assets EEAR 19,108,177
Segment liabilities AHEE 2,413,999 2,753,548 421,601 2,741,219 8,330,367
Reconciliation: .
Elimination of intersegment payables REDHEEE (6,334,993)
Corporate and other unallocated liabilities 2% &k £t A D BLE & 5,589,488
Total liabilties BEAE 7,584,862
Other segment information Ht A HER
Impairment losses recognised in the RERXRERRE
in the statement of profit or loss, net 18258 8,335 68,988 23,230 1,405 101,958
Depreciation and amortisation TEREE 50,782 86,367 75,438 94,207 306,794
Investments in associates RS AR ZRE 1,146,465
Capital expenditure* EREL* 2,580 80,118 67,025 26,298 176,021
@ As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, Capital expenditure consists of additions to = RZF_—FRZZB-_—F+ZA=+—

B EARAXBBERENE BEREM
B AE -

property, plant and other intangible assets.
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4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4. BRETWEFR (&)
(Continued)
Geographical information EEE R
(a) Revenue from external customers (a) KEIEBEF M A
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREFT
Hong Kong B 103,018 187,981
United States of America ESEd 1,387,152 956,132
Europe BUM 3,729,856 3,469,218
Mainland China B AT it 641,478 552,243
Other countries/regions HtER, 1,289,535 1,194,212
7,151,039 6,359,786
The revenue information above is based on the locations of the P ABE T ERERE R
customers. E o
(b) Non-current assets (b) ¥ EEE
2022 2021
—EC-—fF —E -4
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARBFIT
Mainland China A A i 2,705,525 2,850,044
United States of America e 3,610,134 3,368,616
Europe BOM 129,267 141,086
Hong Kong BB 282,596 384,431
6,727,522 6,744,177
The non-current asset information above is based on the locations of L E BB EER I EREE
the assets and excludes financial instruments and deferred tax assets. FEMNE @ TEESR T EEEL
Fri8 i & B °
Information about major customers ERTEREFWNER
During the year ended 31 December 2022, revenue of approximately REBEE-_E-_—_F+-_A=+—HBItF
RMB733,019,000 derived from sales to a single external customer, including E - KELBEWA10%A ) E—INED
sales to a group of entities which are known to be under common control ZEHENRAL A ARKT733,019,000
with that customer, accounted for more than 10% of the total revenue. T BEREAMEZRTES LR GG
—HERNHEE -
During the year ended 31 December 2021, revenue of approximately RNEBEE=-TE=-—F+=-_A=+—HIHE
RMB651,052,000 derived from sales to a single external customer accounted E - KBEEAEWAI10%A ERE IR
for more than 10% of the total revenue. FHEEmMRAL A AREEE51,052,0007T °
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5. REVENUE 5. WA
Revenue from contracts with customers EFESEWA
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (i) ZEKAEZH
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE-E-_—_F+=-H=+—HL
FE
Finished dose Active

pharmaceutical ~ pharmaceutical

Segments products ingredients Others Total
PN anun Ry (DMO Hit CH
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETTR

Types of goods or services IR b b

Sale of products Em#HE 3,210,465 2,673,754 - 128,629 6,012,848
CDMO services CDMORR% - - 1,084,066 - 1,084,066
Others At - - - 54,125 54,125
Total revenue from contracts EPAERKBA

with customers B 3,210,465 2,673,754 1,084,066 182,754 7,151,039
Geographical markets B T5
Hong Kong o 1,963 97,975 - 3,080 103,018
United States of America ES 432,952 96,971 814,462 42,767 1,387,152
Europe B 2,105,630 1,403,841 169,204 51,181 3,729,856
Mainland China RE A 367,906 227,096 - 46,476 641,478
Other countries/regions HEtER /e 302,014 847,871 100,400 39,250 1,289,535

Total revenue from contracts with  ZF A R4 A
customers k) 3,210,465 2,673,754 1,084,066 182,754 7,151,039

Timing of revenue recognition W A # 32 E

Products transferred at a EXEREE

point in time EBER 3,210,465 2,673,754 - 128,629 6,012,848
Services transferred at a TR RERRE

point in time BERE - - 320,179 20,207 340,386
Services transferred over time BEREEEBRE - - 763,887 33,918 797,805
Total revenue from contracts EPERKA

with customers B 3,210,465 2,673,754 1,084,066 182,754 7,151,039
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5. REVENUE (Continued) 5. WA (&)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) EFESEIWA (&)

(i) Disaggregated revenue information (Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021

(i) BEBRAEH (F)
BE-F--F+-A=t+—-HL

FE
Finished dose Active
pharmaceutical pharmaceutical
Segments products ingredients Others Total
ok ty | [R5 CDMO Hity G
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARBETTL ARETTL ARETT ARETT
Types of goods or services R R Al
Sale of products EmiHE 2,638,151 2,721,733 = 145,042 5,504,926
CDMO services CDMOFR% - - 813,104 - 813,104
Others Hify = = - 41,756 41,756
Total revenue from contracts with X F & RIRA &%
customers 2,638,151 2,721,733 813,104 186,798 6,359,786
Geographical markets B T5
Hong Kong BE 17,767 170,214 - = 187,981
United States of America el 208,886 49,989 658,688 38,569 956,132
Europe BOM 1,869,348 1,505,086 56,785 37,999 3,469,218
Mainland China B A i 243,529 221,213 - 87,501 552,243
Other countries/regions HMBR /& 298,621 775,231 97,631 22,729 1,194,212
Total revenue from contracts with X F & R A &%
customers 2,638,151 2,721,733 813,104 186,798 6,359,786
Timing of revenue recognition W A B 32 B
Products transferred at TR RRRE
a point in time HYBER 2,638,151 2,721,733 - 145,042 5,504,926
Services transferred at TR RERRE
a point in time B RE - - 111,924 9,326 121,250
Services transferred over time BEREEB RS - - 701,180 32,430 733,610
Total revenue from contracts with X P& R A &%
customers 2,638,151 2,721,733 813,104 186,798 6,359,786
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5. REVENUE (Continued) 5. WA (&)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) EZEASREWA (&)
(i) Disaggregated revenue information (Continued) (i) ZEKAEZEH (&)
The following table shows the amounts of revenue recognised during TRERNESERSEHIETTAS

the current reporting period that were included in the contract

HEBELELAHEEEITHED
BEFPHERNAE AT RS BERR

liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period and recognised from

performance obligations satisfied in previous periods: WA &5 -
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BT ARMT T
Revenue recognised that was included AAFENEHBEBELEHRN
in the contract liabilities balance at the BERERBA :
beginning of the year:
Sale of products EmigE 10,585 4,960
CDMO services CDMOfR T 407,679 257,228
418,264 262,188
(ii) Performance obligations (i) BHREMF

Information about the Group’s performance obligations is summarised

AEBENEENEMBRIT :

below:

Sale of products EmiEE

The performance obligation is satisfied at the point when control of BARTREBEAERRESR
asset is transferred to the customer. FESTA ©

CDMO services CDMOR %

For services under the FFS model, revenue is recognised over time, and TFFSIER THRBE M= - W AR
the performance obligation is a part of the contract that has an EZERHHERMER  BBYEEA

original expected duration of one year or less. Therefore, under
practical expedients allowed by IFRS 15, the Group does not disclose

VIRBBAMR BB —FNE R
EVAERC AR 3 - UL - ARIRCEIBR B
B EER) FNROATHEE
% ARETEHFFSIR AT AR
BHOBENEEETRE -

the value of unsatisfied performance obligations under the FFS model.
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5. REVENUE (Continued) 5. WA (#)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued) EFERIWA (&)
(ii) Performance obligations (Continued) (i) BHEF (&)
CDMO services (Continued) CDMOMR % (#)
For certain CDMO services, the directors of the Company have ®AETCOMORMEME * AARE
determined that performance obligations are satisfied upon acceptance FEHT  REIRFPAEIET
of the deliverable products under customers’ specific orders, and WARNEME  BOETHEST
therefore, the performance obligation is recognised as revenue at a B AL - A R F A R
point in time. R AUWNA -
The transaction prices allocated to the remaining performance R+—A=+—HBoBEEFHELD
obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31 December are EE (KRBT ARET) IR
as follows: SEBBAT :
2022 2021
-2 —T-_—fF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AR T T
Within one year —F R 652,130 1,194,897
All the performance obligations are expected to be recognised within FIERXHEETETT R —F A T LA
one year. The amounts disclosed above do not include variable R PMFIHENSHETEESR
consideration which is constrained. il By P] B o
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6.

OTHER INCOME AND GAINS/(LOSSES) 6. HttW ARz (E#E)
2022 2021
—E=-= T4
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARMEF T
Other income Hpg A
Bank interest income RITH B WA 54,139 54,857
Government grants related to ER AT 48 B ) AT #6 BD
— Assets* - BE* 4,744 2,071
— Income** — Yg A** 33,963 21,795
Dividend income from financial assets LAnEBEEHEEEHT AL
at fair value through profit or loss BafemEENREKA 7,107 28,575
Dividend income from financial assets EENAABEFEAEEEFHTAL
designated at fair value through other 2B E S REENREWA
comprehensive income - 15,488
99,953 122,786
Other gains/(losses) Hi s, (E18)
Foreign exchange gains/(losses), net &3 e (&8) - F58 186,331 (205,044)
(Losses)/gains on disposal of financial HENAARBEFEEEZSHTA
assets at fair value through profit or loss EHEFHNSREERN (BB) ks (5,624) 5,761
Fair value (losses)/gains, net: AREE(BER), W FH8E
Financial assets at fair value NAARBEAEBEEHTAEH
through profit or loss BamerEE (74,831) 68,065
Derivative instruments PTET A (26,869) (4,181)
Losses on disposal of items of property, HEWE BEARKEEBEEMNERE
plant and equipment (2,760) (5,105)
Gains on disposal of investment in associates HERE 2R RRE RS 21,771 -
Interest income from debt investment ERERENF S HA - 1,744
Others HAth 9,460 4,292
107,478 (134,468)
207,431 (11,682)

* %

The Group has received certain government grants related to assets to invest in
laboratory equipment and plant. The grants related to assets were recognised in profit
or loss over the useful lives of the relevant assets.

The government grants and subsidies related to income have been received to
compensate for the Group’s research and development costs. Certain of the grants
related to income have future related costs expected to be incurred and require the
Group to comply with conditions attached to the grants and the government to
acknowledge the compliance of these conditions. These grants related to income are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods that
the costs, for which they are intended to compensate, are expensed.

Other government grants related to income that are receivables as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate financial
support to the Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivables.
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PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% o= I AE
31 December 2022
—EFE-—F+ZH=+—H

7. AR E
REBRFBAE D&% (GEA) A

TEIBEEH
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
M 5 AR®T T ARBEF T
Cost of inventories sold HEFEHKA 4,191,405 3.812,987
Cost of services provided =R 80 AR R 669,445 553,217
Depreciation of property, ME  WMEMIBITE
plant and equipment 14 219,970 217,492
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 15(a) 38,741 37,782
Amortisation of other intangible assets Hqth S A 17 53,296 51,520
Research and development costs* R N 252,142 221,099
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 6 % B 6,010 7,050
Employee benefit expenses EERMHS (REEERESN
(including directors’ and supervisors’ ) -
remuneration) :
Salaries and other benefits TERHEMEF 654,005 560,762
Pension scheme contributions, social BRARSETEHAR - LSRR
welfare and other welfare** E fib 1@ A 120,378 123,824
Rental expenses not included in the Rt AHEEEFENHES I
measurement of lease liabilities 2,488 2,315
Bank interest income RITFE WA 6 (54,139) (54,857)
Finance costs BEKA 8 245,629 210,074
Interest income from debt investment F%&EHX’ B & B A - 1,744
Dividend income from financial assets at LA AR BEEHEEEH T AE
fair value through profit or loss HiEnNERnEEN
AR E A (7,107) (28,575)
Dividend income from financial NARBESEBEEEE T AH
assets at fair value through other HEEmKRENSREEMRE
comprehensive income KA - (15,488)
Foreign exchange (gains)/losses, net EH () BEERE 6 (186,331) 205,044
Losses/(gains) on disposal of financial Hj%L/{’“’TFTEJEHEi\‘“‘@Hr
assets at fair value through profit or loss A EHERHESREES
&8, () 6 5,624 (5,761)
Fair value losses on derivative instruments 74 T B A 7 BEEE 6 26,869 4,181
Fair value losses/(gains) on financial assets L/{’Afﬂﬁﬁﬁiﬂﬁﬁ;@ﬁf)\%
at fair value through profit or loss HH BRENEREEN
ARBEEEE (W) 6 74,831 (68,065)
Losses/(gains) on disposal of items of HEWE - J??i%& S IE B A
property, plant and equipment B8 (Y2 6 2,760 5,105
Gains on disposal of investment in HEREE A T&ﬁﬁ‘]ﬂ&lm
associates 6 (21,771) =
Impairment losses on financial assets: CHEERBEERE
Impairment losses on trade receivables Z 5 EWRIB R EEE 24 48,858 68,659
Impairment losses on financial assets ST ATERTFIA -« Ho A FE R IE R
included in prepayments, other & 7 DA X FE W BA B 5 SR IE
receivables and other assets and due MemEEREER
from related parties 12,209 33,299
Write-down of inventories to WoRTF B = A #3RFE
net realisable value 36,434 34,919
Impairment losses on associates HiE & N AR E BT 1B = 223,092
i Research and development costs are included in “Administrative expenses” in the * MERABSEEABERNTERES]
consolidated statement of profit or loss. f oo
*x There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by the Group as the employer to o0 ﬁéﬁ&'{ﬁj%&z&u&m it 3K ] 1#$§ B (R

’BE) BiERD fﬁﬁﬁ’] £ K

reduce the existing level of contributions.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FE R SHENZHEN HEPALINK PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP CO., LTD. FYIfiEE i E £ E BB HER AR @



Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% o3k I AT
31 December 2022
—E - —Ff—H=+—H

8. FINANCE COSTS 8. RMERZE

An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BERAIFTOT :
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR TR ARETF T

Interest expenses on: ATHEIBEOHNELH

Bank borrowings RITER 160,912 121,352
Corporate bonds NEfEH 69,327 76,406
Lease liabilities HEAE 5,003 3,873
Other finance costs H b Bh & A A 10,387 8,443
245,629 210,074

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’

REMUNERATION

The remuneration of each director and supervisor as recorded during the year

is set out below:

ESRESHM

RERFESNESREEZHFHEIIWT

2022 2021
—E-C—F —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARET T
Fees W 300 300
Other emoluments: HAaBi <2 :

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EZMEEYER 5,237 8,058
Performance related bonuses* 1B SR TE AT * 4,197 4,858
Pension scheme contributions RINSET B 166 177
9,900 13,393

* Certain executive directors and supervisors of the Company are entitled to bonus * AABEFHITESRESHGREESTE

payments which are determined as a percentage of the profit after tax of the Group.

A AKERBRRFNE D LEE -
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ 9. ESREEFM (&
REMUNERATION (Continued)
(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BUFHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the year FARAINFBIIFRITEETNES
were as follows: mr
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®ET T AREFT
Mr. Chen Junfa PR &2 8% S 100 100
Mr. Wang Zhaohui FEBEE 100 100
Mr. Lu Chuan allkeE 100 100
300 300
There were no other emoluments payable to the independent FREEEMEMNBIIFRITES
non-executive directors during the year (2021: Nil). e (ZE=——F:F) -
(b) Executive directors and supervisors (b) HITEERESE
Salaries, Performance Pension
Year ended allowances and -related scheme Total
31 December 2022 benefits in kind bonuses contributions remuneration
BE-Z--f#+-A=+-H e 2E Bk
LEE RENER & AL T B EAy Fab]
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥T R ARBTR ARET R AR¥ETR
Executive directors WITES
Mr. Li Li FERE 1,472 1,437 54 2,963
Ms. Li Tan FHELZL 1,188 1,221 9 2,418
Mr. Shan Yu BFELE 1,301 1,330 8 2,639
Mr. Zhang Bin (note (ii)) 5RO 7% A& (HIEE() 562 - n 573
Supervisors Ex
Mr. Zheng Zehui HEBEE 100 = - 100
Mr. Tang Haijun EEHRE 336 112 45 493
Ms. Su Jilan Fiaimat 278 97 39 414
5,237 4,197 166 9,600
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ 9. EEREEHFME
REMUNERATION (Continued)
(b) Executive directors and supervisors (Continued) (b) HITEERES (&)
Salaries, Performance Pension
Year ended allowances and -related scheme Total
31 December 2021 benefits in kind bonuses contributions remuneration
BE-_Z-—-F+-A=+-8 e 2 RRE
EFE REMER EMA A HE Hoian
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARBFL AREFT AREFT
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Li Li FEEE 1,462 1,388 48 2,898
Ms. Li Tan ES G 1,191 1,179 9 2,379
Mr. Shan Yu BERE4 1,248 1,284 8 2,540
Mr. Sun Xuan (note (i) T&IE £ 4 (P3E() 1,608 - 7 1,615
Mr. Zhang Bin (note (ii)) SR 58 A (FT ) 1,837 804 32 2,673
Supervisors Bz
Mr. Zheng Zehui BEEEs 100 - - 100
Mr. Tang Haijun Eisepited 332 111 39 482
Ms. Su Jilan Bugzt 280 92 34 406
8,058 4,858 177 13,093
Notes: P 5E -
(i) Mr. Sun Xuan was appointed as an executive director of the Company with (i) BESAEE - E_EF_A-_t++
effect from 27 February 2020 and resigned on 6 May 2021. AW ERARARNITES - I

RZZEZ—FRANAEIE-

(ii) Mr. Zhang Bin was appointed as an executive director of the Company with (ii) FEEEA-_T-_—EFERA=-+~

effect from 26 May 2021 and resigned on 29 April 2022. AREERARARNITES - I

N —FNA-+NHEE-

There was no arrangement under which a director or a supervisor FRBES Bk B FEWNEN R BN
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. (T # e & HE -
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10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 10. EEREFMES
None of the five highest paid employees during the year are directors (2021: BMEEE(ZZE-_—F:8) BAE
None), details of whose remuneration are set out in note 9 above. Details of RERNK AL &= AT - EFHEF
the remuneration for the year of the remaining five (2021: five) highest paid BEHEN EXHFI - A AEZ(ZE - —
employees who are not directors of the Company are as follows: F:RR)WIFARREEN R T E

ENFRNFIFIBOT

2022 2021
—E-= —E—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETFT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMREWMEF 12,943 14,317
Performance-related bonuses EEMRTEAT 6,345 5,025
Pension scheme contributions BRIRSETEIHER 1,119 1,306
20,407 20,648

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose remuneration fell FMENTHEERNNEES RS FHE

within the following bands is as follows: BASMT :

Number of employees

EE#®E
2022 2021
—E-C—HF —E-—F
Nil to HK$3,500,000 L 33,500,000 7T 2 =
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7T 24,000,000/ T - 1
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7T £4,500,0007% 7T 1 2
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 7 £5,000,0007% 7T = -
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,001,8 7L £5,500,0007% 7T 1 =
HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 5,500,001,8 7T £6,000,0007% 7T = -
HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000 6,000,001 7C £6,500,0007% 7T = 1
HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,000,000 6,500,0017% 7 £7,000,0007 7T = 1
HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000 7,000,001/ 7 £7,500,0007% 7T 1 =
5 5
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11.

INCOME TAX

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profit arising in or
derived from the jurisdictions in which members of the Group are domiciled
and operate.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law") and
Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the EIT rate of the PRC
subsidiaries is 25% unless they are subject to tax exemption set out below.

The Company was accredited as a “High and New Technology Enterprise” in
2018, the qualification of which was subsequently renewed in 2021, and
therefore, the Company was entitled to a preferential CIT rate of 15% for
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. This qualification is subject to
review by the relevant tax authority in the PRC for every three years.

Shenzhen Techdow Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. was accredited as a “High and
New Technology Enterprise” in 2017, the qualification of which was
subsequently renewed in 2020, and therefore, Shenzhen Techdow
Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. was entitled to a preferential CIT rate of 15% for
the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. This qualification is subject to
review by the relevant tax authority in the PRC for every three years.

The Group’s entities incorporated in USA are subject to the federal corporate
tax rate of 21% for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. The state
income tax rate remains within the range from 1% to 10% for the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

The Group's entities incorporated in Europe, other than Netherland and ltaly,
are subject to the corporate income tax at a rate ranging from 11% to 33%
for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed the Inland
Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”) which introduces the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March
2018 and was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group
entity are taxed at 8.25%), and profits above HK$2 million are taxed at
16.5%. The profits of the group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5% for the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

11.
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11. INCOME TAX (Continued) 11. T8 # (&)
The Group's entities incorporated in Netherland are subject to the corporate HE-_Z2-_—_F#+-_A=+—HIL*#F
income tax at a rate of 15% (2021: 15%) for taxable income that does not B AEBAEREEMRINERE 2 E
exceed the amount of EUR395,000 (2021: EUR245,000), and if the taxable R A B 38395,000@ T (—ZE = —
income exceeds the amount of EUR395,000 (2021: EUR245,000), the tax rate F 1 245,000 7T) KD 7EIR15% (= F
of 25.8% (2021: 25%) should apply to the portion that exceeds the amount Z—F 15%) MR EHMDERIER
of EUR395,000 (2021: EUR245,000) for the year ended 31 December 2022. fish JE 3R 7 U A FB 48395,000B T (= &

——% :245,00087T) - AlJ#8i8395,000
BT (ZZ Z—4F : 245,0008T) 8965
AIR258% (T T~ —4F : 25%) BRI R
BN EPEE -

The Group's entity incorporated in Italy is subject to the corporate income Bz -_—_Fr-_ZT-_—+=-A
tax at a rate of 24% and Imposta regionale sulle attivita produttive (“IRAP") =+ —HIEFE  EEAMZEMK LS
tax at a rate of 3.9% for the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. EEERBEEA%NTR MM XS

B WR3.9%HI B R B AR B

The major components of the income tax expense/(credit) for the year are as FRNABHRES (ER) K EZHERI
follows: ST :
2022 2021
—E-— —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Current tax expense: BNERFI B R XX ¢
PRC i 56,733 60,861
USA E3E 90,431 81,920
Elsewhere H b th (= 12,638 15,558
(Over)/Under provision in prior years BAEFE (BERE) BETR (1,338) 1,098
158,464 159,437
Deferred tax (credit)/expense: EEFRE(KR) FX
PRC 3 (2,785) (113,925)
USA =S (40,902) (62,985)
Elsewhere H b b [ 387 6,353
(43,300) (170,557)
Total tax charge/(credit) for the year FRBEIE (ER) L 115,164 (11,120)
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11. INCOME TAX (Continued)

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before tax at the
statutory rates for the jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority of

1. &% (&)
RBAFBEAR T RAASS FAA
P 4E 70 B % B B0 25 T 56 A 5B IE B)
YEEERBES HAERL LR

its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rates, and

a reconciliation of the statutory tax rates to the effective tax rates, are as AREERRETERFERAERMOT :
follows:
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R % AR®FIT %
Profit before tax 5 B ) E 829,851 222,264
Tax at the statutory tax rate BAEBEFE 2 BIE 206,974 25 66,596 30
Lower tax rate for specific provinces 45 5E 44 15 3 ih 5 #4 8
or enacted by local authority 78 1 B B B 3 (44,827) (5) (15,125) (7)
Effect on opening deferred tax of FI R 3 S HA W) AT
decrease in rates HIEHEE (15,725) (2) (36,450) (16)
Adjustments in respect of current otiB 1T BARS B HA R 1B
tax of previous periods EE R A (1,338) = 1,098 -
Income not subject to tax RHWA (51,916) (6) (10,517) (5)
Expenses not deductible for tax Al ML 2 746 - 4,934 2
Utilisation of previously unrecognised & F3 38 7+ 7k i 2 &
tax losses MIEEE (12,061) (1) (2,643) (1
Tax losses and temporary 2 T 52 B T &5 18 A
difference not recognised TR 50,629 6 22,656 10
Super deduction for research and R AR RR R
development expenses (32,794) (4) (31,483) (14)
Others Hity 15,476 2 (10,186) (5)
Tax charge at the Group'’s BAREE N BREH X
effective rate AEHHIER 115,164 14 (11,120) (5)
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12. DIVIDENDS 12. BRE
2022 2021
—E-C—F —TE-—F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTR ARBFT
Proposed final — RMB10.0 cent R AR H—
(2021: RMB3.5 cent) per ordinary share BREERARE10.0D
ZEZ—F: AR®35%) 146,730 51,355
The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the approval of the AR F R R R 8RR Bs AR B AR R
Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting. RENERITHFERRERNG L& -
13. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 13. LA EEBREGREA
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT ELAERER
The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share amounts are GREARHERNOFERERAGR
based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent, and BT EREREAEAELSN  UWEE
the weighted average number of 1,467,296,204 ordinary shares (2021: A E171,467,296,2048 L i@ A% (= &
1,467,296,204) in issue during the year as adjusted to reflect rights issue = — 1% :1,467,296,2048%) H I #E 15
during the year. The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in (KA URBREAERK) -HE=
issue during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021. T —FR_E-_—F+_-_H=1+—H
IEFE AEEMEERTHNELERE
AR -
The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based on: BRERLEBEBREFOAEER
2022 2021
—E-—F — T4
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T AR T T
Earnings Pkl
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders SBRARIEEREZFTEA
of the parent & 15 Y% Kl 727,077 240,788

Year ended 31 December

BE+=-HA=+—BHLFE

2022 2021
—E:-— — T —%F
Number of shares gnE 2 gE!
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in & A B %17 Z @R &Y
issue during the year, used in the basic and METFHE - ARETE
diluted earnings per share calculation FRER K EERF 1,467,296,204 1,467,296,204
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15. LEASES 15. &
The Group as a lessee rEBEREEA
The Group has lease contracts for various items of properties, equipment, AEBREKLLEPFEROSEDE R
motor vehicles and leasehold land in its operations. Lump sum payments B WHENHELHWEERERES
were made upfront to acquire the leased land from the owners with lease H) o BARATVEH — RS FRBA ) EE 2 R
periods of 30 to 50 years, and no ongoing payments will be made under the IR E T - FHEIR30E504F - MIRE
terms of these land leases. Leases of properties generally have lease terms ZETHAENKT  BTe#E S~
between 2 and 17 years; equipment generally has lease terms between 2 and FRIRIE - MEREZHEBE R2E17
5 years; and motor vehicles generally have lease terms between 2 and 4 FRB2ERBER2ESF LK
years. Other equipment generally has lease terms of 12 months or less (e.g. BHABBEAR2EAF KRB M
oxygen tanks and trucks) or is individually of low value (e.g. computers and HEETANRAEAER (MEaREK
printers). RE)  HEARNEETS (MBI KERX
#) o
(a) Right-of-use assets (a) EHEELE
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and the AEBFRNEAEEENERER
movements during the year are as follows: FBHOT :
Properties Equipment Motor vehicles Leasehold land Total
LS R KeE HELH @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETR ARBTT ARB T AR®T T ARETR

As at 1 January 2021 R=F-_—F—HF—H 59,794 4,563 3,178 118,656 186,191
Additions i 94,698 - - - 94,698
Depreciation charge NEER (27,867) (3,062) (1,899) (4,954) (37,782)
Early termination AT IE (838) - - - (838)
Exchange realignment I 5 & (2,121) (67) (227) - (2,415)

As at 31 December 2021 and R-T=—4F

1 January 2022 +ZA=+—-8k
—Z-—F—Hf—H 123,666 1,434 1,052 113,702 239,854
Additions i 33,272 - 269 - 33,541
Depreciation charge NEEA (31,781) (1,100) (906) (4,954) (38,741)
Exchange realignment i 5 3% 9,708 90 9) = 9,789

As at 31 December 2022 R-E-—&+-H
=i=E 134,865 424 406 108,748 244,443

@ SHENZHEN HEPALINK PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP CO., LTD. ;&Y S in £ £ @A B R A F ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FE &
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15. LEASES (Continued) 15. HE& (&)
The Group as a lessee (Continued) rEBERABA (&)
(b) Lease liabilities (b) HEEE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during the FAHEAEMNEREEERED N
year are as follows: N
2022 2021
—E-= TEC—F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T ARBFT
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BME@EE 135,755 77,243
New leases minE 33,541 94,698
Accretion of interest recognised during the year 4 R & F & 18 hn 5,003 3,873
Payments XA (38,325) (35,996)
Early termination R IE - (1,124)
Exchange realignment & 5 3 & 10,465 (2,939)
Carrying amount at 31 December R+-—A=+—HHEEE 146,439 135,755
Analysed into: DA -
Current portion B EAER 3 35,690 31,754
Non-current portion FEBNERED 5 110,749 104,001
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 45 to the HEBBEND B S TEMBER
financial statements. KM 45 o
(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation (c) RHEELEEZ PEZNE
to leases are as follows: E-- /1
2022 2021
—=E=-_= —ET-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREBTT
Interest on lease liabilities HEBBENFE 5,003 3,873
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FREESENTER 38,741 37,782
Expense relating to short-term leases RAEHEAEMAX 1,013 1,367
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets HEEEEEHEFHE X 1,475 948
Total amount recognised in profit or loss Rz P IR RIE B R 46,232 43,970
(d) The total cash outflow for leases and future cash outflow relating to (d) HEEMRSREEEER M ARBEE
leases that have not yet commenced are disclosed in notes 39 and 45, HENRRRE LSS RIRH
respectively, to the financial statements. TSR M aE39 45 57 -
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15. LEASES (Continued) 15.

The Group as a lessor
The Group leases its certain properties (note 14) consisting of certain

buildings in Mainland China under operating lease arrangements. The terms
of the leases generally require the tenants to pay security deposits and
provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the then prevailing market
conditions. Rental income recognised by the Group during the year was
RMB7,178,000 (2021: RMB3,842,000), details of which are included in note
6 to the financial statements.

At 31 December 2022, the undiscounted lease payments receivable by the
Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating leases with its
tenants are as follows:

HE (&)

AEBEESEHAA
AEBRBEEHELHEERETE
M EE TWE (Hi14)  BEETE
&Y o HEKRK—REFMEPLINRE
2 UHREERBEERTREHFHEE
T ARERFARINESRARA
R#7,178,000 (ZT=—%F : AR¥
3,842,0007T) - #HIFHE A M MK M &
6 °

R-ZBE-_—_F+-_A=+—H ~&H
RIEEBFAIY 2 TA BEEL2HEN
KRRz BUCKMBHEENZTOT

2022 2021

—Zg=-= —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBT T ARBFT

Within one year —F R 8,013 153
After one year but within two years —FHRERREA 7,905 147
After two years but within three years MERER=ZFR - 73
15,918 373

@ SHENZHEN HEPALINK PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP CO., LTD. ;&Y S in £ £ @A B R A F ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FE &
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16. GOODWILL 16. &
RMB'000
ARBFT
At 1 January 2021: R=-ZE=-—-%—-HA—H:
Cost PN 2,202,566
Accumulated impairment REHRE -
Net carrying amount BREFE 2,202,566
Cost at 1 January 2021, net of accumulated impairment KRB —F—A—HBHKAK -
Bk ZFTRE 2,202,566
Impairment during the year FNRE =
Exchange realignment bE W T (50,365)
At 31 December 2021 R-_ZE-_—F+-HA=+—H 2,152,201
At 31 December 2021: R-B-_—-+=-A=+—-R8:
Cost [Pz 2,152,201
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE =
Net carrying amount BREFE 2,152,201
Cost at 1 January 2022, net of accumulated impairment R-ZTE_—_F— A —HHRKRAKX
Bk RFHRE 2,152,201
Impairment during the year FARE -
Exchange realignment e X A 198,791
Cost and net carrying amount at 31 December 2022 R-E-—_F+-_A=1+—HAOKARK
BRMEFE 2,350,992
At 31 December 2022: R=ZB=-=Ff—H—H8:
Cost (D% 2,350,992
Accumulated impairment ZFRE =
Net carrying amount BRTE A 2,350,992
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16. GOODWILL (Continued)

16. BE (&)

188

SHENZHEN HEPALINK PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP CO., LTD. FYIIiSE i E £ LR HHR AR

Impairment testing of goodwill
On 9 April 2014, goodwill arising from the acquisition of SPL Acquisition
Corp. amounted to RMB1,297,621,000.

On 5 October 2015, goodwill arising from the acquisition of Cytovance
Biologics Inc. amounted to RMB814,940,000.

Goodwill is allocated to Heparin SPL cash-generating unit (“SPL CGU") and
CDMO cash-generating unit (“CDMO CGU") (collectively of the two above,
the “CGUs") for impairment testing. The recoverable amounts of the Heparin
SPL CGU and CDMO CGU have been determined based on the higher of VIU
and FVLCD. VIU is determined using cash flow projections based on financial
budgets covering a five-year period approved by senior management. In
measuring FVLCD, multiple valuation techniques are used to measure fair
value. The fair value is evaluated using a combination of the income
approach and the market approach, with 50 percent weighting for each
approach.

The respective recoverable amounts and the carrying values of the CGUs as
at 31 December 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

EAENRENR
WZZE—-—mMEmMANE - KESPL
Acquisition Corp. E A EE A AR
1,297,621,0007T °

RZZT—AF+HAARHB - WEECytovance
Biologics INCEAHWEERARE
814,940,0007T °

B A D B4R FF RSPLIR € & 4 B U
CDMORESELEEBEMN (N EZEHRBIA
SEEEN])EITHERR - FFESPLR
S EABMMCOMOR S E LB 2 A
WESBEIEERBEREA N BERL
ERANBESEET FREBERBE
RERAEEENEN T FHRPEES
MRS TREREANESE - EEQR
BERLEXAR JRBZEMGER
Mt EAREE - DR EBEKERABKRAK
RS ERGEE N A E (BE50% MRS
E)HFHSE -

RZE-_—_FrR=-_ZF=-_—F+=A
=t+—HNBESELEBMMAIKRE S5
FEEEmENT :

Heparin SPL CGU HFESPLE 2 E£E N
2022 2021
—=E—_= — T4
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARE T T
Recoverable amount AJ U [El & 58 3,521,998 3,007,418!
Carrying value including allocated goodwill REE(BEESREES) 3,101,140 2,696,988
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16. GOODWILL (Continued)
Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)

16.

B 155 o 2% Pf 5
31 December 2022
—EFE-—F+ZH=+—H
mE (&)
BENRERA S (&)

CDMO CGU CDMOR £ E4 EY
2022 2021
-2 —E-—fF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARBEF T
Recoverable amount Al U el & 58 2,033,344 2,028,887'
Carrying value including allocated goodwill REE(BREESREER) 1,855,349 1,650,253

1. The recoverable amount was determined based on FVLCD.

2. The recoverable amount was determined based on VIU.

For income approach, the pre-tax discount rates applied to the cash flow
projections, the forecasted growth rates and earnings before interest, taxes,
depreciation and amortisation (“EBITDA") margin used to extrapolate cash
flow projections and terminal growth rates are as follows:

1. ARESBERAAEERDERAETE

2. A E S BIREREEREE

BRUBMAEMS - RABRB AR RHETT
BEREER  AREHBESREED
RTERIE REAMARIMGRF B  BIE - 7
ER#HENET (TEBITDA]) FIBRUAR
RAREREMOT ¢

Heparin SPL CGU FFESPLE £ ELEN
2022 2021
—E-— —E-—%F
Revenue growth average rates WA FH R =X 14% 13%
EBITDA average margin EBITDAYF 35 Fl) jA == 24% 24%
Pre-tax discount rate FRATITER & 16.9% 17.0%
Terminal revenue growth rate S Y PN 2.5% 2.5%
CDMO CGU CDMOE £ E4£E W
2022 2021
—EB-—F —E-—F
Revenue growth average rates WA 1538 & = 8% 10%
EBITDA average margin EBITDAY 39 7 ) = 30% 27%
Pre-tax discount rate TR IR K 15.3% 14.4%
Terminal revenue growth rate AR A K R 2.5% 2.5%
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16. GOODWILL (Continued)

16. BE (&)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)
Assumptions were used in the VIU calculation of the CGUs for 31 December

2022 and 2021. The following describes each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projections to undertake impairment
testing of goodwill:

Revenue growth rate — The revenue growth rate is based on the average
growth achieved in the past years and the expected revenue from sales of
heparin, pancreatin and CDMO services.

Budgeted EBITDA margins — The basis used to determine the value assigned
to the budgeted gross margins is the EBITDA margins achieved in the year
immediately before the budget year, increased for expected market
development.

Discount rate — The discount rate used is before tax and reflects specific
risks relating to the relevant unit.

The values assigned to the key assumptions on market development and the
discount rate are consistent with external information sources.

For market approach, fair value was determined based on ratios of enterprise
value ("EV") divided by revenue and EBITDA of several comparable public
companies for specific historical and/or forecasted years. Multiples were
selected for the respective time periods and multiplied by the revenue and
EBITDA of the related CGU, resulting in an implied EV of the CGU, on a
minority, marketable basis. Weightings were applied to the implied
indications of value and a control premium was added to arrive at an EV on a
controlling, marketable basis. The guideline companies were selected based
on a comprehensive search of publicly-listed companies in the CGU's
industry, such that the guideline companies had similar or comparable
operations and were likely exposed to similar risks as the CGU. The selected
multiples and control premium are as follows:
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Notes to Financial Statements

16. GOODWILL (Continued)

B 7% o= I AE
31 December 2022
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16. BE (&)

Heparin SPL CGU HFESPLE L ELEN
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
Revenue multiples ONEE n/a 7E A n/a i@ A
EBITDA multiples EBITDAfS £k 9.7x & 6.5x-10.0x
Control premium 122 16 7 Vi (B 5.0% 5.0%
CDMO CGU CODMOE £ E4EN
2022 2021
—E-C-HF —TE-—F
Revenue multiples WA &S 2.0x-2.2x 1& 2.0x-2.5x f&
EBITDA multiples EBITDAfE £k 8.0x-9.0x & 8.5x-9.0x &
Control premium 2= il i (B 10.0% 10.0%

Assumptions were used in the FVLCD of the CGUs for 31 December 2022
and 2021. The following describes each key assumption on which
management has based to undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Revenue multiples — The revenue multiples are based on the CGU'’s historical
and forecasted performance compared to those of the guideline companies,
as well as how the business has been performed relative to the plan for that
period.

EBITDA multiples — The basis used to determine the value of EBITDA
multiples is the CGU’s historical and forecasted profitability performance
compared to those of the guideline companies, as well as relative to the
plan, and initiatives driving profitability.

Control Premium — The control premium is based on review of recent
transactions in the industry and the comparability of the transactions to the
respective CGUSs.
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Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% o3k I AT
31 December 2022
—E - —Ff—H=+—H

18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. REEE RAINKRE
2022 2021
—EC-CF —_E-—%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BT T ARBFIT
Share of net assets EIEEEFE 260,211 401,903
Goodwill on acquisition W FEENEE 952,267 967,654
1,212,478 1,369,557
Provision for impairment VKR L (223,092) (223,092)
989,386 1,146,465

At the end of the reporting period, in view of the loss-making, the directors
of the group estimated the recoverable amounts which were the higher of
VIU and the fair value less costs of disposal (“FVLCD") of the investments in
associates for the purpose of impairment testing.

In respect of the recoverable amount using VIU, the discounted cash flow
calculations were based on cash flow projections estimated by management
and the key assumptions adopted in these cash flow projections include
revenue growth rate, profit margins and discount rate. In respect of the
recoverable amount based on FVLCD, the FVLCD was calculated using certain
key valuation assumptions including the selection of comparable companies,
recent market transactions and liquidity discount for lack of marketability.

As a result, no impairment provision was made against the carrying amounts
of the above investments in associates during the year ended 31 December
2022.(2021: RMB223,092,000)

The Group's trade receivables with associates are disclosed in note 42 to the
financial statements.
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18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Notes to Financial Statements

18.

As of 31 December 2022, particulars of the Group’s associates are as follows:

Particulars of

Place of
registration

B 7% o= I AE
31 December 2022
—EFE-—F+ZH=+—H

REERNTNKRE (&
HE-_ZT-_—F+-A=+—H X%
EEEABMNFBOT

Percentage of
ownership interest
attributable to

Name issued shares held and business the Group Principal activities
e R BERAEEH

A8 R 17 #9 3 15 HAMMEERE HEEEREOL TEER
Hightide Therapeutics, Inc. (hereafter, the "HighTide") Ordinary shares Cayman Islands 40.19% Biopharmaceutical R&D
Hightide Therapeutics, Inc. (A TE&E B2 %)) LEk HEHE BB %
Resverlogix Corp. Ordinary shares Canada 32.10% Biopharmaceutical R&D
LBk mex EY BB

OncoQuest Inc. Ordinary shares Canada 36.08% Biopharmaceutical R&D
EBR mex EY BB

Shenzhen Asia Pacific Health Management Co., Ltd. Ordinary shares PRC 27.43% Health Management
RYTEARRERERAA LBk HE consulting

R FRE R

Quest Pharma Tech Inc. (hereafter, the “Quest”) Ordinary shares Canada 14.78% Biopharmaceutical R&D
Quest Pharma Tech Inc. (WA T~ 7% Quest ) LTak mex R B
Shanghai Taiyi Venture Capital Partnership Limited partnership PRC 49.58%  Investment Management
(limited partnership) BERAE i REER

LERRAERECBLCE(ERAY)

The Group's shareholdings in the associates all comprise equity shares held
by the Company, except for HighTide, Shenzhen Asia Pacific Health
Management Co., Ltd., Quest and OncoQuest Inc., the shareholdings in
which are held or partially held through a subsidiary of the Company.

The financial years of the above associates are coterminous with that of the
Group, except for Quest Pharma Tech Inc and OncoQuest Inc which have a
financial year ending 31 January. The consolidated financial statements are
adjusted for significant transactions or events, including those among Quest
Pharma Tech Inc, OncoQuest Inc and group companies, between 1 January
and 31 January. Quest Pharma Tech Inc and OncoQuest Inc uses 31 January
as their financial year end date to conform with that of their holding
company.
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18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

The Group has discontinued the recognition of its share of losses of AEBEBRIFERE S MRIEYIT I K2
Shenzhen Asia Pacific Health Management Co., Ltd. because the share of RERBRAFNERE Eﬁﬂﬁ/\‘ﬁj\fﬁgi
losses of the associate exceeded the Group's interest in the associate and the BMENTINERBE T ANEENZH S
Group has no obligation to take up further losses. The amounts of the NRIMER - WA ARSI EE ERE
EEMER - REBRRAFERRFD
HERBERRARERNEBRSES A
AR18,160,0007C (ZF = — 4 : )
& AR #18,160,0007T (Z & = — 4 :
) o

18. REEERAINKRE (&)

Group's unrecognised share of losses of this associate for the current year
and cumulatively were RMB18,160,000 (2021: Nil) and RMB18,160,000
(2021: Nil), respectively.

HighTide, which is considered as material associate of the Group, is strategic
partner of the Group and is accounted for using the equity method.

WRAREEAEABLERAANEESRSE
NEBH B EME - WRAERSEANR -
The following table illustrates the summarised financial information in respect TRHEINEBEEZNYBEERRE -
HERBEHBRENEZEFEHAE I

of HighTide adjusted for any differences in accounting policies and reconciled

to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements: EHEAMBRERPHNEDSEETY
AR :
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ET T ARETT
Current assets B EE 853,119 775,148
Non-current assets, excluding goodwill IEMBEE  TEERE 503,448 503,136
Current liabilities e B & (57,805) (20,106)
Non-current liabilities FEnBAR (1,266,645) (1,017,067)
Net assets, excluding goodwill BEEFE TEEHE 32,117 241,111
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest ieliNC e NI
in the associate:
Proportion of the Group’s ownership NEEE K FT A HELL 3 40.19% 46.08%
Group's share of net assets of the associate, RNEE E(REEE R A
excluding goodwill BEESFE TEERSE 12,908 111,104
Goodwill on acquisition WhE PTE £ R 2 310,217 350,619
Carrying amount of the investment 1% & /BRI € 58 323,125 461,723
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31 December 2022

18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 18. R E ARIMNKRE (&
2022 2021
—E-CZHF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARMEF T
Revenue 'ON 188 45
Loss for the year FNEE (191,122) (217,463)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income Hipz2m (FBER), s (33,084) 3,668
Total comprehensive loss for the year FNEHEEELRE (224,206) (213,795)

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information of the

TRMM S AL EIWIFER BRI ARE

Group's associates that are not individually material to the Group: HERNRNPIEERE -
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREBTT
Share of the associates’ loss for the year FNEGEE D BEE (14,656) (12,560)
Share of the associate’s other FRNEREBERFANEMEImER
comprehensive loss for the year (39) (428)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s REBRBERARZIRERN
investments in the associates BRERE 666,261 684,742
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31 December 2022

—E-—Ff+-_A=+—H
19. EQUITY INVESTMENTS DESIGNATED AT FAIR 19. EER AR REEFER
VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE HEB8HT AHMEEKE
INCOME HRERE
2022 2021
-2 —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BT AREF T
Equity investments designated at fair value ¥ EAUAABEFEBEELSEHFTA
through other comprehensive income Htt2HKRBENRERE
Listed equity investment, at fair value: RARBEFENE EWRERE :
Aridis Pharmaceuticals, Inc. Aridis Pharmaceuticals, Inc. 7.219 13,050
Rapid Micro Biosystems, Inc. (b) Rapid Micro Biosystems, Inc. (b) 194 1,663
7,413 14,713
Unlisted equity investments, at fair value: RARBESENRETRERSE :
Curemark, LLC (a) Curemark, LLC (a) 499,733 460,172
499,733 460,172
507,146 474,885
The above equity investments were irrevocably designated at fair value LR E TR BELIEEARAE

through other comprehensive income as the Group considered these
investments to be strategic in nature.

The market value of the Group’s listed equity investment in Aridis
Pharmaceuticals, Inc. at the date of approval of these financial statements
was approximately RMB2,258,000.

(@ In March 2021,
Curemark LLC (“Curemark”) by settling the prepayment for
investment with an amount of USD12,521,000 (equivalent to
RMB82,042,000).

the Group acquired 36,134 common shares of

In July 2021, Rapid Micro Biosystems, Inc. had an initial public offering
of common stock on NASDAQ.
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EftEEHEE
Z’XEIWU

FEAHE f 2 E W a
VR SIRE R A ERIEE -

7N &= B P Aridis Pharmaceuticals, Inc.&)
TR E RN A B HRE AL R K
TELH S ARE?2, 2580007 °

— & —

—_ =

Bé —FZR -AEBAB

4 E % & TE 3 T812,521,0003%
70 (& W A K #82,042,0007T)
8 B 736,134M Curemark LLC
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4

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 20. AR REEEEHEH
PROFIT OR LOSS ATAEHESNEREE

g

A
2022 2021
—EB-—F —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETR ARMEF T
Current assets BN A E
Wealth management products B EE 1,264,375 940,340
Convertible Debenture AT AR & 5 47,258 40,569
1,311,633 980,909
Non-current assets EMBEE
Listed equity investments, at fair value LARBEAENE EMRERE
GT BioPharma, Inc. GT BioPharma, Inc. 8,713 3,690
Unlisted investments, at fair value REMERE  BAREEE
TPG Biotechnology Partners IV, L.P. TPG Biotechnology Partners IV, L.P. 5,535 16,028
TPG Biotechnology Partners V, L.P. TPG Biotechnology Partners V, L.P. 260,024 311,746
ORI Healthcare Fund, L.P. ORI Healthcare Fund, L.P. 224,306 208,011
ORI Healthcare Fund II, L.P. ORI Healthcare Fund II, L.P. 237,645 110,974
Shenzhen Top Dental Medical Co., Ltd. RITRIFERBEBEROBRA 116,000 146,190
Shanghai Labway Clinical Laboratory Co., Ltd. FEREBRERBAROERA - 111,587
Hejia Hongli (Hang Zu) Venture Investment A 55E (FUN) Bl ZI8 &
Partnership (L.P.) aRrE(ERER) 34,700 33,546
Others HAh 80,653 54,728
958,863 992,810
967,576 996,500
The above equity investments at 31 December 2022 were classified as R-ZEBE-_—_F+=-_A=+—8 " L%
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as they were held for EREAFIEEESSENAEE REIE
trading, or as the Group has not elected to recognise the fair value gain or BBEMEmBNERERALBEERMT
loss through other comprehensive income. PEREANBEFAEEEEIHTAE
HEEENERMEE -
The wealth management products were issued by banks in Mainland China. BEEEER AT RAMIEITET
They were mandatorily classified as financial assets at fair value through WaRF D EANA A BEFEAHEE
profit or loss as their contractual cash flows are not solely payments of SABHERNESREE  HERES
principal and interest. FR&RELIEREE RFBHREK -

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FE R SHENZHEN HEPALINK PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP CO., LTD. FYIfiEE i E £ E BB HER AR @



Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% o3k I AT
31 December 2022
—E - —Ff—H=+—H

21. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

21. fTE€®MTI A

2022 2021
—E-CF TEC—F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTR ARMEF T
Current RE
Warrants R B 10 248

The Group entered into share purchase agreements with Resverlogix Corp.,
pursuant to which each purchased unit is comprised of one common share
and common share purchase warrant. Warrants are not designated for
hedging purposes and are measured at fair value through profit or loss. The
changes in the fair value of the warrants were charged to the statement of
profit or loss during the year.

The 1.3 million warrants entered by the Group in 2017, amounting to

RMB2,816,000, were lapsed in June 2021.

The 1.8 million warrants entered by the Group in 2020, amounting to
RMB2,572,000, were lapsed in August 2021.

The 5 million warrants entered by the Group in 2017, amounting to
RMB20,412,000, were lapsed in December 2021.

7N £ [ HiResverlogix Corp.3] 37 88 %
BRIt BERESELEEIKREER
MEBRBRESE - RREIBLIEETE
AR HER MRUAARBEFZA
HEDHAAZHERNSE - ARBEEIRN
FANDABEEZDTAERRK

o

REEBR-ZT—+FTUMNIIEERR
R AEE (AR #2,816,000T) BN - =
T—FERAKM -

RAEER T _ZFFTUH1.8AERRA
B #EE (AR¥2,572,000T) ER=F
——FNRKB -

AEBR T —tFITLHEERR
IR (AR%20,412,0000) ER =&

T—FF+ZRERM -
22. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 22. HtbERBEE

2022 2021
—E-—F — T4
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T AR T T

Prepayment for purchase of property BEYE  BENMRENTEN KA
plant and equipment 95,465 17,263
Prepayment for marketing authorisation 135 & $H 77 ] TR 5RE - 85,163
Long-term rent receivables REEWHES 1,493 1,952
Bond security deposits (a) BHERER@Q) 112,000 87,000
Prepayment for investment (b) 1% & 78 1~ 7 3 (b) 15,990 14,638
224,948 206,016
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22. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS (Continued)

(a)

On 27 February 2020, the Company issued a corporate bond at a par
value of RMB870,000,000 in the PRC (the “20 Hepalink”). Bond
security deposits of RMB87,000,000 were pledged to a third-party
guarantor, in order to guarantee the realisation of the creditor’s rights.

On 1 April 2022, the Company issued a corporate bond at a par value
of RMB500,000,000 in the PRC (the “22 Hepalink”). Bond security
deposits of RMB25,000,000 were pledged to a third-party guarantor,
in order to guarantee the realisation of the creditor’s rights. The
information about the corporate bond is disclosed in note 31 to the
financial statements.

The prepayment for investment represents the undelivered equity
consideration of Curemark. SPL Distribution LLC, a subsidiary of the
Group, provided active pharmaceutical ingredients and services to its
customer, Curemark, as the prepayment for investment.

B 7% o= I AE
31 December 2022
—EFE-—F+ZH=+—H

22. HthFERBEE (&

(a)

RZEZTF-_A=-+tH =K
AARPRBETEAEAARE
870,000,000 T H A Al & % ([ 203
%] - BREEEMNES - BER
F=FERANEHEHFREFSAR
#87,000,0007T °

RZTEZZFWA—H AR
ARPEBETEHEAARE
500,000,0007T 8 A BIfEH ([227%
&%) c AREEEMNESR  BER
E=FERAEREHFREEAR
#25,000,0007T ° B @R AEHH
BRI G RM A3 R IRE -

& & T8 1 SR IE $#§Curemark &) 5k 2
AR RES (E - A& @ F 2 AFISPL
Distribution LLC[A] & 5 Curemark
RERBEFMRS - (ERIREEN
FRIA o

23. INVENTORIES 23. 78

2022 2021
—E-C—F —E - —4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AR T
Raw materials and consumables R AR A H R S 3,074,003 1,742,879
Work in progress EE R 934,695 941,823
Finished goods BIEY T 2,835,208 2,022,847
6,843,906 4,707,549

The inventories are net of a write-down of approximately RMB95,080,000 RZZTZ=ZF+=-A=+—H FEH

(2021: RMB79,881,000) as at 31 December 2022. FRH0R € 88 40 A R #595,080,0007T (=&

——%: AR¥79,881,0007T) °

BEEIEAEENE RIS @K M=
41 EE -

The information about the pledged assets is disclosed in note 41 to the
financial statements.
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24. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 24, ESREWREREKREE

2022 2021

—B-—F —EF-F

RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARB T ARMEF T

Trade receivables Z 5 WA 1,712,557 1,601,498
Bills receivable EWEE 8,118 10,010
Allowance for expected credit losses TEHA{E RIB R 2EE (114,464) (86,299)
1,606,211 1,525,209

The Group's trading terms with its customers are mainly on credit. The credit
period is generally from one month to three months. The Group seeks to
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables to minimise credit risk.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior management. The Group
does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade
receivable balances. The balances of trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

Included in the Group's trade receivables are amounts due from the Group’s
associates of RMB218,000 (2021: RMB3,246,000), which are repayable on
credit terms similar to those offered to the major customers of the Group.

Information about the pledged assets is disclosed in note 41 to the financial
statements.

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills receivables as at the end of
reporting period, based on the invoice date and net of allowance for
expected credit losses, is as follows:

AEEEEFNESBRRIBENEER
ER-ERHE-RKRRE—E2=EH- XK
) 7 I B 4 2 1) L K (BUE B YRR - A
BEERREREZEK SREEEEE
HREANBBE AEEYEREES
FEUWRIA BRI A M ER R EM(E
RIERTA - BSRUGRIEESRRRE

AEBWE S ERFEFABKAER
& XA RIE A R#218,0000T (= F
— — 4 : AR#3,246,0007T) ' 2 EX
BEZEURETFASEEZEEFNE

& Eho [ oo

EgREE -

BB EENE R B %R R W&
4R B FE -

ERNBZEHRNGRBHERERER
% RWMEHREZHRYFBARERE
BB DITANT -

2022 2021

—Zg=-= —EF-—%F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR TR AR T

Within 1 year 1F R 1,601,907 1,486,732
1 year to 2 years 1525 22,566 88,504
2 years to 3 years 2EFE3F 69,085 36,070
Over 3 years 3F E 27,117 202
1,720,675 1,611,508

Less: Allowance for expected credit losses B TEEE RIBRER (114,464) (86,299)
1,606,211 1,525,209
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24. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The movements in the allowance for expected credit losses of trade
receivables are as follows:

B 7% o= I AE
31 December 2022
—EFE-—F+ZH=+—H

24, ESBEWRIEREWRREE

==

(#&
5 8 W R T S R B S e
mF

2022 2021

—E-= —E-_—F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®ET T AREFT

At beginning of year F 1] 86,299 30,114
Impairment losses, net REEE  F5E 48,858 68,659
Amount written off as uncollectible 0] Uk B 8E S KR (23,841) (11,940)
Exchange realignment [ A & 3,148 (534)
At end of year FR 114,464 86,299

The Group applies the simplified approach to providing for expected credit
losses prescribed by IFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime expected
credit loss provision for all trade receivables.

The increase in the allowance for expected credit losses was mainly due to a
net increase in trade receivables which were past due for over 1 year.

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date using a provision
matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates are based on
days past due for groupings of various customer segments with similar loss
patterns. The calculation reflects the probability-weighted outcome, the time
value of money and reasonable and supportable information that is available
at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables are written off when
there is information indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has entered into
bankruptcy proceedings.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FE R SHENZHEN HEPALINK PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP CO., LTD. FYIfiEE i E £ E BB HER AR @

AEBRABBCTEZR(BETBRE
R FEORMEM AL ERIB R B
B R EAFEME S 5 R RRRE
REERNERERBRERS -

TRHERBREFEENEET RN E A
TE R EE 5 U IR A 03 -

NERES BHRBRABREETRESD
- Rt EBRHRERER - BEXTDE
REERUBREEANZ AT 2 HAE
Bl RO 8 EA R BURETE © 3T B R = 00
BER BE¥RERNRSE A HMAFH
BRBE TR - B AR ROR BRI 5
HHEANSERAEER - —KM 5 -
EREMKRARZEFEFERENBR
U BRERENERARE - HINE
RZBFERBEREEARERF
B 5 e R IE Al T LA 8 o




Notes to Financial Statements

B 7% o3k I AT
31 December 2022
—E - —Ff—H=+—H

24. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Continued) 2. ESEWRNFREREREE

==

(&)
TRERBEBREERIAEEE S EK
FREERRBARANER

Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on the
Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix:

As at 31 December 2022

R-®==F+=B=+-8

Expected

Amount loss rate Impairment
o] FEHEBERE WAE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTF T % AR®T T
Current BN HER 1,359,076 0.50 6,795
Past due less than 1 year BEDR1EF 234,724 0.90 2,113
Past due 1 to 2 years BRI ZE24F 22,480 52.48 11,797
Past due over 2 years BER2F LA | 96,277 97.38 93,759
1,712,557 114,464

As at 31 December 2021 R=-B=-—-F+=-A=+-—H

Expected
Amount loss rate Impairment
R TEHRB R % A
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREET T % ARMET T
Current BN HA 1,276,013 0.70 8,923
Past due less than 1 year BER DR F 205,249 0.85 1,744
Past due 1 to 2 years BHR1 =24 85,847 50.05 42,963
Past due over 2 years BEA2F LA | 34,389 95.00 32,669
1,601,498 86,299
@ SHENZHEN HEPALINK PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP CO., LTD. i3I 5 i 51 % M A PR A 7 ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FEE#}E
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25. CONTRACT ASSETS 25. BREE
2022 2021
—E-C—F —TE-—F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ARBFT

Contract assets arising from services RBEEZAHNEE 19,534 14,993

The contract assets relate to the Group's right to consideration for work EHNEEBIARAEB D TRIEBRE AR

completed and not billed. F2 TS E 2 #EF -

26. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 26. AFIE - HthEUKIE

OTHER ASSETS REHEMEE

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT

Prepayments SEENE e 115,362 127,852

Deposits and other receivables* R & & CE e R IE > 210,579 197,235

Interest receivables JE W ) 2 - 13,043

Value-added tax (“VAT") refund receivables FE WL (B R R B K 20,950 53,352

VAT recoverable ] Y [o] 3% 1E F 118,701 110,156

Prepaid tax TEHBL K 1,016 17,182

Prepaid expenses TR 99,452 94,243

Less: Impairment** W ORE** (58,655) (46,376)

507,405 566,687

S Deposits and other receivables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and repayable on * REREMEWREBEAEIET T5t2 8
demand. BEREER -

B As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the impairments of the financial assets included in * % R-BE__FR_T_—F+-_A=+—
prepayments, other receivables and other assets were measured based on the H st AFEZE - Hib U koE & i
12-month expected credit loss if they are not past due and there is no information BENGRMEERE M EDIEEF
indicating that the financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial MEHRPZELREEGVBIERIAR
recognition. Otherwise, they were measured based on the lifetime expected credit loss. ZERBRBEZE N - BIEMN 2@ A 878 5

ERBAHE - TR BRBAFENDN
BHERBRETHE -
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31 December 2022
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27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, PLEDGED 27. e RBEEEY - 2K
DEPOSITS AND TIME DEPOSITS RERUREHER
2022 2021
—EC-CF —_E_—%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R AR®ETIT
Cash and bank balances B4 RIRITHER 1,319,707 1,479,633
Pledged deposits AR ER 69,388 11,581
Time deposits T BRTF 3K 749,684 1,440,000
2,138,779 2,931,214
Less: W
Pledged deposits BEEMER 69,388 11,581
Time deposits with original maturity REEBABR =AM
over three months: TE BT RN
- current — BIH] 749,684 1,440,000
Cash and cash equivalents HERBEZEED 1,319,707 1,479,633
2022 2021
—E-= —E - —F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREFIT
Cash and cash equivalents, ReRReEEY DEFFRAR
pledged deposits and time deposits FEHIER
Denominated in HEE
- RMB — AR 1,404,748 1,891,559
- USD — X7 398,649 492,554
— EUR — BT 155,380 334,974
— HKD — BT 37,903 37,491
— Others — Hit 142,099 174,636
2,138,779 2,931,214
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Notes to Financial Statements

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, PLEDGED
DEPOSITS AND TIME DEPOSITS (Continued)

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under the
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, and Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the
Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit
rates. Time deposits are made for varying periods of between seven days and
one year depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group and
earn interest at the respective time deposit rates. The bank balances are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default. The
carrying amounts of the cash and bank balances approximate to their fair
values.

Pledged deposits earn interest at interest rates stipulated by the respective
financial institutions.

The information about the pledged assets is disclosed in note 41 to the
financial statements.

B 7% o= I AE
31 December 2022
—EFE-—F+ZH=+—H

27. B RAEEEY - EX

HERUREHRER (&)
ARMTEE BB AR IMEY B2
iR (o EISNE B R () T (A - 51
RHEEEAT) - AREE A FEEE
B BINE R RITHARY R
BEALE -

ROTRERBEEHRITERMNELRT
B EHmMAL - EMEFEROHR AL
RE—F RAKEQANERSF RN
E WA B8 EBERAERRA
B RITABRTFARAIMBNE LK
EEREFMIRT - RERBITEBRNER
HeHEALRAABEES -

BT RIAE B2 BHEERE X
BRENA B

EHEBEREENE R R % HRE W T
4V HEFE -

O

28. TRADE PAYABLES 28. EZEFRIE

2022 2021

—E-C—F —E - —4F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARETT

Trade payables B Z N RIE 427,433 385,787

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the reporting
period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

REERZAH  RBEHRNEZEN
FIBH R DATAAT

2022 2021

—E-C—F —E - —4F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®ET T ARET T

Within 1 year 1F R 424,520 381,473
1 year to 2 years 1FEF2F 548 2,117
2 years to 3 years 2F E3F 1,373 1,518
Over 3 years 3F N E 992 679
427,433 385,787

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled on

terms of 30 to 90 days.

BHRNFEARTFHEA—KRN30AE

90BN HE -
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29. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 29. Htt B RE R EFHER

2022 2021

—E-CZHF —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARMEF T

Other payables E b FE SRR 132,219 132,603

Accruals fEst1E B 179,366 210,436
Payables for purchase of property, BEVE  BENMEXERN

plant and equipment FE T 308 33,443 63,708

Salary payables ER#HS 170,971 156,261

Other tax payables H A JE 49 B 3K 29,513 45,721

545,512 608,729

Other payables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and repayable on
demand. The fair values of other payables at the end of each of these

H @M FRSEER  Tat B RAR
ZRMEE - N L ZMBMRBAROE

financial statements approximated to their corresponding carrying amounts. ENZBEHALBEOSHNEBEER
H1E -
30. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 30. BN AEE
The Group recognised the following revenue-related contract liabilities: REE @R T BB AMEBENELEE:
2022 2021
—EB=-= —E -
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARBF T
Sale of products HEEm 17,724 10,585
CDMO services CDMOAR 410,494 367,229
428,218 377,814

The Group receives payments from customers based on billing schedules as
established in the sales contracts. Payments are usually received in advance
of the performance under the contracts which are mainly from domestic
customers.

The Group also receives payments from customers based on billing schedules
as established in the CDMO service contracts. Payments are usually received
in advance of the performance under the contracts which are mainly from
CDMO services for clients.

All the obligations are expected to be recognised within one year. The

amounts disclosed above do not include variable consideration which is
constrained.

@ SHENZHEN HEPALINK PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP CO., LTD. ;&Y S in £ £ @A B R A F ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FE &
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31 December 2022
—E - —FEF - H=+—H

B 75 R 5% BT 5 O

31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 31. ;T ERITR EMER
BORROWINGS
31 December 2022 —E-_F+=ZHA=+—H

Effective interest

rate per annum Maturity RMB’000
o ES B ARETR
Current I
Bank loans - secured (a) BITER — BER@Q) 0.88%-4.95% 2023 820,867
—EZZ=E
Bank loans — unsecured ROTER — BER 0.65%-4.00% 2023 961,013
—E-Z=E
Current portion of long-term REBBITEFANBES 1.35%-4.05% 2023 728,971
bank loans - secured (a) — BER@Q) LIBOR+ APPLICABLE MARGIN —E-=f
LIBOR+i# I F/ 8%
Other borrowings - unsecured (b) HfEHR — EERD) 1.20%-2.08% 2023 603,429
—EC-=E
Current portion of corporate bonds () ARIE&HENEAZ 5 () 5.50% 2023 906,504
—E-=F
4,020,784
Non-current )
Bank loans - secured (a) BITER — FERGE) 1.35%-4.05% 2024-2029 1,556,832
LIBOR+ APPLICABLE MARGIN “ZoMER
LIBOR+i& fA 7/ = “Z-hE
Bank loans — unsecured BOER— BER 3.80%-4.05% 2024 243,351
“ZomE
Corporate bonds (c) AAEH() 3.8%-3.9% 2025 496,497
—E-hE
2,296,680
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B 75 2= B 5T
31 December 2022
—SF-C#F+-H=1+—H

=

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (Continued)

31 December 2021

31.

31.

Effective interest

—B--f%+-A=t-—H

HERTREMER (H)

rate per annum Maturity RMB'000
BREF % 3| E B R AREF T
Current Eﬂ%‘]
Bank loans - secured (a) R —BER@a 0.30%-4.05% 2022 1,042,431
—E-_F
Bank loans - unsecured BIER— EER 0.65%-4.22% 2022 776,107
—Z-_F
Current portion of long-term bank loans Eiﬁfﬁ?fé‘?ﬂ NS 5 1.35%-4.75%, 2022 342,344
- secured (a) — BER LIBOR+ APPLICABLE MARGIN —E-Z
LIBOR+i#@ A F M =
Current portion of long-term REFTERNEHH 4.28% 2022 291,100
bank loans - unsecured — EER -
Other borrowings - unsecured (b) HibfEk — EIER 2.60%-3.30% 2022 67,747
Current portion of corporate bonds (c) NEEFR A S (C) 5.50% 2022 748,437
—E-F
3,268,166
Non-current FEEH
Bank loans - secured (a) RITER — FERQ) 1.35%-4.75%, 2023-2029 1,388,038
LIBOR+ APPLICABLE MARGIN ZE?:EES‘::
LIBOR+ fA 1 8 ZZNE
862,232
Corporate bonds (c) DEEF) 3.80% 2023
—Z_=F
2,250,270
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31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (Continued)

B 7% o= I AE
31 December 2022
—EFE-—F+ZH=+—H

CFTERITREAER (&)

Analysed into: DWE
2022 2021
—E-C—F —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREFT

Repayable: ERTHIHEER

Within one year —FR 4,020,784 3,268,166
In the second year FE_F 1,404,818 1,604,635
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FEZZFRF(T) 435,195 143,412
Beyond five years AEZ% 456,667 502,223
6,317,464 5,518,436

The mortgaged and guaranteed bank loans were secured by the total
assets owned by SPL with an amount of RMB465,156,000 as at 31
December 2022 (2021: RMB345,139,000). The pledged assets have a
net carrying amount of approximately RMB2,402,917,000 as at 31
December 2022 (2021: RMB1,870,363,000).

The pledged bank loans were secured by the buildings of the Company
located in Pingshan District, Shenzhen with an amount of
RMB1,133,652,000 as at 31 December 2022 (2021: RMB1,251,968,000).
The buildings of the Company located in Pingshan District, Shenzhen have
a net carrying amount of approximately RMB449,592,000 (2021:
RMB470,732,000).

As at 31 December 2022, the pledged bank loans with an amount of
RMB396,233,000 were secured by the pledge of 100% of shares of
Shenzhen Topknow Industrial Development Co., Ltd (2021:
RMB430,479,000).
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31 December 2022

— = — —

=

Ft=—HA=1+—H

31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (Continued)

(a)

(Continued)

The pledged bank loans were secured by the Company with an amount of
RMB761,344,000 as at 31 December 2022 (2021: RMB595,103,000). As
at 31 December 2022, the pledge bank loans with an amount of
RMB350,285,000 were secured by Shenzhen Techdow Pharmaceutical
Co., Ltd (2021: RMB150,124,000).

Other borrowings included discounted notes receivable of
RMB603,429,000 as at 31 December 2022 (2021: RMB67,747,000).

On 23 April 2019, the Company issued a corporate bond at a par value
of RMB700,000,000 in the PRC (the “19 Hepalink”). The 19 Hepalink
will mature in five years from the issue date. Upon the third anniversary
of the issue date, the Company shall be entitled to adjust the coupon
rate and the bond holders shall be entitled to sell back the whole or
partial 19 Hepalink at par, so the Company has reclassified the 19
Hepalink from non-current portion into current portion of corporate
bonds as at 31 December 2021. The 19 Hepalink bears interest at the
rate of 5.50% per annum, payable annually in arrears or on the
business day nearest to 23 April of each year, starting from 23 April
2019. In connection with the bond issuance, Shenzhen Gaoxintou
Group Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen Gaoxintou"”), an independent third party
of financing and guarantee service provider, guaranteed the repayment
obligations under the bond. In return, Mr. Li Li provided a
counter-guarantee to Shenzhen Gaoxintou of such obligations, for a
period of two years from the date when Shenzhen Gaoxintou’s
repayment obligations expire under its guarantee agreement. On 20
April 2022, the Company redeemed the bond.

31.
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HERTREMER (H)

(a)

(%)
RZTBEZZF+=ZA=+—H &
A ANR761,344,0000T (— &
——f%: AR%595,103,00070) 1
BHERBRITERBRRBREER o
RZZEZ—_F+=-A=+—H %
%8 A& A R #350,285,000T (=&
——4F: AR¥150,124,0007T) 19
BEAIBITE R RYITREE 5
BRARIREER -

WR-—ZE-_—_F#+—-A=+—8"
HthERBESEARARE
603,429,0007T (Z T - —%: AR
*67,747,0007T) HIBLIR FEULEE & -

RZTE—AFMA=+=H 'K
RAIRAPBEETEEARARKE
700,000,000 C )2 Rl E % ([19%
L)) - 198N EITZ R
AFERNEE - RETHER=BAF
2B ARRERAERZE@MAEX
BEHFBAEAGRIZEERE 2
195 LR - AL ANRFER
—E-—F+-A=+—H8#H19
BEImAERDISPETDERAA
RIEHSREBID - 198 EIHIEF
ME5.50%H8 - BEAFBEARNE
FHERIR&EELNA = +=
HNEXBEXN(BEZE—NAFH
AZ+=8#) - BZBEHFFHT
mE - FITEFEEEEREA A
(CRIIESFHR] - —RE RER
RIS EF B E=7) BRI
RZEHF THEREBEDER -
e - R ERB RS RR
SRR H T RER - RIERE
RAEBFIIEFEAERBEET
MEREBINHE BEFTME - B
ZT_—FWMAZ=+H  ARFE
EEAEE K



Notes to Financial Statements

31. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (Continued)

(@

(Continued)

On 27 February 2020, the Company issued a corporate bond at par
value of RMB870,000,000 in the PRC (the “20 Hepalink”). The 20
Hepalink will mature in five years from the issue date. Upon the third
anniversary of the issue date, the Company shall be entitled to adjust
the coupon rate and the bond holders shall be entitled to sell back the
whole or partial 20 Hepalink at par. The 20 Hepalink bears interest at
the rate of 3.8% per annum, payable annually in arrears or on the
business day nearest to 27 February of each year, starting from 27
February 2020. In connection with the bond issuance, Shenzhen
Gaoxintou Group Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen Gaoxintou”), an independent
third party of financing and guarantee service provider, guaranteed the
repayment obligations under the bond. In return, the Company
provided Shenzhen Gaoxintou with bond margin and the mortgage of
real estate of subsidiaries, Chengdu Shenrui Co., Ltd. and Shandong
Ruisheng Co., Ltd., as a counter-guarantee of such obligations. On 28
February 2023, the Company redeemed the bond.

On 1 April 2022, the Company issued a corporate bond at par value of
RMB500,000,000 in the PRC (the “22 Hepalink”). The 22 Hepalink
will mature in three years from the issue date. Upon the third
anniversary of the issue date, the Company shall be entitled to adjust
the coupon rate and the bond holders shall be entitled to sell back the
whole or partial 22 Hepalink at par. The 22 Hepalink bears interest at
the rate of 3.9% per annum, payable annually in arrears or on the
business day nearest to 1 April of each year, starting from 1 April
2022. In connection with the bond issuance, Shenzhen Gaoxintou
Group Co., Ltd. (“Shenzhen Gaoxintou”), an independent third party
of financing and guarantee service provider, guaranteed our repayment
obligations under the bond. In return, the Company provided
Shenzhen Gaoxintou with bond margin and the mortgage of real
estate of subsidiaries located in Nanshan District, Shenzhen, as a
counter-guarantee of such obligations.
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32. DEFERRED INCOME 32. IEEEW A
2022 2021
—E-CF TEC—F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®T T AREFIT
Government grants I8 68 B 32,547 16,673

Government grants received for compensating for the Group’s research and
development costs which have not yet been undertaken are included in
deferred income and recognised as income on a systematic basis over the
periods when the costs, which the government grants are intended to
compensate, are expensed. Government grants received related to assets
invested in laboratory equipment and plant are credited to deferred income
and recognised as income over the expected useful lives of the relevant
assets.
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33. DEFERRED TAX (Continued) 33. IEIEFRB 8 (&)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have BENEY CEETELERESEHEE
been offset in the consolidated statement of financial position. The following HEBERNGEAUMBMRAREE U A
is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the Group for financial reporting Eﬁfﬁ%ﬁﬁ‘%?ﬁﬁ%ﬂzﬁil BIE IE P AS B
purposes: BEERRER B DT
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ARETT
Net deferred tax assets recognised in the REGE AR RERS
consolidated statement of financial position BEMSHEEFE (139,649) (121,718)
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the RERE B IS AR R R FERR
consolidated statement of financial position wkﬁﬁfﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%%ﬁ 328,920 275,358
Net deferred tax liabilities RIEFIE B EFE 189,271 153,640

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the following
items:

ﬁ AT 538 B AR RIS BB B 15 R

2022 2021
—E-= —EC-—F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BT T ARETF T

Impairment of assets BERE 40,793 35,556
Tax losses FRIgE 8 512,913 567,490
553,706 603,046

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward to
the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefits through future
taxable profits is probable. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of losses arising in subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some
time and it is not considered probable that taxable profits will be available
against which the tax losses can be utilised.

fied AT 388 38 AN 2R JE AR Bt s ) 2 3R A B 0
BE  ABIEEREERERELER S
MEE - HRELBEE-—RERONFA
7§$E'JT§% THERBELEMSTHEE

TREE O] Be 15 FE R i A1) LA 40
/H\%RIEE??E ®
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34. LONG-TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 3. REIEEER

2022 2021
—E-C-F - —F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ARMEF T
Stock appreciation rights A% 2= 1% (F fE 19,452 17,371
Defined benefit retirement obligation AEMDBKREE 32,486 120,649
51,938 138,020
(a) Stock Appreciation Rights (SARs) AR = 1 (E R

The board of SPL Acquisition Corp (“SPL"), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, approved a long-term incentive plan in December
2015. Under this plan, SPL could issue up to 50,000 Stock Appreciation
Rights ("SARs"). As at 31 December 2022, 23,758 SARs (2021: 23,833
SARs) was outstanding under the plan.

Pursuant to the long-term incentive plan, the income obtained by the
beneficiary is the incremental part between the exercise value and the
initial value. The exercise value is the lesser of the common stock value
and the formula value, among which, the formula value is the specified
EBITDA divided by the shares of common stocks.

The initial values of SARs granted in 2015, 2016 and 2017 were
$562.30 per SARs, $562.30 per SARs and $500.62 per SARs,
respectively. The settlement or payment of SARs may be in the form of
cash or equivalent SPL's or the Company’s common stock, or both. The
vest of SARs lasts for four years and the expiration date is in the tenth
year from the grant date. Vesting of SARs is in accordance with the
terms in the respective grant agreements signed with the participants.
As at 31 December 2022, 23,758 (2021: 23,833 SARs) SARs had been
vested.
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SPL Acquisition Corp ([SPL] + 7%
RAMEETFRARNEEER T
—RFE+ZARBIERAEEE
Bl o RIBEZATE  SPLAIRITES
50,0007 ik R E# ([R RIGE
B R —F+-A=+—
B - #HEIE T A23,758 IR Z 18 (E
B(ZZT=——4 23,8337 R E
E#E) MARITHE ©

REBERASRETSE  ZEAEEH
W ATEEEEYNBREBRZRH
B E D o TTEEENEBRE
BEREAXNEBEFNREERE - H
- ARBERIEEHIEBITDARR A
LA -

R-BE—AF  —T—RER T
—tEFEETFHNBEES B AEHD
M ZE i E#E562.305% T « BHKRE
H{EES562.30F T B HREEE
#500.62% 7T - REMERNEE
SR SR AT 3R A 3R 6 2k S RESPLE AN
ARIMEBREN - SKMERME
2o RERERENFEHANS
BRETEHHEE+FEE - REi
BEENFEBRIBEESHETEEN
BZEFETHEOGRIEE - R=F
ZZHF+ZA=1+—H ' 23,7581%
EEEE (T =——4% 23,833
MREREERE) EEE -
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34. LONG-TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Stock Appreciation Rights (SARs) (Continued)

Any vested SARs granted shall become exercisable in three equal
instalments with the first instalment becoming exercisable on the fifth
anniversary of the grant date and the next two instalments on the sixth
anniversary of the grant date and the seventh anniversary of the grant
date.

Defined Benefit Retirement Obligation

The Group makes contributions to a defined benefit retirement plan
for the employees working in SPL Acquisition Corp., which covers 9%
of the Group’s employees during the years ended 31 December 2022
(2021: 10%). The plan is administered by a trustee, who is
independent, with its assets held separately from those of the Group.

The plan is funded by contributions from the Group in accordance with
an independent actuary’s recommendation based on an annual
actuarial valuation. The independent actuarial valuation of the plan
during the relevant years was prepared by certified insurance actuaries
of AON plc by using the projected unit cost method. The actuarial
valuation indicates that the Group’s obligations under the defined
benefit retirement plan were 74% covered by the plan assets held by
the trustees at 31 December 2022 (2021: 46%). The deficit arises
mainly as a result of local funding rules.

The plan exposes the Group to actuarial risks, such as longevity risk,
currency risk, interest rate risk and market risk.

ANNUAL REPORT 2022 FE R SHENZHEN HEPALINK PHARMACEUTICAL GROUP CO., LTD. FYIfiEE i E £ E BB HER AR @

B 7% o= I AE
31 December 2022
—EFE-—F+ZH=+—H

3. RMEERF (&)

(a)

(b)

RIRERE (&)
(EE R B AR TS E R A D K
SHHITE - FHRETERE
FEIE - BREMBRETAA
BERCAFTE

RERIMEKEE
ZNEEE ATESPL Acquisition Corp.
TEME B 3t — B R E &R IR
STEMERME  REE_T__F
TZA=T—RBIEFEREAREEH
BEMI% (ZT=—F :10%) °
TR —RBUZTAEE &
B THEERAEBENEE DM
Ao

ZETEmASEEREB LBEME
NEEBEHERINERELS
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11 R Bax 45 & A 50 8 78R B8 fz B AR
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REFNZBRAABTHETR74%
(ZE=—F :46%) ' HEFEAL
BRFEIEERSE - BANELEE
ERANEHMNEERAIATEK -

ZrtBEASEHREERR - )
mESEE  BR¥ERR - FRRER
K EE




Notes to Financial Statements
B 1% 2% Y 5

/N
31 December 2022
—E - —Ff—H=+—H

34. LONG-TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

(b) Defined Benefit Retirement Obligation (Continued)
(i) The amounts recognised in the consolidated

3. RHMEERA (&

(b) RAERNBRAKEAE(HF)
(i) RESHBEMRLEA

statement of financial position are as follows: BEZEENT :
2022 2021
—E-CF - —F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T AREF T
Present value of wholly or 2H LI ERENET
partly funded by obligation MIRE 144,701 230,369
Fair value of plan assets HEEEZANREE (107,598) (106,309)
37,103 124,060
Expected to be settled in the FEFRAK+Z@EARA
next twelve months we (4,617) (3,411)
32,486 120,649
(ii) Plan assets (i) FTEEE
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group'’s liability under R —FF— —F

this plan was covered by deposits placed with several banks.

t-—A=+—8" ZK;‘%IEC
At Bl TR BT AFR &
ERTT B RIA AT  BEEERT
Group. FEERERARAASH
ERITAFAEEGANE
A A EMmEE o

There is no plan asset invested in the Company’s own financial
instruments or any property occupied or other assets used by the
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34. LONG-TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued) 3. REIEERR (&)

(b) Defined benefit retirement obligation (Continued) (b) RENBRERIKE(E (&)
(iii) Movements in the present value of the defined

(iii) REF = EFRER

benefit obligation V-3
2022 2021
—E=-= —ET - —4F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARETF T
At beginning of year RE 230,369 221,214
Actuarial gains arising from experience EEEENBE KRS (83,039) (3,873)
Benefits paid by the plan ZET BT AT 2 (3,591) (2,653)
Liability gains due to curtailment HURE £ 88 Elm (27,784) -
Current service cost IR B AR 7S A AS 4,290 15,005
Interest cost F B A 6,811 5,908
Exchange difference PE N, =58 17,645 (5,232)
At end of year RER 144,701 230,369

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation
was 13.9 years during the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021:

18.7 years).

REBEE-_T-_—_F+=A
=+—BLEFE  REFH
EAERMEFHFEHA13.9
E(ZT——F:18.7F) o

(iv) Movements in plan assets (iv) GrEIEENEE

2022 2021

—E-= —E - —F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARETT

At beginning of year REH] 106,309 102,323
The Group's contributions paid to the plan AREE A ZTE AR

R 10,159 9,583

Benefits paid by the plan ZET &P AT R & (3,591) (2,653)

Interest income F B A 3,148 2,228
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income st &|EEL R © T IE

A2 A (17,957) (2,756)

Exchange difference E X =R 9,530 (2,416)

At end of year RER 107,598 106,309
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34. LONG-TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued) 3. RIEEER (&)

(b) Defined benefit retirement obligation (Continued) (b) REFNBZRAET (&)

(v) Amounts recognised in the consolidated (v) RéegzeBEzRAEME
statement of profit or loss and other B 25 7 G ESE B 2
comprehensive income are as follows: - 0//1

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR T ARBFT
Current service cost BV ER B 745 A AR 4,290 15,005
Net interest on the net defined benefit liability REMNZBEFED
N E 3,663 3,680
Settlement/Curtailment income “EH| /JFJU%U\ (8,442) -
Total amount recognised in profit or loss RIBERBERMNERE (489) 18,685
Actuarial gains 58 W =S (83,039) (3,873)
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income &t &|& & [O 3 -
NEEFN S A 17,957 2,756
Liability gains due to curtailment BIUREENE ERE (19,342) =
Total amounts recognised in R HE b2 WS N RER A
other comprehensive income k) (84,424) (1,117)
Total defined benefits costs FEF KA B (84,913) 17,568
The current service cost and the net interest on the net defined BVER AR 755 B AR e SR E Fl 22 &
benefit liability are recognised in cost of sales, selling and BFEBHNENERNGEER
distribution expenses and administrative expenses in the RAMEEKS  HERD
consolidated statement of profit or loss. 8 B 2 DA R A7 IR B S ) e
7,

(vi) Significant actuarial assumptions (expressed as (i) EXEFER (57
weighted averages) and a sensitivity analysis 2 0 # F 14 ,ﬁ? ﬁ )
are as follows: BBEZWHT

2022 2021

—E-_F — T —%F

Discount rate I = 5.26% 2.93%
Future salary increases RIEH S 10 N/ATE R 3.50%
Expected long-term rate of return 8 B = HA 8] 3 == 4.35% 2.70%
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34. LONG-TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued) 3. REIEERR (&)

(b) Defined benefit retirement obligation (Continued) (b) RERBZEMNKSEE (F)
(vi) Significant actuarial assumptions (expressed as (i) EXEER (57
weighted averages) and a sensitivity analysis are as BIEFITEE) R
follows: (continued) BREZ M
(#&)
The analysis below shows how the defined benefit obligation would NTaETREEXNEER
have increased/(decreased) as a result of a 1% change in the significant R B 1%EE - SR
actuarial assumptions: FERFEEEEM CRLD) -
2022 2021
Increase 1% N1 % —E--fF T
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T R AREF T
Discount rate IR =X (17,647) (39,152)
Future salary increases RIRFE M N/A REA 16,159
Expected long-term rate of return TEH R BB = (1,066) (1,108)
2022 2021
Decrease 1% 1% —EC-CF —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T AREBTT
Discount rate PR =R 22,020 51,626
Future salary increases RIRH 4 18 AN N/A TE A (13,352)
Expected long-term rate of return T8 B = B B i X 1,066 1,108
35. SHARE CAPITAL 35. R
2022 2021
—EBE-—F —TE——F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®BT R AR T T
Issued and fully paid: BEITRAR :
1,467,296,204 (2021: 1,467,296,204) 1,467,296,204 (= =—1F :
ordinary shares 1,467,296,204) & i I 1,467,296 1,467,296
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36. RESERVES 36. f#1E

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein are
presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages 99 to
100 of the financial statements.

(i) Statutory surplus reserve
In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC, the companies in the

PRC are required to allocate 10% of the statutory after-tax profits to
the statutory reserve until the cumulative total of the reserve reaches
50% of the company registered capital. Subject to approval from the
relevant PRC authorities, the statutory reserve may be used to offset
any accumulated losses or increase the registered capital of the
company. The statutory reserve is not available for dividend distribution
to shareholders of the PRC subsidiaries.

(ii) Merger reserve
The merger reserve of the Group represents the difference between

the aggregate of the then net assets of the subsidiary acquired and the
consideration paid by the Group for the business combination under
common control.

(iii) Exchange fluctuation reserve
The exchange fluctuation reserve represents exchange differences

arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations whose functional currencies are different from the Group's
presentation currency.

(iv) Share option reserve
The share option reserve of the Group represents the fair value of

equity-settled share-based payment granted in 2012, which was early
terminated in 2013.

(v) Fair value reserve
The fair value reserve of the Group represents the fair value movement

of equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

(vi) Defined benefit contribution reserve
The defined benefit contribution reserve of the Group represents

actuarial losses arising from a net defined benefit retirement
obligation.
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37. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL 37, EEE K EERER NI
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS SEETFAT
Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material non-controlling BEEERFERESZHAER T RAF
interests are set out below: BT
31 December 2022 —_E_-__f+=-H=+—H
Percentage Loss for Accumulated
of equity the year balances of

interest held by allocated to non-controlling

non-controlling non-controlling interests at the

interests interests  reporting date
FERER RipE B H
BENREAES FERERDN IR S
Bak FREE E
RMB’000 RMB’000
% ARBT R AR¥TT

Shenzhen Penghe Property YN TH AR 3 8 12
Management Co., Ltd. AR F 45% (1,259) 49,478

Shenzhen Ruidi Biomedical Co., Ltd. 7 3I| 7 3 38 A= ) 52 2t
BRAF] 49% (807) 40,641

Shenzhen OncoVent Biomedical 1| 5B 3 A ) B SRR

Technology Co., Ltd. BR AT 46% (10,097) 3,560
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37. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL 37. EEE AR REZ P

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued) PEEFAT(EF)
31 December 2022 (Continued) —E-—HF+—-A=+—H (#&)
The following tables illustrate the summarised financial information of the THRHEBLAMFRANMFEERRE -
above subsidiaries. The amounts disclosed are before any inter-company i e £ B AR EITEM QA AR -
eliminations:
Shenzhen Shenzhen
Penghe Shenzhen OncoVent
Property Ruidi Biomedical
Management Biomedical Technology
Co., Ltd. Co., Ltd. Co., Ltd.
w3 AR A I A YN B
MEERE EYBE B BT
BRAT BRAA BRAR
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETR AR®T T
Revenue N - - =
Total expenses S HAE (2,798) (258) (21,950)
Loss for the year FAER (2,798) (1,647) (21,950)
Total comprehensive loss for the year 4 X% [ &5 18 4 58 (2,798) 115 (22,195)
Current assets mENE E 6,348 43,474 32,537
Non-current assets ERBEE 104,222 77,682 16,647
Current liabilities mBEE (265) (38,346) (41,253)
Non-current liabilities EmBEE (354) = -
Net cash flows from/(used in) KESEEATS, (FT)
operating activities RemEF5E 86 4 (1,094)
Net cash flows used in investing KREFSMAE S REFHE
activities (146) (7,720) -
Net cash flows from BEEBMSRREFHE
financing activities - - =
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXREHN LT
changes, net - 2,229 1,453
Net increase/(decrease) in cash BeRkBeEEMEM
and cash equivalents Omi ) # 58 (60) (5,487) 359
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Notes to Financial Statements

37.

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

31 December 2021

Percentage

of equity
interest held by
non-controlling

B 7% o= I AE
31 December 2022
—EFE-—F+ZH=+—H

BERFEREZAE
BRETLR(AE)

| S)m

(Loss)/profit Accumulated
for the year balances of
allocated to non-controlling

non-controlling interests at the

interests interests reporting date
FEIERRE R Y MRS B
BAEORARER FRN(EE) IR E =
Bt pidl RET#E
RMB'000 RMB’000
% ARETT ARBFT

Shenzhen Penghe Property FYNTRAFMDEETEER QA
Management Co., Ltd. 45% (1,127) 50,737
Shenzhen Ruidi Biomedical Co., Ltd.  F®IImimmEYEEGR A A 49% 5 40,585

Shenzhen OncoVent Biomedical 1| 5 3 A ) B BE R

Technology Co., Ltd. AR QA 46% (5,873) 13,770
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37. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH MATERIAL 37. EEE AR REZ P
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued) DA F AT (&)

31 December 2021 (Continued) B —-F+=ZH=+—H(#&)
The following tables illustrate the summarised financial information of the TRHFEFALAFRANTBEERBRE -
PR#CER € B AT A A 8

above subsidiaries. The amounts disclosed are before any inter-company

eliminations:
Shenzhen
Shenzhen Shenzhen OncoVent
Penghe Property Ruidi Biomedical
Management Biomedical Technology
Co., Ltd. Co., Ltd. Co., Ltd.
Y1 T AR AN YT I w5
mEER A ) B Bk AW B8 BRI
BIRAF] BIRAF] BRAF]
RMB'000 RMB"000 RMB'000
AREF T ARBETTT ARMT T
Revenue U A - _ _
Total expenses XA (2,504) (342) (12,767)
(Loss)/profit for the year FR(EE),mF (2,504) 11 (12,767)
Total comprehensive loss for the year 4 A2 [l &5 18 4 5 (2,504) (436) (13,020)
Current assets BB E 6,372 48,700 50,516
Non-current assets ERMEEE 107,001 70,593 17,355
Current liabilities mENEE (326) (36,598) (37,745)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (298) - -
Net cash flows from/(used in) e EB AR (FTH)
operating activities RemEF5E 486 20 (10,383)
Net cash flows used in investing KREFHMAESREFH
activities (7) (1,537) -
Net cash flows from MEFRBAEREREFH
financing activities - - 9,680
Effect of foreign exchange rate EREHN L FE
changes, net - (533) (286)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and ReERBFEEWLM
cash equivalents Om ) 88 479 (2,050) (989)
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38. SHARE AWARD SCHEME

Share Option Scheme

Shenzhen OncoVent Biomedical Technology Co., Ltd. (“OncoVent"”), a
subsidiary of the Company, approved a Share Option Scheme (“the
Scheme”) in 2018. Pursuant to the Scheme, OncoVent proposed to grant
4% share options of the diluted shares in the original equity structure to the
CEO of OncoVent. Share options are granted when the participant reaches
the agreed milestones. 2% share options will be granted when the first
milestone is reached. 1% share options will be granted when the second
stage is reached. And the remaining 1% of the share options will be granted
when the third milestone is reached.

Milestones Condition

BEEm R4

B 7% o= I AE
31 December 2022
—EFE-—F+ZH=+—H

38. R RENFHE

BREE
ARBFRRRN DI EYBERKME
B ([BEw)N-F— \FitE—1A
fERcERT B (T8 - RIEZETE)
£ i 1 R A AR IR AR (D 94 %
BEBRER T RImMOITHEE - 28E
TR 8 B AR R S B AR -
BEDNE —(ERRER - BER2%HE
Pt - BH _BEBSERIE - HER1%H
BRE - ZEINE=-FA2RERE B
RGBT 1 %H) B AHE -

The first milestone
F—(EERER

The participant signs a labour contract with OncoVent
2HEEHEBHFETSHER

The second milestone OncoVent's new pharmaceutical varieties obtain permission to carry out Phase Ill clinical trials
from Chinese pharmaceutical regulatory authorities

F_AR2IRH £5 ¥ B R 8% o AR 1S P B 4 o B2 B BB P HE A B R 1NN R B R B AR

The Third milestone New pharmaceutical varieties obtain permission to be sellable in the market from Chinese

pharmaceutical regulatory authorities
FE={EEI2H

MEmBESTREREE P E EHIHE

The grant date is within a month when each milestone is reached. The share
options shall be valid for a period of four years from the grant date. The first
exercise period shall commence from the first day after expiry of the one-year
period from the grant date. The vesting percentages of the share options for
the following three years are 40%, 30% and 30%, respectively. When
OncoVent is listed or sold, the participant may realise the benefit of share
options based on the stock circulation rules at the listing place or the value
of OncoVent at the time of sale. The participant may choose to convert the
virtual option into actual investment to OncoVent. When and only when
OncoVent is listed or sold, the participant can choose to exercise share
options. The exercise price is based on the investment price and the latest
financing authorised by the Board of OncoVent.
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38. SHARE AWARD SCHEME (Continued) 38. R EBEHE (&
Share Option Scheme (Continued) E%HSH‘%“I‘_J (#&)
As of 31 December 2022 and 2021, the progress of the Scheme is as follows: B2 FR-_FE-_—F+=-A

:+*EI P ZETEERWAT

Fair Value of

Granted Conditions Date of Granted Share

Milestone percentage are Met meet Options

ERBRED

EE® BRLA REREGRSE wE R DREE

RMB’000

AR®ETR

The first milestone F—(AEREE 2% Yes 8 August 2017 1,271

= ZT—tFN\ANR

The second milestone FoREREE 1% No = =
=

The third milestone FE=EERRRE 1% No = =
=

39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 39. #24BE SR E XK

CASH FLOWS
(a) Major non-cash transactions (d) EEHFBRERS
During the year ended 31 December 2022, Cytovance Biologics Inc, a RBzE-—Z-_—+-_A=+—H
subsidiary of the Group, provides CDMO service of USD3,251,000 IEFE - A& B F R \lCytovance
(equivalent to RMB22,644,000) to its customer, GT BioPharma, Inc. in Biologics Inc E & FPGT
exchange for equity interest of the customer. BioPharma, Inc.#2#tfE1&3,251,000
T (SR AR22,644,0007T)
EICDMORRTS + LAMRER 3% % = 9 ik
AR ©
During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right-of-use FR - AEERRERRENAE
assets and lease liabilities of RMB33,541,000 (2021: RMB94,698,000) THERIEIR S AN A S E R
and RMB33,541,000 (2021: RMB94,698,000), respectively, in respect ERES R AARY33,541,0007T
of lease arrangements for plant and equipment. —T = —%: AR¥94,698,000

JT) & A R #33,541,0007T (= 2
——% : AR¥094,698,000) °
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39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (Continued)

39. REREMNBRWE (&)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) METHEENEEBEH
activities
Interest-
bearing bank
and other Interest Lease
borrowings payables liabilities
FFERITR
Hifa ™ ERRE HEAE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AR®BT AR®T
2022 —E-=
At 1 January 2022 R-_ZE-_—_F—H—H 5,518,436 - 135,755
Changes from financing cash flows FEREHEHE 719,672 - -
Additions to lease liabilities HEAELM = = 33,541
Accretion of interest expenses F) 55 2 180 160,912 69,327 5,003
Repayment of interest expenses EEFNEMAX (180,271) (71,560) =
Principal and interest elements of ~ &R KA S HEF| 5
lease payments - - (38,325)
Transfer to Interest-bearing bank & ZE =t 8817 &
and other borrowings H {8 5% (2,233) 2,233 -
Foreign exchange movement N 5 100,948 - 10,465
At 31 December 2022 RZEZZF
+=-—HA=+—8~ 6,317,464 - 146,439
2021 —-—f
At 1 January 2021 R-ZZE-Z—F—H—H 5,567,834 - 77,243
Changes from financing cash flows Fi& I ¢ n & & (36,792) = =
Additions to lease liabilities HEEEEM = = 94,698
Accretion of interest expenses S5 2 #8 hn = 197,758 3,873
Early termination of lease liabilities & & ERAK IE = = (1,124)
Repayment of interest expenses BEMBFAX - (196,556) -
Principal and interest elements of ~ FAE A A S B B
lease payments - - (35,996)
Transfer to Interest-bearing bank EBE ST BIRIT R
and other borrowings H g 1,202 (1,202) -
Foreign exchange movement SNEE &£ F (13,808) _ (2,939)
At 31 December 2021 R-ZE——&F
+=-—HA=+—H 5,518,436 - 135,755
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39. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 39. 42 B4 REXMT (&)
CASH FLOWS (Continued)

(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) HEBRESRHAEE
The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of cash ARG RERNHEER S RE A
flows is as follows: RGN
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR T
Within operating activities KRR 2,487 2,315
Within financing activities BMEEEHE 38,325 35,996
40,812 38,311
40. COMMITMENTS 40. 7EIE
The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the REBNHEHRE TH|EANFEIE :

reporting period:

2022 2021
—E-CF T —F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T AR T

Contracted, but not provided for: EHENEE 3
Property, plant and equipment M BB R&E 43,290 78,955
Capital contributions payable to investments EAEENLHERE 348,811 434,766
392,101 513,721
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41. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of the Group's interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, which are
secured by the assets of the Group, are included in note 31 to the financial
statements.

The summary of the pledged assets is as follows:

(a)

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, 100% of the shares of Shenzhen
Topknow Industrial Development Co., Ltd. were pledged to secure
certain bank loans.

As at 31 December 2022, the total assets (including property, plant
and equipment, equity investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income, inventories, trade and bills receivables,
and cash and cash equivalents) of SPL and the buildings of the
Company located in Pingshan and Nanshan District, Shenzhen, totally
amounting to RMB2,950,007,000 were mortgaged to obtain loans
from certain banks (2021: RMB2,341,096,000).

As at 31 December 2022, the bank deposits secured for performance
guarantees, forward exchange settlement and bank acceptances were
RMB69,388,000 (2021: RMB11,581,000).

As at 31 December 2022, the bond security deposits secured for the
performance bond margin were RMB112,000,000 (2021:
RMB87,000,000).

As at 31 December 2022, the buildings and leasehold land of the
Group located in Linyi City, Shandong Province and Pengzhou City,
Sichuan Province, totally amounting to RMB50,589,000 was
mortgaged to secure an unlimited guarantee from Shenzhen Gaoxintou

0., Ltd., an independent third party that offers financing and
guarantee service (2021: RMB52,010,000).
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41. EEEH
AAEEEEFEEBNAEEG BETT

K ELA

AR RIS RN P AR MES -

EHEEOHMEZNT

(a)

Ff?::i&f2:*¢+*ﬂ
=t+—B  FNIMEELEEER
ﬁﬂﬁ/‘ﬂOO%Mﬂ;; B AR A
WMEETRITERK -

RZBEZ_ZF+=ZA=+—H"'E
D RRIBSPLEE (BIEME - BE
REMH  AARBEFEEHSE
FAEMEEKERERE 17
& BHRBGIAERERERAR
Re KRS EEY) KRR FIIT
m&@m&m$gm%$é%AE

#2,950,007,0007C (—ZZ = —
AFR#2,341,096,0007T) * LAEU/S
HFHRITHER

RZZEZZF+=ZA=+—H" ' H
REHRES - REEEERRT
EERBEHBITERBARE
69,388,000 (ZZT = —4F : AR
#11,581,0007T) °

RZZE-_—F+=A=+—H" ' H
RBARZESNEFRESAAR
#112,000,0007c (ZZFT=—%F : A
FR#87,000,0007T) °

RZTEZZF+=ZA=+—H" 'K
EEMRAILRERTTRM)I|EE
MIHEFRBAE L EF AR
#50,589,0007C B 438 + LAENISIR
Y EEEERAR (—RBL
iR EMERRBEONE=7)
MERER(CZ-—F: AR
52,010,0007¢) °
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 42. BB AR S
(a) Name and relationship (a) & EBBRBEE
Name of related parties Relationship with the Group
BEMAMnE B8 BEAEEWREEF
Mr. Li Li and Ms. Li Tan Controlling Shareholders
FIPEERPHELL PERR AR R
Shenzhen Leren Technology Co., Ltd. Shareholder of the Company
RINTEC R AR QA RABRE
Urumgi Jintiantu Equity Investment Partnership Shareholder of the Company
(Limited Partnership)
EERBcHIREREGELEBERER) ZN/NET 55
Urumgi Feilashi Equity Investment Co., Ltd. Shareholder of the Company
SBARBERKAREREFRRAA AARRE
Mr. Shan Yu Shareholder and key management and a close
family member of the Controlling Shareholders
BFiA RERF EEIEE RIZERARR AT R
Urumgi Shuidi Shichuan Equity Investment Partnership A company controlled by Shareholder, key
(Limited Partnership) (“Shuidi Shichuan”) management and a close family member of the

Controlling Shareholders

BEBAEKEAFREREABRCE(BRER) ((XKBAE]) PR - =2 TR E R A AR R AV AT R S B R A

Aridis Pharmaceuticals, Inc. Minority shareholder of a subsidiary
FREI DR
OncoQuest Inc. Associate

/NG|

Resverlogix Corp. Associate
XN
(b) Significant related party transactions (b) EXBHARXS
The Group had the following transactions with related parties during REFBRERNEG NEHARS :
the year:
2022 2021
—=E—-_= —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR T T
Revenue from sales of products: EmEERA
OncoQuest Inc. OncoQuest Inc. 1,210 2,794
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 42. BB AR S (&)
(c) Other related party transactions (c) HBEH XS
During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group's BE-_T-_—_FR-_T-_—F+=
banking facilities were guaranteed by its related parties with details set A=+—HILEFE  ~EERRIT
out in note 31 to these financial statements. BERHBBAER  FEIHNZ

FPB KM L3 -

(d) Outstanding balances with related parties (d) EHEE SN REZEE
As disclosed in the statement of financial position, the Group had the MR ARAAIEE  KEER
following outstanding balances with related parties at 31 December B R E-_—F+=H
2022 and 2021: =+ — B EE T B R E R AR

T
2022 2021
—E-—F —E -4
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARBF T
Due from related parties JEWR B 5 5 R
Trade receivables (trade in nature) (Note (i) BorEWFBE(BESME)
(B EG))
OncoQuest Inc. OncoQuest Inc. 218 61
Aridis Pharmaceutical, Inc. Aridis Pharmaceutical, Inc. - 3,185
Other receivables (non-trade in nature) Hib el B (FEB 5 HHE)
Resverlogix Corp. Resverlogix Corp. 44,615 40,842
Total receivables from related parties FE U BB 75 SRR 4R R 44,833 44,088
Due to related parties 1T 7 5 H
Other payables (non-trade in nature) Hih R mE (GEE 5 1EE)
Aridis Pharmaceuticals Inc. Aridis Pharmaceuticals Inc. 36 177
Mr. Shan Yu BFiA 68 68
Mr. Li Li L E 68 -
Ms. Li Tan TR+ 65 -
Deposit received (trade in nature) Bz (BS51HH)
OncoQuest Inc. OncoQuest Inc. 5,665 5,978
Total payables to related parties FE AT A 77 SRIB R R 5,902 6,223
(i) Trade receivables due from related parties are unsecured, interest-free and (i) FEUR REEE B0 2B 5 FE R FhIE
repayable on demand. B . R B RSk
8 -
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42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(e) Compensation of key management personnel of the

42.

BEAIRXS (&
(e) AEBMETEREBEABNF

Group B
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—fF
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ET T ARBEF T
Fees e 300 300
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e EMEREWER 7,564 9,050
Performance-related bonuses BEBARBTEAT 5,838 5,074
Pension scheme contributions RINSETEIMHER 263 221
13,965 14,645

Further details of directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments are included
in note 9 to these financial statements.
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at

the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2022
Financial assets

Financial
assets at
fair value
through profit

43,

R 75 ¥ 5% MY 5T
31 December 2022
—EFE-—F+ZH=+—H

RERESNERTIA
REESF - SESBMTANEEE
mF

—E-—F

EREE

Financial

assets at

fair value

through other
comprehensive

or loss income
LAREE DA fREE
STEAH STERH
BEIA BEIA Financial
EHER HttzEKE FRTG L Total
HEeMEE HeEMEE N Tiee] &t
Mandatorily cost
designated Equity DY §:12%:
as such investments STEMN
BE Wt iEE BRERE SREE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T AR®BTR AR¥T R AR®T R
Financial assets at fair value through KAnBEGFERR
profit or loss ZEFAZHERS
HEMEE 2,279,209 - - 2,279,209
Derivative financial instruments TESBITE 10 - - 10
Equity investments designated at fair ~ EENA AR BEFS
value through other comprehensive BEZF:A
income Hin 2 E K=
RERE - 507,146 - 507,146
Financial assets included in other SPAHMIERBEE
non-current assets HeREE - - 113,493 113,493
Trade and bills receivables B 5 EWHRIE R
e - - 1,606,211 1,606,211
Due from related parties & Wi B B 7 R TR - = 44,833 44,833
Financial assets included in FTABMHE
prepayments, other receivables H fth & WK IE
and other assets HitnEENSREE - - 69,260 69,260
Pledged deposits BEERFR - - 69,388 69,388
Time deposits EHER - = 749,684 749,684
Cash and cash equivalents HehBEEeEED - - 1,319,707 1,319,707
2,279,219 507,146 3,972,576 6,758,941
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 43. RERETNEMT A
(Continued) (#&)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at RBERR SEHeR T AENEERE
the end of the reporting period are as follows: (Continued) wmr:(E)
Financial liabilities TRBE

Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
LA 85 B AR
STEH
AR
RMB'000
AR®T T

Trade payables

Due to related parties

Financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings

Lease liabilities

B S REMNRIAE 427,433

JE A< B Bt 73 R IR
SRARMENFEREAEHENEREE

s ERTT REMER
HEAE

237

165,662
6,317,464
146,439

7,057,235
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 43, REHETHEMIAE

(Continued) (4&)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at RBERR SEHeR T AENEERE
the end of the reporting period are as follows: (Continued) wmr:(E)
2021 —E-—F
Financial assets SREE
Financial ~ Financial assets
assets at at fair value
fair value through other
through profit ~ comprehensive
or loss income
AR EBE IR EE
FFEAH SFERE
e 2 EN AtA Financial
EHEE  HMzEls e —— Total
HNEeRmEE HeREE amortised &%
Mandatorily cost
designated Equity LA 8 X 2K
as such investments GTEN
58 il 1A I 78 T xR & EREE
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT ARETT ARETT
Financial assets at fair value through UKAanEEFEAH
profit or loss HE AL HEEN
TREE 1,977,409 - - 1,977,409
Derivative financial instruments TEemTA 248 - - 248
Equity investments designated at fair EEUNRAABEFE
value through other comprehensive BEHEHTAEM
income 2EHBENRERE - 474,885 - 474,885
Financial assets included in other SARMERBEEM
non-current assets SREE - - 88,952 88,952
Trade and bills receivables B S RWGIE K EWEE - - 1,525,209 1,525,209
Due from related parties JE Wi B B 75 IR = = 44,088 44,088
Financial assets included in STABMFRIE - Mg
prepayments, other receivables IR % H 1t B B
and other assets SREE - - 162,660 162,660
Pledged deposits EERER - - 11,581 11,581
Time deposits FHER - - 1,440,000 1,440,000
Cash and cash equivalents HehBEE2EEY = - 1,479,633 1,479,633
1,977,657 474,885 4,752,123 7,204,665
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43. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 43. ZEREINEMT A
(Continued) (#&)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments as at RBERR SEHeR T AENEERE
the end of the reporting period are as follows: (Continued) wmr:(E)
Financial liabilities TRBE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
VA SH B AR
FTEm
TRIBE
RMB'000
ARBF T
Trade payables B 5 e RIE 385,787
Due to related parties FE 1~ BBt 75 3R IE 245
Financial liabilities included in other FAEMEMNREREFEENEHAR
payables and accruals 196,311
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings T EERTT R E M &K 5,518,436
Lease liabilities HEBE 135,755
6,236,534
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44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the fair values of the Group's financial
assets or liabilities approximated to their respective carrying amounts.

Management has determined that the carrying amounts of cash and cash
equivalents, the current portion of time deposits and pledged deposits, trade
and bills receivables, amounts due from related parties, financial assets
included in prepayments, other receivables and other assets, trade payables,
amounts due to related parties, financial liabilities included in other payables
and accruals, the current portion of interest-bearing bank borrowings and
lease liabilities reasonably approximate to their fair values because these
financial instruments are mostly short term in nature.

The Group's finance department headed by the financial controller is
responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the fair value
measurement of financial instruments. At each reporting date, the finance
department analyses the movements in the values of financial instruments
and determines the major inputs applied in the valuation. The directors
review the results of the fair value measurement of financial instruments
periodically for annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the
amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction
between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair
values:

The fair values of long-term interest receivables and the debt investment
have been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using
rates currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities. The changes in fair value as a result of the Group's
own non-performance risk for interest-bearing bank and other borrowings as
at 31 December 2022 and 2021 were assessed to be insignificant.
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44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 44,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The fair values of listed equity investments are based on quoted market
prices. The fair values of unlisted equity investments have been valued based
on a market-based fair value technique that is appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the
use of unobservable inputs. The fair values of unlisted equity investments
designated at fair value have been estimated using precedent transaction
method, binomial tree model and the guideline public company method
which require the directors to determine comparable public companies
(peers) and comparable transactions. Those valuation techniques require
significant observable inputs, including market multiplier, risk-free interest
rate, volatility and liquidity discount which are available from public market.
The directors believe that the estimated fair values resulting from the
valuation technique, which are recorded in the consolidated statement of
financial position, and the related changes in fair values, which are recorded
in other comprehensive income and profit or loss, are reasonable, and that
they were the most appropriate values at the end of the reporting period.

The Group invests in unlisted investments, which represent wealth
management products issued by banks in Mainland China. The Group has
estimated the fair value of these unlisted investments by using a discounted
cash flow valuation model based on the market interest rates of instruments
with similar terms and risks.

The Group enters into derivative financial instruments with counterparties,
principally investment in an associate’s derivative financial instruments,
including warrants, which are measured using binomial tree model, using
present value calculations. The model incorporates various market observable
inputs including the credit quality of counterparties, the underlying stock
price and interest rate curves.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the mark-to-market value of the
derivative asset position was net of a credit valuation adjustment attributable
to derivative counterparty default risk.

For the fair value of the unlisted equity investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income, management has estimated the potential
effects of using reasonably possible alternatives as inputs to the valuation
model.
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44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 4. SHIENAABERRD
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) REBEESEHR (&)
Fair value hierarchy AREBEEER
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of the TEREOAEBRSH T AN AR EEE
Group's financial instruments: BER:
Assets measured at fair value: URARBETENEE :
As at 31 December 2022 R-E-—F+-F=+-—H

Fair value measurement using

RAEEFTEFMAERE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
ERMETFH EXAHE BERFTTEE
WmE WABE WA BE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B—%) (=) (B=#) &st
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000

AR¥T T AR¥T T AR¥T T AR¥T R

Equity investments designated 3 FEN AL EBEFER

at fair value through other HEB AHAM
comprehensive income HEHKERERE 7,413 499,733 = 507,146
Financial assets at fair value RAanEEFER
through profit or loss HEB)t A S HER
WEREE 8,713 1,542,986 727,510 2,279,209
Derivative financial instruments #74 €@ T & - 10 - 10

16,126 2,042,729 727,510 2,786,365
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44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 4. TR T ENAABERA
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) NEBEEER (&)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) AREBESHR(F)
Assets measured at fair value: (Continued) UAARBHETEHNEE @A (&)

As at 31 December 2021 R-E-_—&FE+_-_H=+—H

Fair value measurement using

NRBEABRBEE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs

& R T 5 Y EXABE EBEATTEER
(B WA BIER BWARIE

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(B—H) (B=H) (B=#) A&F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARBTFT ARBTFT

Equity investments designated 3 FEU A A BEFER

at fair value through other HEEB AHAM
comprehensive income 2EKREHRIEERE 14,713 460,172 = 474,885
Financial assets at fair value RAanEBEFER
through profit or loss HEB AL HiER
HEBEE 3,690 1,973,719 - 1,977,409
Derivative financial instruments $7T4 £ F T & - 248 - 248
18,403 2,434,139 - 2,452,542
During the year ended 31 December 2022, financial assets classified under BE_Z_—_F#+-_A=+—8HL#F
the fair value hierarchy as Level 2 were transferred to Leve 3 due to their E AREREENRNALBES=EMR
unobservable inputs used in fair value measurements. There were no other BRI ERm ASE  ZEBY>EAAR
significant transfers between the fair value hierarchy of the Group’s financial BEESELETTE _HNSHEEEASE
instruments during the year. =R - FAREBSHMIENARERE
EhoEUEEMMERES -
During the year ended 31 December 2021, a financial asset classified under BE_Z-_—®+-_A=+—8BL#&
the fair value hierarchy as Level 2 was transferred to Level 1 due to it being E AR BE2REEE LT ZES
listed. There were no other significant transfers between the fair value BAALEBESRETNE _FHNERE
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments during the year. EEAF—FH FAXNERLBRIAN

ARBESRZELEELMERES -
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44. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF 4. SHIENAABERRD
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) NEBEEEN (&
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) AREBESHR(F)
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: EHELAABEHNER
As at 31 December 2022 R-E-_—&F#+_-_H=+—H

Fair value measurement using

AREEFEFRMAEE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs

ERWE P EXTHE EATITHER
RE WARE WARE

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(-4 (E2=#) (E=4) &ast
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AR T T AR¥T T ARBT R

Interest-bearing bank and s BER1T R E A fE 7R
other borrowings - 3,932,155 - 3,932,155
As at 31 December 2021 R-E-——fF+=-HF=+—H
Fair value measurement using
A EEEMAEE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
RIS A EAAEBE FEANAEE
WIS AR & A BB
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(E—%) (B=#) (B=#&) &5t
RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000 RMB' 000
ARBTT ARBFT ARBFT AR®FT
Interest-bearing bank and 5T B ERIT R E A fE 5K
other borrowings - 3,632,151 - 3,632,151
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 45,

AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments mainly include cash and cash
equivalents, time deposits, pledged deposits, trade and bills receivables,
other receivables, trade payables and other payables and lease liabilities,
which arise directly from its operations. The Group has other financial assets
and liabilities such as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
equity investments designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income, derivative financial instruments, interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, and amounts due to related parties and due from related parties.
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the
Group's operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest rate
risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors
review and agree policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

Interest rate risk
The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates

primarily to the interest-bearing bank borrowings with floating interest rates.

The Group's policy is to manage its interest cost using a mix of fixed and
variable rate debts. At 31 December 2022, approximately 93% of the
Group's interest-bearing borrowings bore interest at fixed rates (2021: 94%).

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible
change in interest rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Group'’s
profit before tax (through the impact on floating rate borrowings) and the
Group's equity.

BEEREENERA
BR

AEENTEZSMIATEARRSR
ReEEY  THFEHR  CEBER &
SEWRIA R EWER - Bk R
BHRNFAREMENKEAREE
BE HEEKAELZEY - AEEE
HiveBEERAE  PIIIARAEER
ERHEHFASHESNEREE
BENAABEFEAEZEHAAEM
EEBSEMRERE  TESRTA &
BRIT R EAMER - BN BB FORK
EUEER TR - RESRMIANTE
BNERAEENELEERES -

AEBESRTAEENTIERARAN X
[\ f - SN [ B S E R B RO E 1
R EEREREURTEESARTA
BE)BR - R e

2 L B
AR EEEHTHFELPEREBR
FEFIEH BRITIERAM -

REBOBRISERBRESFEARE X
MEFESFREEREBELFEKAN - B
—E-—EF4+-_A=+—H AEEK
E &R Rt Bt BB RO AEB% (=ZF
——%F:94%) -

TERBRTHEMERMBESRFIED
BRT  AREB AR CRBEZH
MR B RA R ER) M AN & B 4 2 B A
BEAEENHRE -

Increase/ Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) in (decrease) in (decrease) in
basis points profit before tax equity*
=2 i A0 78 Em
i, Cri2) #win O ) O 4) *
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T AR®ET T
2022 T
RMB AR 25 (1,157) -
RMB AR (25) 1,157 -
2021 —TE-—F
RMB AR 25 (863) -
RMB AR (25) 863 -
= Excluding retained profits * TEERERA
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures arise from
sales or purchases by operating units in currencies other than the units’
functional currencies.

In addition, the Group has currency exposures from its interest-bearing bank
borrowings.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the end of the reporting
period to a reasonably possible change in the foreign exchange rates arising
from USD/EUR and RMB denominated financial instruments, with all other
variables held constant, of the Group's profit before tax.

B 7% o= I AE
31 December 2022
—EFE-—F+ZH=+—H

5. B EEEENEFRE

BR ()

Sh s L B
AEEERZHINEMD - bR R
BB B RSN
IMHEREE -

BESN - AER B e ET BER 1T B A SME R
[y

TRERRBEHRR  AEEBHAAE
HERET/BITEARKHENSR
TEEMBEMEERBTENER
T) FEAIMERE RS IR A sE B L RO BUR
B

2022 2021
—EBC-—F —E -
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®B T ARBFIT
RMB/USD AR¥E/ET
Strengthened 5% F{E5% (16,371) (12,025)
Weakened 5% B2 B5% 16,371 12,025
RMB/EUR AR BT
Strengthened 5% F{E5% 530 3,745
Weakened 5% B2 5% (530) (3,745)

Credit risk

An impairment analysis was performed at 31 December 2022 and 2021 using
a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The provision rates are
based on days past due for groupings of various customer segments with
similar loss patterns. The calculation reflects the probability-weighted
outcome, the time value of money and reasonable and supportable
information that is available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at
31 December 2022 and 2021

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to
credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which is mainly based on past
due information unless other information is available without undue cost or
effort, and year-end staging classification as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.
The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial assets.
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at
31 December 2022 and 2021 (Continued)

At 31 December 2022

45. B ¥ &

+=

R=-%
R

—ZER
=t—H&EXEAKRHO

— = —

—_— = —

REEREREK

—%

RFERFEMRER (&)

R-FB-ZZF+=ZA=+—8H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A7 8
EREBX THFEBEREX
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F—RE FoREER E=RER IGE(#73 &a&t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFTRT AR®BTR AR%BTR AR®BTR AR®BTR
Financial assets included st AHh3ERBEEE
in other non-current HemEE
assets 113,493 - - - 113,493
Contract assets EHEE - - - 19,534 19,534
Trade and bills receivables* 2 5 fE Y 5518 &
L e - - - 1,720,675 1,720,675
Financial assets included & AFE3K1E -
in prepayments, other E b JE YR IE K
receivables and other Hih & EH
assets TREE
— Normal** — [EE** 105,862 - - - 105,862
— Doubtful** — TEEE** - - 22,053 - 22,053
Amounts due from JE e B Bt 07 SRR
related parties 44,615 - - 218 44,833
Pledged deposits [EEEEEFN 69,388 - - - 69,388
Time deposits E B1F R 749,684 - - - 749,684
Cash and cash ReRREEEBY
equivalents 1,319,707 - - - 1,319,707
2,402,749 - 22,053 1,740,427 4,165,229
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AND POLICIES (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at
31 December 2022 and 2021 (Continued)

At 31 December 2021

Notes to Financial Statements

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

5. B ERE

B 7% o= I AE
31 December 2022
—EFE-—F+ZH=+—H

BB RERK

KA
RZBZZFER-_ZF_—F
tZA=t+—-—BRXEARKO
RFERFEMRER (&)

R=-FB=--F+=ZA=+—-8H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A 78 23
(ViR ES 2 HTEEE ALK
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E—IEER FRE FE=PBER (% A&F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTIT ARBFTT ARETRT AR®FTrT ARBTE
Financial assets included st AHh3ERBEEE
in other non-current HemEE
assets 88,952 - - - 88,952
Contract assets ABREE - - - 14,993 14,993
Trade and bills Z 5 EBGRIE R
receivables* A EEE - - - 1,611,508 1,611,508
Financial assets included & AFAfTZXIAE
in prepayments, other H e GRIE &
receivables and other E & EH
assets SREEE
— Normal** — EE== 186,758 - - - 186,758
— Doubtful** — TERE** - - 22,278 - 22,278
Amounts due from JE Lk BE Bt 5 FRIE
related parties 40,842 - - 3,246 44,088
Pledged deposits [EEEREEEEN 11,581 = = = 11,581
Time deposits TEHER 1,440,000 - - = 1,440,000
Cash and cash ReRREEEM
equivalents 1,479,633 - - - 1,479,633
3,247,766 - 22,278 1,629,747 4,899,791
@ For trade and bills receivables to which the Group applies the simplified approach for * MAEEERSETERENE S EK

impairment, information based on the provision matrix is disclosed in note 24 to the

financial statements.

b The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, other receivables and
other assets is considered to be “normal” when they are not past due and there is no
information indicating that the financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is
considered to be “doubtful”.
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 45,

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging as at
31 December 2022 and 2021 (Continued)

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

o significant financial difficulty of the debtor;
o a breach of contract such as a default or past due event;

o it is probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation

The Group has established a policy to perform an assessment of whether a
financial instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition, by considering the change in the risk of default occurring over
the remaining life of the financial instrument.

Management makes periodic collective assessments for financial assets
included in prepayments, other receivables and other assets as well as an
individual assessment on the recoverability of other receivables based on
historical settlement records and past experience. The Group recognises
allowance for financial assets included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables based on 12-month ECLs and adjusts for forward-looking
macroeconomic data. Otherwise, they are measured based on the lifetime
expected credit loss.
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Notes to Financial Statements

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)
Liquidity risk
The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding
and flexibility through the use of internally generated cash flows from
operations and bank borrowings. The Group regularly reviews its major
funding positions to ensure that it has adequate financial resources in
meeting its financial obligations.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payments, was as

B 7% o= I AE
31 December 2022
—EFE-—F+ZH=+—H

45, I EREEWN B ZEHK
xR (&)
7% B 14 B
AEBNEEZSEBFERARNIPEENE
LEHHEEREMBETER EELIT
BEHEMBREZERTFE - AEETE
g HFBESMRN  UEREER
MO EERREITETBER -

REBEEORERENT AERERHEN
AOESBEENIBBEREINT

follows:
2022
—E-CF
Less than 1to Over
On demand 1 year 3 years 3 years Total
I DR—F —E=F =FpkE il
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR%BFTR AR%BTn AR®BTrR AR®BTR
Trade payables Z 5 FENRIE - 427,433 - - 427,433
Financial liabilities included FT A E Ath B 5 5R8
in other payables and KIEFTIE B &
accruals TRAE 165,662 - - - 165,662
Interest-bearing bank sFEIRITER
borrowings - 4,181,564 1,737,847 740,847 6,660,258
Due to related parties JE 15 B B 5 3R 08 237 - - - 237
Lease liabilities HEAE - 40,172 88,590 31,909 160,671
165,899 4,649,169 1,826,437 772,756 7,414,261

O
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45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBIJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (Continued)

45, I EREEWN B ZEHK

R (&)

Liquidity risk (Continued) REIHRE R (&)
2021
—E -4
Less than 1to Over
On demand 1 year 3 years 3 years Total
BN ER PR—F —E=F =FLAE a&h
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AREFT ARBFTT ARETRT ARBFTT AREBTT
Trade payables B S EMNRIEA - 385,787 - - 385,787
Financial liabilities included s AE ftb FE S 3B
in other payables and REFTIEEB &
accruals cRBE 196,311 = = = 196,311
Interest-bearing bank sHEERITHE R
borrowings - 3,430,347 1,099,709 1,468,814 5,998,870
Due to related parties & At B B 5 3K 08 245 - - = 245
Lease liabilities HEAR - 35,542 76,299 37,080 148,921
196,556 3,851,676 1,176,008 1,505,894 6,730,134
Capital management EARER

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to safeguard
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholders’
value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light
of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders
or issue new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally imposed
capital requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or
processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 December 2022
and 31 December 2021.
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Notes to Financial Statements

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

46.

AND POLICIES (Continued)

Capital management (Continued)
The asset-liability ratios as at the end the reporting period are as follows:

45,

B 7% o= I AE
31 December 2022
—EFE-—F+ZH=+—H

BEEEEENBRER
R (&)

BXEHE (HF)
REEHRNAEQBELENT -

2022 2021

—E:=-= —E-—F

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®F AREFT

Total assets BEEBE 20,814,204 19,108,177

Total liabilities BE®EE 8,406,565 7,584,862

Asset-liability ratio BEARBHE 40% 40%
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 46. HESH

On 28 February 2023, the Company followed the commitment with the
investor of the corporate bond 20 Hepalink, requiring the Company to
repurchase 870,000,000 shares of 20 Hepalink according to the repurchase
plan of the publicly issued corporate bond 20 Hepalink (stock code: 149045)
in 2020. The principal of the bond is RMB870,000,000.00.
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47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at the

47. AR BB BEMR R K

BRARRRNBERRYBMRARNE

end of the reporting period is as follows:

BT

2022 2021
—E=-= —ET——%F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T AREFT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS *RBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - RENERE 1,201,996 1,268,911
Right-of-use assets FREESE 107,027 110,739
Other intangible assets HEthEmEEE 8,469 7,569
Investments in associates REERRZRE 1,328,902 562,579
Interests in subsidiaries NF AR ZRER 2,179,192 2,889,904
Equity investments designated at fair value EENAAREEFEEEEZFHA
through other comprehensive income Hi 2 mBSHIRERE 31,863 31,863
Financial assets at fair value through UARBEFEEEEZS
profit or loss STAGHERNeREE 300,259 361,320
Deferred tax assets IRICFT1S TR A & 83,396 74,145
Other non-current assets Hi3EmsEE 204,515 92,755
Total non-current assets EmBEAELTE 5,445,619 5,399,785
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Inventories 78 3,602,778 1,870,376
Trade and bills receivables BorlpmEkEREE 222,032 202,688
Prepayments, other receivables and TETRIE - EthEREIE R
other assets Hih&E 167,416 212,975
Due from related parties JRE Uiz BA Bk 5 k1A 2,539,857 3,817,486
Financial assets at fair value through UAABEAEBEES:TA
profit or loss EHBEENEREE 1,264,375 940,340
Derivative financial instruments MTEEFIA - =
Time deposits TE BT 749,684 1,440,000
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEZEED 491,550 440,767
Total current assets BB E B 9,037,692 8,924,632
CURRENT LIABILITIES nREAE
Trade payables B 5 R FIE 84,396 171,478
Other payables and accruals H e I8 R FEETIE B 185,998 169,706
Contract liabilities AHEE 279,829 2,557
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings T REETREMERR 1,832,282 2,557,382
Tax payable FE 5 Fi 78 31,380 48,878
Due to related parties FE 1< BABsE 77 5K IE 153,149 132,444
Lease liabilities HEBRME 913,264 4,933
Total current liabilities mE) B BB 3,480,298 3,087,378
NET CURRENT ASSETS mEEEFE 5,557,394 5,837,254
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES EEHERTEHER 11,003,013 11,237,039
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47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 47. KRB MR AR (&
COMPANY (Continued)

2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARMEF T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings S ERITREMER 1,749,550 2,020,813
Deferred income iR JE WA 19,853 2,596
Lease liabilities HEBE 27,923 28,941
Total non-current liabilities ERBEEAETE 1,797,326 2,052,350
Net assets BEFE 9,205,687 9,184,689
EQUITY e
Share capital A& 7K 1,467,296 1,467,296
Reserves (Note) & (M3E) 7,738,391 7,717,393
Total equity B 9,205,687 9,184,689
Li Li Shan Yu
3 BF
Director Director
EF EBE
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47. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 47. X R BB RR K (&)
COMPANY (Continued)
Note: B 5
A summary of the Company’s reserve is as follows: ARAIEEOBRZNT
Share Fair Statutory
Share Merger option value Other surplus Retained
premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total
R A% (E AUEE BRERE ALEERK Hith% ATRHHE REER &t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARBTRE  ARBTRE ARNTR AR®TR ARET:R

Balance at 1 January 2021 R-ZZE-—5—f—BH#E 7,558,283 (1,996,731) 33,937 206 474,225 532,359 1,548,424 8,150,703
Total comprehensive income for the year FR2E KA - - - 16,652 - - (121,016) (104,364)
Share of other reserves of associates EEBME DT MR - - - - (97,672) - - (97,672)
Dividend declared to shareholders ARREREE = = = = = = (220,094) (220,094)
Others it = = = = (11,180) - - (11,180)

At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 R=E-—4+-A=+-B Rk

:2::$ A—-H 7,558,283 (1,996,731) 33,937 16,858 365,373 532,350 1,207,314 7,717,393
Total comprehensive income for the year £ N2 EK#E5E - - - (67) - - 85,768 85,701
Share of other reserves of associates BB E AR Lt - - - - (628) - - (628)
Transfer from retained profits HEARDER = = = - - 8,577 (8,577) -
Dividend declared to shareholders RREEERS - - - - - - (51,355) (51,355)
Others it - - - - (12,720) - - (12,720)
At 31 December 2022 R-Z--#+-A=+-A 7,558,283 (1,996,731) 33,937 16,791 352,025 540,93 1,233,150 7,738,391

48. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 48. A BmET 2 #L &

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the EEegRN S _=F=A=-_t+NLB@E
board of directors on 29 March 2023. B R AR RE T B M B SRR o
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